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AIM is a market designed primarily for emerging or smaller companies to which a higher investment risk tends to be
attached than to larger or more established companies. AIM securities are not admitted to the Official List of the UK
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A prospective investor should be aware of the risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after careful consideration and, if appropriate, consultation with an independent financial adviser.

Your attention is drawn to the risk factors set out in Part 3 of this document but the whole of this document should be
read.
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This document has been prepared on the basis that all offers of Placing Shares will be made pursuant to an exemption under
the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in the EEA, from the requirement to produce a prospectus for offers of shares.
Accordingly, any person making or intending to make any offer within the EEA of shares which are the subject of the offering
contemplated in this Admission Document should only do so in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Company
or either of the Advisers to produce a prospectus for such offer. Neither the Company nor the Advisers have authorised, nor
do they authorise, the making of any offers of Placing Shares through any financial intermediary, other than offers made by
the Advisers which constitute the final placement of Placing Shares contemplated in this Admission Document. In particular,
any buyers of Placing Shares will be required to represent, warrant and agree that they are not acquiring any Placing Shares
with a view to their offer or resale.

This document will be available publicly, free of charge during normal business hours on any weekday (except Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays) at the offices of Simmons & Simmons LLP, CityPoint, One Ropemaker Street, London, EC2Y
9SS from the date of this document to the date one month from Admission, and on the Company’s website
(www.securetrustbank.com).

THIS DOCUMENT SHOULD NOT BE DISTRIBUTED, PUBLISHED, REPRODUCED OR OTHERWISE MADE
AVAILABLE IN WHOLE OR IN PART OR DISCLOSED BY RECIPIENTS TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND, IN
PARTICULAR, SHOULD NOT BE DISTRIBUTED TO PERSONS WITH ADDRESSES IN THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA OR IN ANY OTHER COUNTRY WHERE SUCH DISTRIBUTION MAY LEAD TO A BREACH OF ANY
APPLICABLE LAW AND/OR REGULATION. THE ORDINARY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND NOR WILL THEY
BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “US SECURITIES
ACT”) OR UNDER THE RELEVANT SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE
UNITED STATES. ACCORDINGLY, THE PLACING SHARES MAY NOT (UNLESS AN EXEMPTION UNDER THE US
SECURITIES ACT OR OTHER RELEVANT SECURITIES LAWS IS AVAILABLE) BE OFFERED, SOLD, TAKEN UP, OR
DELIVERED, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY IN, INTO OR FROM THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER
JURISDICTION WHERE THIS WOULD CONSTITUTE A VIOLATION OF THE RELEVANT LAWS OF, OR REQUIRE
REGISTRATION THEREOF IN SUCH A JURISDICTION OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, ANY US
PERSONS.

This document includes “forward-looking statements” which include all statements other than statements of historical facts,
including, without limitation, those regarding the Company’s financial position, business strategy, plans and objectives of
management for future operations, or any statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words “targets”, “believes”,
“expects”, “aims”, “intends”, “will”, “may”, “anticipates”, “would”, “could” or similar expressions or negatives thereof. Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors beyond the
Company’s control that could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different
from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Company’s present and future business strategies and the
environment in which the Company will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of
this document. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any updates or revisions to any
forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company’s expectations with regard thereto or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statements are based unless required to do so by applicable
law or the AIM Rules for Companies.

Hawkpoint Partners Limited, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is
acting as nominated adviser to the Company in connection with the Placing and Admission and is advising no one else (other
than Arbuthnot) in relation to the Placing and Admission and will not be responsible to any person other than the Company
and Arbuthnot for providing the protections afforded to its clients or for advising any other person in relation to the Placing or
Admission or otherwise.

Collins Stewart Europe Limited, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority,
is acting as broker to the Company in connection with the Placing and Admission and is advising no one else (other than
Arbuthnot) in relation to the Placing and Admission and will not be responsible to any person other than the Company and
Arbuthnot for providing the protections afforded to its clients or for advising any other person in relation to the Placing or
Admission or otherwise.

The responsibilities of Hawkpoint, as nominated adviser under the AIM Rules for Companies and the AIM Rules for
Nominated Advisers, are owed solely to the London Stock Exchange and are not owed to the Company or any Director of the
Company or to any other person in respect of their decision to acquire Placing Shares in the Company in reliance on any part of
this document. No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made by Hawkpoint, Collins Stewart or their affiliates as
to the contents of this document, or for the omission of any material from this document.

Neither of the Advisers has authorised the contents of, or any part of, this document and no liability whatsoever is accepted by
either of the Advisers for the accuracy of any information or opinions contained in this document or for the omission of any
information from this document.

The contents of the Company’s website, including any websites accessible from hyperlinks on the Company’s website, do not
form part of this document.
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Publication of this document 28 October 2011

Admission and commencement of dealings in Ordinary Shares on AIM 2 November 2011

CREST accounts to be credited in respect of Ordinary Shares 2 November 2011

Despatch of definitive share certificates (where applicable) By 16 November 2011

Each of the times and dates in the above timetable is subject to change. All references to times are references
to London times.

PLACING STATISTICS

Placing Price per Placing Share 720p

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue prior to the Placing 12,500,000

Number of New Shares being issued by the Company 1,666,667

Number of Sale Shares being sold by Arbuthnot 1,804,166

Total number of Placing Shares 3,470,833

Gross proceeds of the Placing £25.0 million

Estimated net proceeds (after deduction of estimated expenses of the Placing 
and Admission) of the Placing receivable by the Company £9.8 million

Estimated net proceeds (after deduction of estimated expenses of the Placing)
of the Placing receivable by Arbuthnot £12.4 million

Proportion of enlarged issued share capital (New Shares and Sale Shares)
being placed at Admission 24.5 per cent.

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue following the Placing 14,166,667

Market capitalisation at the Placing Price on Admission £102.0 million

TIDM Code/AIM symbol STB

ISIN GB00B6TKHP66
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KEY INFORMATION

The following information should be read in conjunction with the full text of this document, from which it
is derived, including the “Risk Factors” set out in Part 3 of this document. Sole reliance should not be placed
on the following summarised information.

1.        Introduction

Secure Trust Bank is a regulated bank operating in the UK. The Company, which was incorporated in
England in 1954, operates predominantly from its head office in Solihull and had 260 employees as at
30 June 2011. Since 1985 the Company has been a subsidiary of Arbuthnot. The core of Secure Trust Bank’s
business is the provision of banking services to UK customers who may not be adequately served by other
banks.

In its formative years, the Company focused on providing budgeting services to families across the West
Midlands, leading to the Company at that time developing ‘OneBill’, a budgeting account whereby Secure
Trust Bank pays a customer’s domestic bills in return for a monthly or weekly fixed payment and fee. The
Company has been providing unsecured personal finance to its customers for almost 35 years. Secure Trust
Bank materially increased its lending activities in 2009 by entering the motor finance and retail point of sale
finance markets and by the acquisition of two loan portfolios.

The Company has a diversified lending portfolio including:

•          Motor finance – fixed rate, fixed term hire purchase agreements secured mainly against used cars.
Finance term periods vary from 24 months to 60 months with a maximum loan size of £15,000. The
Company targets lending to customers considered to be in socio-economic groups C1, C2 and D. The
APR on new lending during June 2011 was in the range of 11.19 per cent. to 35.45 per cent.

•          Retail point of sale finance – unsecured, fixed rate and fixed term loans with payments received
monthly in arrears. Loans vary in term from six months to 48 months and range from £250 to £12,000.
The Company targets lending to customers considered to be in socio-economic groups A, B and C1.
The APR on new lending during June 2011 was up to 19.50 per cent.

•          Personal unsecured lending – fixed rate, fixed term products with payments received monthly in
arrears. Loan terms are between 12 months and 60 months with advances varying from £500 to
£15,000. The Company targets lending to customers considered to be in socio-economic groups A to
D. The average APR on new lending during June 2011 was 19.10 per cent.

As at 30 June 2011, the loan book was £123.9 million.

Lending customers are primarily reached through carefully selected business partners and the internet. The
Company has underwriting technology and processes to enable it to make lending decisions quickly, often
on an automated basis, and has high customer satisfaction scores.

By virtue of its focus on higher margin lending, the absence of large fixed overheads in the form of a branch
network and a policy of not cross-subsidising loss making products with profitable ones, the Company is
able to offer competitive deposit interest rates and has been successful in attracting deposits from a wide
range of personal and non-personal customers. As at 30 June 2011, the Company’s total deposit base was
£217.0 million and a significant majority of deposit accounts were below the FSCS limit, which as at the
date of this document is £85,000.

Secure Trust Bank’s strong financial record during the financial crisis of the last three years is evidenced by
the growth of profits and payment of dividends during this period. Profit before tax and group recharges in
the six months ended 30 June 2011 was £5.0 million.
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2.        Key strengths

•          A scalable, well established UK retail bank;

•          highly experienced management team and board;

•          potential demonstrated by 47 per cent. growth in customer base, to over 120,000 customers, from
30 June 2010 to 30 June 2011;

•          a range of deposit, current and household budget accounts;

•          lending into attractive segments of the market, including motor finance, retail point of sale finance and
personal unsecured loans;

•          experiencing significant growth in new lending and demand for banking services (loan book up from
£66.5 million as at June 2010, to £89.5 million as at December 2010, to £123.9 million as at June
2011);

•          multiple distribution channels, through Affinity Partners, potential joint ventures and direct to
customers;

•          funded by customer deposits and capital (no exposure to bank wholesale markets) with proven deposit
raising capability;

•          customer loans and deposits broadly matched in maturity over a five year period with no lending
exceeding five years and deposit accounts ranging from instant access to five year bonds; and

•          technology-led lending processes which allow for significant business growth.

3.        The UK retail banking and consumer credit market

Since late 2008 many UK banks have encountered significant difficulties as the UK (and wider global)
economy has experienced recessionary conditions. Certain UK banks continue to face a number of key
challenges which, in the opinion of the Directors, include:

•          the management of significantly impaired legacy loan books;

•          balance sheet restructurings, in particular addressing liquidity, funding and capital issues;

•          sizeable and inefficient infrastructure including multiple IT systems; and

•          in some cases the impact of being wholly or partly nationalised.

Furthermore, since 2007 a number of non-bank credit providers have reduced or ceased lending driven by,
inter alia, a lack of liquidity in wholesale funding markets and deteriorating loan credit performance.

The Directors believe that the above challenges and distractions faced by the established UK banking and
wider consumer credit sector provide Secure Trust Bank with a significant opportunity, as a well-capitalised,
deposit funded bank to grow within its chosen markets.

4.        Strategy for growth

Secure Trust Bank’s strategy is to build on its current position as an established UK retail bank through a
focus on carefully selected and attractively priced segments of the market with a prudent approach to capital
and liquidity. The Directors intend to achieve this strategy by building on the Company’s key strengths
through:

•          Growth in existing lending segments – Secure Trust Bank has in place a number of successful
arrangements with Affinity Partners, such as The Association of Cycle Traders (“ACTSmart”) and
RentSmart. The Company anticipates establishing relationships with new Affinity Partners and is
pursuing a number of potential near term opportunities.

•          Expansion into new lending segments – a key feature of Secure Trust Bank’s lending activities is a
focus on under-served markets. The Directors have identified a number of opportunities beyond
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Secure Trust Bank’s current lending segments, for example personal unsecured loans direct to new
customers through the internet, top up motor finance loans, home improvement finance to customers
through Affinity Partners and finance to small and medium sized enterprises involved in installing
renewable energy systems.

•          Acquisitions of loan portfolios and businesses – the Directors believe the ongoing capital and
funding constraints experienced by certain other lenders is resulting in potential portfolio acquisition
opportunities. In addition, a number of businesses have been identified, which, if acquired by the
Company, could enhance the Company’s new business origination.

•          Fee-based current and budget accounts – the fee based current account product has experienced
growth, with approximately 14,000 accounts as at 30 June 2011, and new account openings averaging
1,000 accounts per month for the six months ended 30 June 2011. The Company intends to roll out
new products in 2012.

Secure Trust Bank is currently in discussions to establish a consumer finance lending joint venture with a
third party unsecured personal lender. The unsecured personal lender typically lends to customers who are
considered to be from socio-economic groups C and D. It is proposed that the joint venture would acquire a
portfolio of personal instalment loans, funded by equity provided by the unsecured personal lender and an
initial loan facility of approximately £50 million provided by Secure Trust Bank. The loan facility would
expand to fund new loans originated by the joint venture. Please see paragraph 6 of Part 2 of this document
for more details on this proposed joint venture.

5.        Summary financial information

Year ended 31 December Six months ended 30 June

                                                        2008                   2009                   2010                   2010                   2011
                                                        £000                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Net interest income                       2,590                  8,590                12,472                  5,740                  7,998 
Net fee and commission
income                                      15,423                13,119                11,750                  5,706                  5,572

                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Operating income                       18,013                21,709                24,222                11,446                13,570 
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Impairment losses on
loans and advances                       (533)               (1,173)               (2,168)                  (814)               (1,812)

Operating expenses
(excluding group
recharges)                                (12,567)             (11,468)             (13,390)               (6,027)               (6,800)

Other                                                  121                    (652)                    982                  1,124                         –
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Profit before tax and
group recharges                        5,034                  8,416                  9,646                  5,729                  4,958

                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

As at 31 December As at 30 June
                                                        2008                   2009                   2010                   2010                   2011
                                                        £000                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Lending balances
Motor finance                                        –                  4,680                31,270                16,556                48,386
Retail point of sale finance                   –                  6,437                21,640                14,396                32,053
Personal unsecured loans               7,300                  9,590                22,407                14,704                34,552
Acquired portfolios                               –                25,465                10,723                16,965                  5,807
OneBill and other                           5,251                  5,268                  3,442                  3,842                  3,059
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total lending balances                12,551                51,440                89,482                66,463              123,857
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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As at 31 December As at 30 June
                                                        2008                   2009                   2010                   2010                   2011
                                                        £000                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Customer deposits                                                                                                                                             
Current/demand accounts               5,147                26,418                27,514                27,229                28,741
Term deposits                               30,681                66,924              126,264              136,049              188,260
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total customer deposits             35,828                93,342              153,778              163,278              217,001
                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Commentary on summary financial information

Secure Trust Bank’s loan portfolio has increased substantially since 2008 from £12.6 million as at
31 December 2008 to £123.9 million as at 30 June 2011. The growth in net lending since the start of 2009
has been driven by the introduction of the motor finance and retail point of sale finance businesses, a material
increase in personal unsecured lending and the acquisitions of two loan portfolios from Liverpool Victoria
and Citigroup. The Company’s three core lending segments, motor finance, retail point of sale finance and
personal unsecured lending, have grown at compound annual growth rates of 377 per cent., 192 per cent. and
136 per cent. respectively between 31 December 2009 and 30 June 2011.

The growth in Secure Trust Bank’s loan book has been entirely funded through customer deposits, with no
reliance on wholesale funding markets. Customer deposits have grown from £35.8 million at the end of 2008
to £217.0 million as at 30 June 2011. As at 30 June 2011, the Company had a loan to deposit ratio of
57 per cent.

Growth in the Company’s loan portfolio has also driven an increase in net interest income and profits. Net
interest income and profit before tax and group recharges have increased at compound growth rates of
119 per cent. and 38 per cent. respectively between the year ended 31 December 2008 and the year ended
31 December 2010. Profit before tax and group recharges in the first six months of the current financial year
was £5.0 million compared with £4.6 million in the previous year before the one-off release of provisions
held following the disposal of Arbuthnot’s insurance broking business (included as “Other” in the summary
financial information). Net fee and commission income has declined since 31 December 2008, linked to a
decline in OneBill customer numbers over the period. The OneBill account was subsequently closed to new
customers in 2010.

Since 2009, Secure Trust Bank has incurred a group recharge from Arbuthnot. This recharge will not
continue post Admission. For the period following Admission, as set out in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 and
paragraph 8 of Part 2 of this document, the Company has entered into the Services Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company will provide certain services to Arbuthnot and vice versa. The reduction in the
Company’s operating expenses in 2009 primarily relates to the exit by the Company of its non-core
businesses and the streamlining of its businesses. The increase in operating expenses between 2009 and 2010
reflects the growth in the Company’s business by the entry into new segments of the lending market which
occurred during this period.

The bad debt charge as a percentage of lending assets for the twelve month period to 30 June 2011 was
2.6 per cent. This compares with the bad debt charge for each of the three years to 31 December 2010 of
approximately 4.2 per cent., 2.3 per cent. and 2.4 per cent. respectively.

As at 30 June 2011, the Company had a core tier one capital ratio of 16.4 per cent., and an overall capital
ratio of 19.7 per cent., reflecting a prudent approach to capital.

As at 30 June 2011 Secure Trust Bank had net assets on a pro forma basis of £22.8 million, as set out in
Part 6 of this document. The pro forma information takes no account of the results or any other changes in
the financial or trading position of Secure Trust Bank or its subsidiaries for the period subsequent to
30 June 2011, including the payment of a £1.6 million dividend subsequent to 30 June 2011 referred to in
Note 32 of the historical financial information in Part 5 of this document.
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6.        Current Trading and Prospects

Since 30 June 2011, Secure Trust Bank has continued to perform well with total income and net lending
ahead of the same period last year. The Company continues to grow its customer base at a net rate of 3 per
cent. per month, across lending, current accounts and deposit accounts.

The Directors believe the Company is well positioned to capitalise on the opportunities in its chosen markets
and view the financial prospects of the current year with confidence.

7.        Relationship with Arbuthnot

On Admission, Arbuthnot will retain a substantial majority shareholding in Secure Trust Bank, with 75.5 per
cent. of the Ordinary Shares.

The Company has entered into the Relationship Agreement with Arbuthnot, which governs certain aspects
of the relationship between the Company and Arbuthnot on Admission. The term of the Relationship
Agreement will be from Admission until the earlier of Arbuthnot ceasing to hold 50 per cent. or more of the
voting rights attached to the Ordinary Shares, and the Ordinary Shares ceasing to be admitted to trading on
AIM or any other regulated investment market.

The Relationship Agreement provides as follows, subject to the other specific provisions of the Relationship
Agreement:

•          the Company will have its own management dedicated to working full-time for the promotion of the
success of the Company;

•          it is acknowledged that it is appropriate that the views of Arbuthnot as a substantial shareholder in the
Company are taken into account by the Directors in making decisions in relation to the management
and running of the Company; and

•          in making decisions in relation to the management and running of the Company the Directors shall
have regard to the interests of all the Shareholders.

The Relationship Agreement recognises the right of Arbuthnot to exercise its rights as a holder of Ordinary
Shares in what it considers to be in its best interest. It must not do so in breach of the restrictions in the
Relationship Agreement on voting on certain related party transactions or, for a defined period, to cancel the
Company’s listing and admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM. Subject to these limited
exceptions Arbuthnot would therefore be free to exercise its rights as Shareholder in the Company.

Key matters governed by the Relationship Agreement include, inter alia, the following:

•          the right of Arbuthnot to appoint one third of the Directors of the Company;

•          restrictions on the ability of the Directors appointed by Arbuthnot to count in the quorum and vote on
matters which constitute Related Party Transactions (as defined in the Relationship Agreement);

•          the right of Arbuthnot to require a dividend to be paid by the Company (subject to the Company’s
financial position, regulatory requirements and certain other matters); and

•          the Company shall prepare a business plan for the Group for each financial year which shall, to be
effective, require to be approved and adopted by resolution of the Board passed by a majority vote (of
which at least one Director voting in favour is a director appointed by Arbuthnot) of those Directors
present at a Board meeting duly convened and held.

Further details of the principal features of the Relationship Agreement are set out in paragraph 9.2 of Part 7
of this document.

As described in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document, following Admission, it will be necessary for
certain services to be provided by the Company to the Arbuthnot Group, and by the Arbuthnot Group to the
Company. The Company has therefore entered into the Services Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
will provide certain services to Arbuthnot and vice versa. Further details of the principal features of the
Services Agreement are set out in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document.
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8.        Dividend Policy

The Directors intend to adopt a progressive dividend policy which will take into account the Company’s
capital requirements, earnings and cash flow whilst maintaining a responsible dividend cover and having
regard to the provisions of the Relationship Agreement relating to the payment of dividends.

It is intended that a dividend of £600,000 will be declared by the Company at the time of publishing the
Company’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2011, in respect of the period from Admission until
such date. The Directors intend this to be declared as a final dividend and be paid in May 2012.

It is the current intention of the Directors, subject to there being no material change in the Company’s
financial condition and business prospects, that in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company should pay out 40 to 60 per cent. of the Company’s profits available for distribution. Thereafter
the Directors currently intend to adopt a progressive dividend policy.

For the financial years ending 31 December 2012 onwards, the Directors intend that interim and final
dividends in respect of each year ending 31 December will be paid respectively in August of that year
and May of the following year.

9.        Summary of the Placing

The Placing comprises an offer by the Company of 1,666,667 New Shares to raise gross proceeds of
approximately £12.0 million and the sale of, in aggregate, 1,804,166 Sale Shares by Arbuthnot. The Placing
Shares will represent approximately 24.5 per cent. of the issued Ordinary Shares of the Company on
Admission. The Placing is conditional on Admission taking place on or before 2 November 2011 (or such
later date, not being later than 4 November 2011, as the Company and the Advisers may agree). On
Admission, Arbuthnot’s shareholding in Secure Trust Bank will represent 75.5 per cent. of the Ordinary
Shares in issue at that time.

Collins Stewart has agreed to use reasonable endeavours to procure placees in accordance with the terms of
the Placing Agreement (further details of which are set out in paragraph 9.5 of Part 7 of this document). The
Placing is not being underwritten.

Further details of the Placing are set out in Part 4 of this document.

10.      Reasons for Admission and Use of Proceeds

The Placing and Admission should enable Secure Trust Bank to take advantage of the substantial
opportunities that the Directors have identified in the lending market and referred to in paragraph 10 of Part 2
of this document.

The Directors believe that the Placing and Admission will provide the Company with capital in order to
facilitate future growth in its loan book and the potential to make selective acquisitions of loan books and
businesses as well as raise its corporate profile and brand awareness. In addition, the Placing and Admission
will provide a market and a value for Secure Trust Bank’s Ordinary Shares which the Directors believe will,
in conjunction with the Share Option Scheme, help the Company to attract and retain high calibre
employees.

The net proceeds of the issue of New Shares (after deduction of the expenses of the Placing and Admission)
of approximately £9.8 million will increase the capital base of the Company, after payment of a dividend of
£3.4 million to be paid to Arbuthnot conditional on Admission, to £22.8 million on a pro forma basis, as set
out in Part 6 of this document, further strengthening its ability to both lend and to develop its business.

11.      Lock-up Arrangements

Arbuthnot has agreed in the Placing Agreement to a six month lock-up arrangement with the Company’s
broker, Collins Stewart, and Hawkpoint. Approximately 75.5 per cent. of the Ordinary Shares will be subject
to such lock-up arrangement following Admission.
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The Company has also been informed by Arbuthnot that Arbuthnot recognises that, over time, Secure Trust
Bank may require further capital in order to take full advantage of suitable opportunities that may present
themselves to Secure Trust Bank, and Arbuthnot would be willing to see its interest in the Company further
diluted at an appropriate time, in an appropriate way to enhance value for all Shareholders.

In addition, during the term of the Relationship Agreement, Arbuthnot will only be permitted to purchase
additional Ordinary Shares through Collins Stewart. Any such purchase may only be effected with the prior
written consent of Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint (such consents not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed). This restriction will not apply in relation to pre-emptive issues of Ordinary Shares.

12.      Risk Factors

Prior to making an investment decision in respect of Ordinary Shares, prospective investors should
carefully consider all the information in this Admission Document, including the risk factors set out
in more detail in Part 3: “Risk Factors”. Additional risks not presently known to the Company or that
the Company currently considers to be immaterial may also negatively impact Secure Trust Bank’s
business operations. The business, growth prospects, financial condition and/or results of operations
of Secure Trust Bank could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The trading price
of the Ordinary Shares could decline due to any of these risks and investors could lose part or all of
their investment.
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PART 1

BACKGROUND TO THE COMPANY AND ITS MARKETS

1.        Introduction

Secure Trust Bank is an established UK retail bank. The core of Secure Trust Bank’s business is the provision
of banking services including a range of lending solutions and deposit and fee-based current accounts to UK
customers who may not be adequately served by other banks.

The Company, which was incorporated in 1954, operates predominantly from its head office in Solihull,
West Midlands, and had 260 employees as at 30 June 2011. The Company has been a subsidiary of
Arbuthnot since 1985.

The Company has a diversified lending portfolio including motor finance, retail point of sale finance and
personal unsecured lending. Lending customers are primarily reached through carefully selected business
partners and the internet. The Company has developed underwriting technology and processes to enable it to
make lending decisions quickly, often on an automated basis, and has high customer satisfaction scores. The
Company believes this has been a key attraction in particular for its Affinity Partners. Examples of Affinity
Partners include RentSmart for electronic goods, ACTSmart, the Arts Council and Pay4Later as a
proposition to e-tailers.

By virtue of its focus on higher margin lending, the absence of large fixed overheads in the form of a branch
network and a policy of not cross-subsidising loss making products with profitable ones, the Company is
able to offer competitive deposit interest rates and has been successful in attracting deposits from a wide
range of personal and non-personal customers. The Company’s lending is entirely funded by customer
deposits, and accordingly the Company has no exposure to wholesale funding. The customer loans and
deposits are broadly matched in maturity over a five year period with no lending exceeding five years,
deposit accounts ranging from instant access to five year bonds and over a third of the loan book having a
maturity of 12 months or less.

The Company’s strong financial record during the financial crisis of the last three years is evidenced by the
growth of profits and the payment of dividends during this period. In the three years ended
31 December 2010 the loan book increased more than sevenfold from £12.6 million to £89.5 million, with
net interest income increasing from £2.6 million to £12.5 million. As at 30 June 2011, the loan book was
£123.9 million. Profit before tax and group recharges in the six months ended 30 June 2011 was £5.0 million.
Over the 12 month period to 30 June 2011, the Company had a return on average equity of 59 per cent. before
tax and group recharges. As at 30 June 2011 the Company had a core tier one capital ratio of 16.4 per cent.,
an average overall capital ratio of 19.7 per cent. and a loan to deposit ratio of 57 per cent., reflecting a
prudent approach to capital and liquidity.

As at 30 June 2011 the Company’s total customer base exceeded 120,000, representing an increase of
47 per cent. over the previous 12 months.

2.        History

The Company was incorporated in 1954. In its formative years, the Company focused on providing
household budgeting services to families across the West Midlands, leading to the Company at that time
developing ‘OneBill’, a budgeting account whereby Secure Trust Bank pays a customer’s domestic bills in
return for a monthly or weekly fixed payment and fee.

The Company has been providing unsecured personal finance to its customers for almost 35 years. The
Company also expanded into adjacent activities including estate agency, mortgage broking, insurance
broking and debt management. The estate agency, mortgage broking and insurance broking activities were
closed or sold during 2009 and the debt management business was sold in 2010, to enable the Company to
re-focus on the provision of lending products. During the last three years the Company has also closed or
sold each of its branches.
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During 2007 and 2008, in response to deteriorating lending conditions, the Company significantly reduced
lending volumes. Lending activities materially increased in 2009 including through the development of
motor finance and retail point of sale finance products. In addition, the Company acquired two personal
unsecured loan portfolios from Liverpool Victoria and Citigroup for £16.7 million and £21.1 million
respectively. In 2010 the Company closed its OneBill account product to new customers. The Company has
since relaunched its fee-based current account which is progressing well and the Directors are considering
the launch of new products in 2012.

During the last 18 months the Company has strengthened its management team by hiring Paul Lynam and
Neeraj Kapur as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer respectively, as well as other members
of the Key Management Team.

3.        The UK retail banking and consumer credit market

3.1      Overview

Since late 2008 many UK banks have encountered significant difficulties as the UK (and wider global)
economy has experienced recessionary conditions. Certain UK banks continue to face a number of
key challenges which, in the opinion of the Directors, include:

•          the management of significantly impaired legacy loan books;

•          balance sheet restructurings, in particular addressing liquidity, funding and capital issues;

•          sizeable and inefficient infrastructure including multiple IT systems; and

•          in some cases the impact of being wholly or partly nationalised.

Furthermore, a number of non-bank credit providers have reduced or ceased lending driven by, inter
alia, a lack of liquidity in wholesale funding markets and deteriorating loan credit performance.

The Directors believe that the above challenges and distractions faced by the established UK banking
and wider consumer credit sector provide Secure Trust Bank with a significant opportunity, as a
well-capitalised, deposit funded bank to grow within its chosen markets.

Set out below is a brief overview of each of the core markets in which Secure Trust Bank currently
operates.

3.2      UK consumer credit market

The UK consumer credit market comprises credit cards, hire-purchase finance, cash loans and other
forms of credit, but excludes mortgages. In August 2011, the Bank of England reported that total
outstanding consumer credit loans were c.£209 billion as at 31 July 2011.

Secure Trust Bank targets certain specific segments of the UK consumer credit market, being personal
unsecured lending, new and used motor finance and retail point of sale finance. Secure Trust Bank
focuses on a range of core products and socio-economic customer groups. Set out below are the
Directors’ estimates for the size of each of the Company’s target lending markets:

•          Personal unsecured lending – c.£1.2 billion (average) of monthly gross new advances in the
year to July 2011;

•          New and used motor finance – c.£6.1 billion of gross new advances in the year to August 2011;
and

•          Retail point of sale finance – c.£2.5 billion of gross new advances in the year to August 2011.
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3.3      UK retail deposit and current account market

The UK retail deposit and current account market was estimated by the Bank of England to be worth
in excess of £1.1 trillion as at 31 July 2011, with the majority of deposits being held by the large UK
clearing banks and building societies. Secure Trust Bank accepts deposits from both personal and non-
personal customers so as to diversify its funding options. The Directors believe the interest rate paid
and security and convenience are key factors affecting the ability to raise deposits.

Current accounts represent a core service offered by the UK retail banking sector with an estimated
71 million UK personal current accounts generating approximately £9 billion of revenue in 2010
according to a report by the OFT published in November 2010. Secure Trust Bank targets customers
without a bank account and those for whom the Company’s proposition is likely to be competitive.
The Directors estimate Secure Trust Bank’s target customer base in the UK to be in the order of
2.5 million people.

4.        Regulatory background

4.1      Bank regulation

In the UK, activities carried out by the Company are regulated under FSMA, together with secondary
legislation and other rules made under it, including the FSA Rules. It is an offence for a person to
carry on “regulated activities” in the UK unless it is an authorised person or exempt from the need to
be authorised. The Company is authorised under FSMA to carry on the regulated activities that it
currently conducts.

Threshold conditions

A FSA authorised firm must satisfy at all times certain “threshold conditions” which are set out in
FSMA. These threshold conditions include the requirement that an authorised firm must have
adequate financial resources, not have “close links” of a nature that would impede the FSA’s
supervision of the firm and generally satisfy the FSA that it is “fit and proper” and otherwise suitable
to be authorised.

Approved persons

The approval of the FSA is required for the performance of certain “controlled functions”. Persons
performing a “controlled function” in relation to a FSA authorised firm include, inter alia, the chief
executive, the directors, persons with oversight of money laundering reporting and compliance and
certain persons carrying out important management or customer facing functions. Persons who are
directors, partners, officers, members (in the case of a limited liability partnership), senior managers
or employees of a parent undertaking or holding company of an authorised firm will also be seen as
performing a “controlled function” if the decisions of those persons are regularly taken into account
by the governing body of the authorised firm, except in certain circumstances.

Restrictions on changes of control

A FSA authorised firm is subject to restrictions regarding persons who may act as a “controller” of it,
and procedural requirements which apply to the process by which a person acquires control, or certain
increases in control over it. A “controller” for the purposes of FSMA and the FSA Rules is a person
who alone or with those he is acting in concert holds ten per cent. or more of the shares or voting
rights in, or is able to exercise significant influence in relation to, a regulated firm or its parent
undertaking.

A person who decides to acquire or increase control over a UK authorised firm must give advance
written notice to the FSA which will then decide whether to approve the acquisition, either
conditionally or unconditionally, or to object to it. There is also a general duty to give prior
notification to the FSA of any proposal to cease to have control over a regulated firm or to reduce an
existing level of control from specified thresholds.

Breach of the notification requirements imposed by FSMA on the controller is a criminal offence.
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The FSA Rules

A FSA authorised firm must comply with the principles and rules set out in the FSA Rules, which also
provide guidance on the application and interpretation of these rules.

The FSA’s Principles for Business (the “Principles”) are high-level principles which are a general
statement of the fundamental obligations of FSA authorised firms under the regulatory system. The
FSA is a “principles based regulator” and expects firms to meet the standards of behaviour set out in
the Principles. These Principles include obligations relating to treating customers fairly. The FSA may
take disciplinary action against any firm which breaches one or more of the Principles, irrespective of
whether it has also breached a specific FSA rule.

If a breach of the FSA Rules occurs, the FSA has the power to take a wide range of disciplinary
actions against regulated firms and any FSA approved persons, including public censure, the
imposition of fines, the variation, suspension or termination of the firm’s authorisations or the removal
of approved status from individuals.

Regulatory capital

Regulatory capital requirements form an integral part of the FSA’s prudential supervision of UK
authorised firms. The regulatory capital rules oblige firms to hold a certain amount of capital at all
times (taking into account the particular risks to which the firm may be exposed given its business
activities), thereby seeking to ensure that firms can meet their liabilities as they fall due and
safeguarding their (and their counterparties’) financial stability. The FSA also expects firms to take a
pro-active approach to monitoring and managing risks, consistent with its high level requirement for
firms to have adequate financial resources.

4.2      Consumer credit

The Company’s consumer credit activities are also regulated. The Company is required to hold a
licence from the OFT to enable it to carry out such activities. The Company is also required to comply
with:

•          the CCA, which contains rules on (among other things) advertising, pre-contract disclosure,
credit agreements and post-credit information; and

•          the CCD, which contains rules on (among other things) adequate and transparent explanations
of the credit on offer, and rights for consumers (e.g. in relation to termination). The CCD
applies only to unsecured credit.

4.3      Other legislation

The Company is also required to comply with a wide range of other legislation as a result of its
activities, including (among other things) the Data Protection Act 1998, the Money Laundering
Regulations 2001, the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, and the Anti-terrorism, Crime and Security Act
2001.

4.4      Regulatory changes

In recent months and years, the regulatory environment within which the Company operates has been
in a state of flux, primarily as a result of the credit crisis which began in 2007 and the subsequent UK
recession. National governments and international authorities have been reviewing the regulation of
the financial services industry. The Directors believe that the coming months and years will see further
changes to the regulatory environment within which the Company operates, including in relation to
the conduct of the Company’s business, and the ways in which the Company engages with its
customers.

The UK Government is currently consulting on amendments to FSMA that will alter the approach to
the regulation of financial services in the UK. This includes the creation of the PRA and the FCA,
which will in general terms have responsibility for prudential and business conduct regulation

16



respectively. It is anticipated that these bodies will have new regulatory powers and will replace the
FSA from the end of 2012.

On 12 September 2011, the ICB Report was published. The nature of the changes that will be
implemented following the ICB Report is not yet clear, and any changes are not currently anticipated
to be required to be fully implemented until 2019. While the impact of the ICB Report’s
recommendations may, depending on their implementation, affect the Company’s business, the
Directors believe that, because the Company does not carry on an investment banking business, the
recommendation in the ICB Report that the retail banking activities of banks in the UK should be
“ring-fenced” from their other activities is not directly relevant to the Company. The ICB Report may
also have the effect of reducing funding sources for organisations which compete with the Company,
as a result of the recommendation that ringfenced banks should not lend to non-bank financial
institutions. The Directors will however continue to monitor developments relating to the ICB Report.

Other changes in contemplation include the implementation of the Basel III capital adequacy
requirements which may have a disruptive effect on UK banks. The Directors have considered the
proposed changes to the regulatory capital regime under Basel III and based on the information
currently available with regard to the regulatory capital changes do not expect to have to raise
additional capital to meet the requirements.
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PART 2

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

1.        Introduction

Secure Trust Bank is an established UK retail bank with a range of lending solutions, deposit products, fee-
based current accounts and a household budgeting account for UK customers.

The Company has a diversified lending portfolio which focuses on motor finance, retail point of sale finance
and unsecured personal loans. Its lending is entirely funded by customer deposits, with no exposure to
wholesale funding.

2.        Motor finance

                                                                                 As at/year ended                          As at/six months ended
                                                                    31 December      31 December                 30 June               30 June
                                                                                 2009                   2010                     2010                   2011
                                                                                 £000                   £000                     £000                   £000

Lending balances                                                     4,680                31,270                  16,556                48,386
Revenue                                                                      180                  3,384                       881                  4,120

Secure Trust Bank’s motor finance business started lending in 2009. As at 30 June 2011, it was the
Company’s largest lending product by loan book value with net outstanding motor finance loans of
£48.4 million (£16.6 million as at 30 June 2010).

Motor finance loans are fixed rate, fixed term hire-purchase agreements and are secured against the vehicle
being financed. Payments are received monthly in arrears. Only passenger vehicles with certain features
including an engine size of less than three litres, an age ranging from new to a maximum of ten years old by
the end of the hire-purchase agreement and with a maximum mileage of 100,000 miles are financed. The
majority of vehicles financed are used cars. Finance term periods vary from 24 months to 60 months with a
maximum loan of £15,000. The APR on new lending during June 2011 was in the range of 11.19 per cent.
to 35.45 per cent.

Secure Trust Bank’s target customer base for this product is typically from customers considered to be in
socio-economic groups C1, C2 and D. The Company distributes its motor finance products through UK motor
dealers and motor dealer brokers. New dealer relationships are acquired through a UK-wide motor finance
sales team with all introducers subject to a strict vetting policy.

3.        Retail point of sale finance

                                                                                 As at/year ended                          As at/six months ended
                                                                    31 December      31 December                 30 June               30 June
                                                                                 2009                   2010                     2010                   2011
                                                                                 £000                   £000                     £000                   £000

Lending balances                                                     6,437                21,640                  14,396                32,053
Revenue                                                                      458                  2,066                       615                  1,603

Secure Trust Bank’s retail point of sale finance business started lending in 2009 and provides point of sale
finance for in-store and online retailers. Net outstanding loans as at 30 June 2011 totalled £32.1 million
(£14.4 million as at 30 June 2010).

Retail point of sale finance products are unsecured, fixed rate and fixed term loans with payments received
monthly in arrears. Loans vary in term from 6 months to 48 months and range from £250 to £12,000
depending on the type of product being financed. The loans are either interest bearing or promotional credit
subsidised by retailers or suppliers. Secure Trust Bank does not pay retailers commissions. The APR on new
lending during June 2011 was up to 19.50 per cent.
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The Company focuses on ten sub-markets. The three largest of these as at 30 June 2011 are:

•          Musical instruments – the provision of in-store point of sale finance for the purchase of musical
instruments through specialist retailers;

•          Cycles – the provision of in-store point of sale finance for the purchase of cycles; and

•          Computer equipment – the provision of point of sale finance for the leasing of computer equipment.

Other markets in which the Company operates include gym equipment, motor parts, outdoor pursuits,
furniture, leisure, jewellery and funerals. Secure Trust Bank provides finance through a range of retailers
including household names such as Evans Cycles and PC World. The Company has arrangements in place
with a number of Affinity Partners including the Arts Council, ACTSmart and RentSmart.

In addition to in-store finance, Secure Trust Bank has an online e-tailer proposition which is distributed in
partnership with Pay4Later Limited (“Pay4Later”), a UK provider of web interfaces for online point of sale
credit. Retailers on the Pay4Later platform include Andertons Music, bathtek.com, Power Plate, SuperFit,
The Great Furniture Trading Company, Toolstop and WorldStores.

Lending is restricted to UK-residents who are either employed or self-employed with a target customer base
of customers considered to be in socio-economic groups A, B and C1.

4.        Personal unsecured lending

                                                                    As at/year ended                                       As at/six months ended
                                         31 December      31 December      31 December                 30 June               30 June
                                                      2008                   2009                   2010                     2010                   2011
                                                      £000                   £000                   £000                     £000                   £000

Lending balances                          7,300                  9,590                22,407                  14,704                34,552
Revenue                                        3,499                  3,290                  3,807                    1,711                  2,621

Secure Trust Bank has provided personal unsecured lending for nearly 35 years. Net outstanding loans
totalled £34.6 million as at 30 June 2011 (£14.7 million as at 30 June 2010). Following the decision in 2007
to materially reduce new lending in response to deteriorating lending conditions, new lending was increased
in 2009 and since then has delivered annual growth. Net new lending volumes amounted to £12.1 million in
the six months to 30 June 2011.

Personal unsecured loans are fixed rate, fixed term products with payments received monthly in arrears. Loan
terms are between 12 months and 60 months with advances varying from £500 to £15,000. Loans are
provided to customers for a variety of purposes which might include, for example, home improvements,
personal debt consolidation and for the purchase of vehicles. The average APR on new lending during June
2011 was 19.10 per cent.

Distribution of unsecured personal loans is through brokers, existing customers and Affinity Partners, and
targeted to UK-resident customers considered to be in socio-economic groups A to D who are either
employed or self-employed.

5.        Acquired portfolios

                                                                                 As at/year ended                          As at/six months ended
                                                                    31 December      31 December                 30 June               30 June
                                                                                 2009                   2010                     2010                   2011
                                                                                 £000                   £000                     £000                   £000

Lending balances                                                   25,465                10,723                  16,965                  5,807
Revenue                                                                   5,547                  6,063                    3,678                  1,383

Secure Trust Bank acquired two portfolios of unsecured personal loans from Liverpool Victoria
(£16.7 million consideration) and Citigroup (£21.1 million consideration) in February 2009 and August 2009
respectively. Both portfolios were acquired at a discount to the gross value of the loans. As at 30 June 2011,
the Company had exceeded its targeted recovery for these portfolios.
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6.        Affinity Partners and potential joint ventures

Secure Trust Bank has also developed its business through establishing and growing multiple distribution
relationships. Examples include the relationship with RentSmart, which includes lending to SMEs and retail
customers for the leasing of computer and electrical equipment, the e-tailer proposition with Pay4Later and
the current account product, “Bank in a Box”, launched with Payzone.

Secure Trust Bank is currently in discussions to establish a consumer finance lending joint venture with a
third party unsecured personal lender. It is anticipated that the joint venture will combine the origination and
loan servicing capabilities of the unsecured personal lender with the customer deposit based funding and
balance sheet strength of Secure Trust Bank. The unsecured personal lender typically lends to customers
from socio-economic groups C and D. It is proposed that the joint venture would acquire a portfolio of
personal instalment loans, funded by equity provided by the unsecured personal lender and an initial loan
facility of approximately £50 million provided by Secure Trust Bank. The loan facility would expand to fund
new loans originated by the joint venture. Secure Trust Bank would have control over the joint venture and
it is expected that it will be consolidated for regulatory and accounting purposes by Secure Trust Bank.
Secure Trust Bank has not yet finalised the terms of the joint venture with the unsecured personal lender and
legal agreements are being negotiated.

The Company is also considering other potential joint venture opportunities.

7.        Customer deposits

                                                      As at                   As at                   As at                     As at                   As at
                                         31 December      31 December      31 December                 30 June               30 June
                                                      2008                   2009                   2010                     2010                   2011
                                                      £000                   £000                   £000                     £000                   £000

Current/demand accounts             5,147                26,418                27,514                  27,229                28,741
Term deposits                             30,681                66,924              126,264                136,049              188,260
                                              ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––             ––––––––           ––––––––
Customer deposits                    35,828                93,342              153,778                163,278              217,001                                              ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––             ––––––––           ––––––––
Secure Trust Bank’s deposit activities comprise deposit accounts and fee-based accounts, being fee-based
current accounts and the OneBill account. As at 30 June 2011, customer deposits totalled £217.0 million.

7.1      Deposit accounts

Secure Trust Bank’s deposit accounts consist of instant access accounts, notice accounts and fixed
term, fixed price bonds. As at 30 June 2011, a significant majority of deposit accounts were below the
FSCS limit, which as at the date of this document is £85,000.

Key features of the current range of deposit accounts of the Company are set out below.

Instant access

•          Minimum deposit of £1, maximum deposit of £100,000.

•          AER of between 0.25 and 0.5 per cent.

Notice accounts

•          60, 90, 120 and 183 day notice periods.

•          Minimum balance of £1,000.

•          Maximum balance of £1,000,000 for sole account holders and £2,000,000 for business and
joint accounts.

•          AER of between 2.5 per cent. and 3.5 per cent.

•          In addition, the Secure Trust Tracker account, which has a minimum balance of £1 and a
maximum balance of £50,000, an AER of 1 per cent., and a 60 day notice period.
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Term bonds

•          Two, three, four and five year bonds.

•          Minimum balance of £1,000.

•          Maximum balance of £1,000,000 for sole account holders and £2,000,000 for business and
joint accounts.

•          AER of between 4.01 per cent. (two year bond) and 5.1 per cent. (five year bond).

By virtue of its focus on higher margin lending, the absence of large fixed overheads in the form of a
branch network and a policy of not cross-subsidising loss making products with profitable ones, the
Company is able to offer competitive deposit interest rates and has been successful in attracting term
deposits from a wide range of personal and non-personal customers.

Methods of attracting deposits include information on price comparison websites (such as
Moneysupermarket) about the deposit accounts offered by the Company. In May 2011, Secure Trust
Bank launched fixed rate deposit bonds in two, three and five year maturities. Within six weeks the
Company raised net deposits of £63 million achieving its desired funding maturity profile.

7.2      Fee-based current account

In late 2010, Secure Trust Bank relaunched its fee-based current account product. As at 30 June 2011,
the fee-based current account product had been taken up by approximately 14,000 customers with the
account experiencing growth averaging 1,000 new accounts per month for the six months to 30 June
2011. Customers pay a monthly fee of £12.50 and receive the following benefits:

•          no fee for returning items unpaid;

•          receipt of credit interest;

•          a prepaid Mastercard; and

•          the ability to earn cash rewards at a number of high street retailers (including Asda, Boots,
Halfords and Topshop).

Current accounts are distributed via the Company’s website, price comparison websites, including
Moneysupermarket and Compareprepaid, and through a direct outbound sales team. Commission is
payable to introducers based on the new accounts opened as a result of their introduction.

Secure Trust Bank has recently launched a trial for its “Bank in a Box” product through 20 retailers
which are part of the Payzone network. Payzone is one of the UK’s largest independent network of
payment agents with 20,000 outlets throughout the UK including high street convenience stores.
“Bank in a Box” is intended to be another route to market for Secure Trust Bank’s existing current
account product. It can be purchased from a retailer, by paying a cash set-up fee of £12.50. The
customer is provided with a unique code which is keyed into a dedicated website to open his or her
account. The product mainly targets customers considered to be in socio-economic groups D and E.

7.3      OneBill

The OneBill account has been in operation for many years. The product is designed to aid customers
with their household budgeting and payments process. Customers provide Secure Trust Bank with
details of their annual bills (including rent, utility bills, insurance and telephone line rental) which
Secure Trust Bank aggregates and then calculates a fixed weekly or monthly payment schedule in
addition to ensuring the bills are paid on time. This enables customers to spread the cost of their bills
throughout the year in addition to receiving direct debit discounts and all supplier contact being
handled by Secure Trust Bank. As at 30 June 2011, the Company had c.29,500 OneBill customers.
The Company receives a monthly fee of £16.50 from OneBill customers, who also have the option of
paying weekly.
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The product has been closed to new customers since 2010 due to the manual processes involved in setting
up and servicing the accounts and the resultant lack of scalability. As a result the number of customers for
this product is on a declining trend.

8.        Infrastructure

8.1      Head office

Secure Trust Bank operates mainly from its head office premises in Solihull where the Company
employs staff fulfilling management, finance, risk, compliance, customer services, collections, IT,
property, marketing and business development, HR and training and administration roles. The
Company had 260 employees as at 30 June 2011.

8.2      Information technology platform

Secure Trust Bank uses a variety of recently developed proprietary systems and third party packages
to support its business and provides business support services to the Arbuthnot Group.

8.3      Shared services

In addition to the information technology services provided to the Arbuthnot Group (referred to
above), the Company receives company secretarial, treasury and certain other services from the
Arbuthnot Group. Secure Trust Bank also receives its insurance cover as part of the insurances
arranged by Arbuthnot. For further information on shared services between Secure Trust Bank and
Arbuthnot to be provided following Admission, please refer to the Services Agreement summarised
in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document. Under the Services Agreement, the aggregate payments
to be made by Arbuthnot to the Company, and by the Company to Arbuthnot, for the 12 months
following Admission are currently anticipated to be between £220,000 and £250,000 respectively. It
is anticipated that a net payment will be made by Arbuthnot to the Company under the Services
Agreement of approximately £30,000 in respect of such period.

8.4      Internal audit services

Since 2008, internal audit work for the Company has been carried out by Ernst & Young LLP.

9.        Competitors

Whilst Secure Trust Bank’s key competitors vary across its asset product lines, in the opinion of the
Directors, the general level of competition within the Company’s chosen lending markets has reduced since
2007 enabling Secure Trust Bank to exploit opportunities in these markets.

The Directors believe that Secure Trust Bank’s principal competitors in each of its asset lines are set out
below:

•          Motor Finance: Marsh, Blackhorse, Moneybarn and Advantage.

•          Retail point of sale finance: Hitachi Capital, Barclays, LaSer, Ikano and V12finance.com.

•          Unsecured personal lending: banks and building societies.

With regards to deposits, Secure Trust Bank competes predominantly with building societies, new entrants
to the UK deposit market such as Aldermore and Shawbrook and overseas banks such as ICICI and
ING Direct.

10.      Strategy for growth

Secure Trust Bank’s strategy is to build on its current position as an established UK retail bank through a
focus on carefully selected and attractively priced segments of the market, prudent underwriting and a
prudent approach to capital and liquidity. It intends to continue growing its business through professional
and responsible lending across existing and new lending segments, the introduction of new Affinity Partners
and joint ventures and selective acquisitions of loan books and businesses, funded by capital and customer
deposits.
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10.1    Growth in existing lending segments

The Directors believe that there is significant scope to grow Secure Trust Bank’s existing motor
finance, retail point of sale finance and unsecured personal lending businesses. Secure Trust Bank has
in place a number of successful arrangements with Affinity Partners and has identified potential joint
venture opportunities. The Directors believe there are opportunities within the market, including
potential joint ventures which, if implemented by the Company, should help grow its loan book.

10.2    Expansion into new lending segments

The Directors believe that there is significant scope to expand Secure Trust Bank’s lending activities
beyond the current lending segments and have identified a number of attractively priced, under-served
markets, including the provision of:

•          personal unsecured loans directly to new customers through the internet;

•          top up motor finance loans and other ancillary finance, where another finance provider also
provides funding;

•          finance to customers for home improvements using new Affinity Partners; and

•          finance to small and medium sized enterprises including those involved in installing renewable
energy systems.

10.3    Acquisitions and joint ventures

Secure Trust Bank has a proven track record of acquiring and managing asset portfolios. The Directors
believe the ongoing capital and funding constraints being experienced by other lenders is resulting in
potential portfolio acquisition opportunities for Secure Trust Bank.

The Directors have also identified a number of businesses that they believe could, if acquired by the
Company, enhance the Company’s new business origination. These opportunities will be given further
consideration post Admission.

Secure Trust Bank is currently in discussions to establish a consumer finance lending joint venture
with a third party unsecured personal lender. For further information on this potential joint venture,
please refer to the summary of such potential arrangements in paragraph 6 of this Part 2.

10.4    Fee-based current and budget accounts

The fee-based current account product has experienced growth, averaging 1,000 new accounts per
month for the six months to 30 June 2011, and the Company intends to roll out new products in 2012.

11.      Credit Risk Management

11.1    Credit underwriting policies/procedures by product

Secure Trust Bank has automated underwriting processes for both its motor finance and retail point
of sale finance businesses. The Company anticipates implementing an automated underwriting
process for its personal unsecured lending business by the end of 2011. The underwriting policies and
procedures for each of the core lending products are detailed below. Secure Trust Bank is a member
of Credit Industry Fraud Avoidance System (“CIFAS”), a reciprocal database used by financial
institutions to share information relating to fraud.

Following a successful application and underwriting process, the appropriate documentation is sent to
the payout team to complete the settlement process. The payout process requires authorisation in
addition to the requirement to complete a series of validation checks to ensure all information has
been received prior to payout.

Credit risk is monitored on a monthly basis by the Credit Risk Committee which reviews performance
of key portfolios including new business volumes, collections performance, provisioning levels and
provisioning methodology. The Credit Risk Committee is chaired by the Head of Credit Risk and
attendees include the Chief Financial Officer, the Operations and Risk Director and the Lending
Director. The minutes of Credit Risk Committee meetings are reviewed by the Executive Committee,
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comprised of the Executive Directors and the Key Management Team. The monthly financial
management accounts provide the Executive Committee with detailed portfolio performance data by
lending product.

Motor finance

All motor finance applications are credit scored using a bespoke scorecard that splits customers into
four risk tiers (premier, platinum, gold and purple) based on the applicant’s historical payment
performance on Equifax reported credit commitments, a quantitative assessment of the applicant’s
ability to repay the loan from an affordability perspective and vehicle characteristics including loan to
value, vehicle age, vehicle mileage and engine size. The vehicle being financed must also pass an HPI
check which is obtained by the Company. An HPI check is intended to identify where another finance
provider already has an interest in the vehicle. Pricing is determined by the risk tier with strict
underwriting criteria followed. In certain circumstances, additional identity and validation checks are
performed as part of the underwriting process.

If an application is accepted, the customer’s signature and all required documentation are
electronically sent by the intermediary, validated and stored by Secure Trust Bank. A document
checklist and a warrant representation is also signed by the intermediary. The process is paperless,
other than the receipt of agreement documentation, and is largely automated with system-driven
credit, identification and vehicle checks. In certain instances an application is referred to an
underwriter for approval against Secure Trust Bank’s defined underwriting policy.

Retail point of sale finance

Retail point of sale finance loan applications are received from retailers via Secure Trust Bank’s
internet portal or the Pay4Later platform, with the vast majority of lending decisions being automated
through a combination of Secure Trust Bank’s proprietary decision engine, a customer scorecard
provided by Equifax and an assessment of the applicant’s ability to repay using information supplied
by Equifax.

If the application is accepted the customer’s signature and all required documentation are obtained
electronically from the retailer, validated and stored by Secure Trust Bank. A document checklist and
warrant representation is also signed by the retailer. Like motor finance, the process is paperless, other
than the receipt of agreement documentation, and is largely automated.

Personal unsecured lending

Personal unsecured lending decisions are made using a combination of automated underwriting
processes and manual checks. The Company receives information from the applicant regarding their
circumstances and this, together with additional credit information sought from Equifax, is entered
into a credit assessment tool provided by Equifax. This provides a credit score for the applicant which
is checked against Secure Trust Bank’s own credit matrix. All applicants are asked to complete a full
income and expenditure assessment to determine affordability.

If the application is accepted, the customer’s signature and all required documentation are obtained
from the customer, validated and stored by Secure Trust Bank.

11.2    Bad debt provisions

Secure Trust Bank maintains a bad debt provisioning policy in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. Bad debt provisions are accrued from the first occurrence of a loss event, which usually
involves a missed payment. Secure Trust Bank holds a full provision (less an estimate of recovery)
against all loans that are 120 days past due. The write off policy and provisioning methodology for
each product line is reviewed bi-annually by the Credit Risk Committee and is routinely reviewed by
the Directors.

The bad debt charge as a percentage of lending assets for the twelve month period to 30 June 2011
was 2.6 per cent.
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11.3    Collections, arrears management and recoveries

Secure Trust Bank has a dedicated collections department responsible for arrears management across
the Company’s lending portfolios.

Collection strategy employed by Secure Trust Bank is reviewed regularly by the Credit Risk
Committee, and collections procedures are required to adhere to the principles set by the OFT in its
Debt Collection Guidelines. All calls are recorded with at least three calls per collector per month
being subject to audit checks. All arrangements relating to loan arrears made with customers are
tracked.

Collections procedures

If a customer falls into arrears or shows early indications of pending arrears (for example cancellation
of a direct debit), the customer is allocated to a collector. Key responsibilities of the collections team
are to assess what the customer can afford and to put in place a plan to pay arrears whilst maintaining
contractual payments. The Company has an automated system to monitor customers in arrears.

Letters are issued confirming arrangements entered into with the customer and the system tracks these
to check if and when the agreed payments are received. If a customer breaks the agreed arrangement,
they are issued with a further letter and moved into a high priority collections workstream. The
Company also considers external placement of balances outstanding including debt sale, debt
collection activity or legal proceedings. In relation to the motor finance business, any surplus
remaining following a repossession is reimbursed to the customer following the deduction of
applicable fees. Where fraud is suspected the Company brings forward its repossession procedures.

12.      Liquidity

12.1    Funding

Secure Trust Bank is funded by capital and customer deposits, comprising deposit accounts and fee-
based accounts. Secure Trust Bank has a £3 million subordinated loan from Arbuthnot, which
contributes to the Company’s total capital. Secure Trust Bank does not have any other funding
facilities in place and has no exposure to the bank wholesale markets.

12.2    Liquidity management

Secure Trust Bank is a regulated BIPRU bank subject to the liquidity rules of the FSA. Secure Trust
Bank has a formal governance structure in place to manage and mitigate liquidity risk on a day to day
basis. The Board sets and approves the Company’s liquidity risk management strategy. The Asset and
Liability Committee, comprising senior executives of the Company, monitors liquidity risk. Key
liquidity risk management information is reported by the finance team and monitored by the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on a daily basis. The Asset and Liability Committee
meets monthly to review liquidity risk against set thresholds and risk indicators including early
warning indicators, liquidity risk tolerance levels and ILAA metrics.

As an authorised UK banking institution, Secure Trust Bank has agreed a liquidity policy with the
FSA under which it will maintain at all times adequate liquidity resources, both in terms of amount
and quality. The Board routinely reviews a liquidity policy that satisfies the FSA’s requirements and,
amongst other things, the systems and controls in place for liquidity management.

Liquidity is measured at a solo Secure Trust Bank level as per FSA requirements, including the
preparation of an ILAA. The ILAA is updated annually and forms an integral part of the Company’s
three year planning and budgeting process.

Secure Trust Bank invests its surplus funds principally in UK Government securities and deposits with
Arbuthnot Latham (which are in turn deposited at the Bank of England). As at 30 June 2011,
£33.7 million was deposited with Arbuthnot Latham. Currently, as part of the Arbuthnot Group, the
Company is not eligible for its own Bank of England account.
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The Company also manages its liquidity risk by seeking to match the maturity profile of its customer
deposits and lending assets, which are generally short to medium term in nature. Secure Trust Bank’s
customer loans and deposits are broadly matched in maturity over a five year period with no lending
exceeding five years, deposit accounts ranging from instant access to five year bonds, and over a third
of the loan book having a maturity of 12 months or less. For further information on the maturity
periods of the Company’s loans and deposits, please refer to Note 4 of the notes to the Accountant’s
Report on the Company contained in Part 5 of this document.

12.3    Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is monitored at the monthly Asset and Liability Committee meetings and
consideration is given to hedging any interest rate risk for example through the use of interest rate
caps.

13.      Regulatory Capital

Secure Trust Bank is a regulated BIPRU bank subject to the regulatory capital rules of the FSA.

As at 30 June 2011, Secure Trust Bank had a core tier one capital ratio of 16.4 per cent. and an overall capital
ratio of 19.7 per cent., reflecting a prudent approach to capital.

Secure Trust Bank’s regulatory capital position has been and on Admission will be monitored as part of the
Arbuthnot group ICAAP within which Secure Trust Bank’s capital resources and requirements are calculated
separately. The ICAAP is updated annually with the capital requirements forming an integral part of the
Company’s three year planning and budgeting process.

The Directors have considered the proposed changes to the regulatory capital regime under Basel III and
based on the information currently available with regard to the regulatory capital changes do not expect to
have to raise additional capital to meet the expected requirements.

14.      Current Trading and Prospects

Since 30 June 2011, Secure Trust Bank has continued to perform well with total income and net lending
ahead of the same period last year. The Company continues to grow its customer base at a net rate of
3 per cent. per month, across lending, current accounts and deposit accounts.

The Directors believe the Company is well positioned to capitalise on the opportunities in its chosen markets
and view the financial prospects of the current year with confidence.

15.      Directors, Key Management Team and Employees

15.1    Executive Directors

Paul Lynam ACIB, AMCT, Fifs (Chief Executive Officer)

Paul Lynam is an experienced and well qualified career banker. He joined Secure Trust Bank
in September 2010, having spent 22 years working for NatWest and RBS. He is an Associate of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers and has Associate Membership of the Association of Corporate
Treasurers. Until recently Paul was a governor and trustee of IFS School of Finance for whom he has
taught and written examination materials for their BSc level students. Prior to leaving RBS, Paul was
the Managing Director, Banking, for RBS/NatWest’s SME banking business across the UK. This
comprised nearly 7,000 staff and over 1.1 million customers. Before that Paul spent four years as the
Managing Director of Lombard North Central PLC, running the largest asset finance and leasing
business in Europe. During his career Paul has undertaken roles in branch banking, business banking,
corporate and commercial banking, strategy, performance management, lending and central head
office functions. While a full time employee of the Company, Paul will remain an executive director
of Arbuthnot following Admission.
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Neeraj Kapur BEng, ACGI, FCA, CF, FCIBS (Chief Financial Officer)

Neeraj Kapur has over 22 years financial services experience spent in both the accounting and
banking industries. He holds a degree in Aeronautical Engineering from Imperial College, London, is
a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales (“ICAEW”), and Council and Vice Chair of the of the ICAEW
Financial Services Faculty. Neeraj qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1993 and in total spent 11
years working in professional practice, including time at Arthur Andersen. He joined RBS in 2001 and
has undertaken a number of roles which included until recently Chief Financial Officer of Lombard
North Central PLC.

15.2    Non-Executive Directors

Henry Angest LLL (Non- Executive Chairman)

Henry Angest is an experienced and respected banker. He is a past Master of the Worshipful Company
of International Bankers, Chairman and Chief Executive of Arbuthnot and Chairman of Secure Trust
Bank PLC, Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited and Arbuthnot Securities Limited. He gained extensive
national and international experience as an executive of the DOW Chemical Company and DOW
Banking Corporation. He was chairman of the banking committee of the London Investment Banking
Association and a director of the Institute of Directors. He has a law degree from the University of
Basel, Switzerland and is an honorary fellow of the University of the Highlands and Islands.

Andrew Salmon ACA (Non-Executive Director)

Andrew Salmon joined Arbuthnot Banking Group in 1997 and is currently the Chief Operating
Officer and Head of Business Development of Arbuthnot. He was appointed to the Board of the
Company on 8 July 2003. He was previously a director of Hambros Bank Limited and qualified as a
Chartered Accountant with KPMG.

Paul Marrow ACIB (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Paul Marrow has over 35 years banking experience and has, over the last decade, been responsible for
the Commercial Banking and Specialist Corporate Banking business divisions of RBS Group in the
UK. Prior to retiring from RBS in July 2009, Paul was involved in a change programme in the RBS
UK banking business. Paul is currently the Chairman of JCB Finance Limited, a joint venture between
J C Bamford Excavators Limited and RBS Group. Paul holds banking qualifications, gained by
examination.

Carol Sergeant (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Carol Sergeant has extensive banking experience gained over a 37 year career with the Bank of
England, the Financial Services Authority (which she helped to set up) and latterly as the Chief Risk
Officer and a member of the Group Executive Committee of Lloyds Banking Group PLC. Carol holds
a BA from Cambridge and a MBA from the CASS Business School.

15.3    Key Management Team members

Kevin Hayes BA (Oxon) ACIB (Operations and Risk Director)

Kevin Hayes is an experienced and qualified banker. He spent 23 years undertaking various senior
roles in banking, asset finance, international banking and project roles with ABN AMRO, NatWest
and RBS prior to joining the Company in late 2010.

David Nield (Lending Director)

David Nield has over 25 years financial services experience gained from undertaking director level
roles in Barclays including Head of Asset Finance, Deputy CEO Iveco Capital Europe. Prior to
joining Barclays David was a member of the executive committee of GE Capital Motor Finance.
David joined the Company in July 2009.
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Siân Rogers BA (Hons) (Head of Compliance)

Siân Rogers has 14 years’ experience in financial services companies, 12 of these in compliance
undertaking a variety of roles. She joined the Company in late 2010.

Jonathan Wilson (Head of Marketing and Sales)

Jonathan Wilson has had 26 years’ experience in financial services, including insurance, payment
services and banking. The majority of his career has been at the Company. He has held various
management roles in operations, projects, marketing, sales and product innovation.

Jon Bowers (Head of Strategic Business Development)

Jon Bowers has over 28 years financial services experience undertaking director level roles within
banking and specialist finance (corporate asset finance and international trade) with NatWest and
RBS. This included board roles in a number of Lombard North Central PLC offshore subsidiaries. Jon
has professional qualifications in the areas of corporate governance and company direction, banking
and international trade. Jon joined the Company in March 2011.

Anne McKenning (Group Head of HR)

Anne McKenning has worked in the Financial Service industry for over 25 years with the last 17 years
in various HR roles. Previous employers include Lloyds TSB, Countrywide Assured and Barclays.
She joined Secure Trust Bank in June 2007 assuming responsibility for Group HR in 2009. She is
CIPD qualified and is also a qualified Employment Law Specialist Paralegal. While a full time
employee of the Company, Anne will spend a proportion of her time supporting certain Arbuthnot
group HR functions, and will continue in her role as Group Head of HR for the Arbuthnot Group.

15.4    Employees

The average number of employees of the Company during the following periods is shown below:

Year ended Six months ended
                                                            31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                          2008                2009                2010                2010                2011
Directors (including

non-executive directors)                               7                    8                    9                    9                    9
Management                                                   10                  10                  12                  11                  12
Administration                                             238                194                185                183                202
                                                           ————      ————      ————      ————      ————
Total                                                             255                212                206                203                223
                                                           ————      ————      ————      ————      ————
Secure Trust Bank had a total of 260 employees as at 30 June 2011, and 257 employees as at the date
of this document, including six executive and non-executive directors. All of Secure Trust Bank’s
employees are based in the UK and Secure Trust Bank does not have any temporary workers.

16.      Incentive Arrangements

The Directors believe that an important factor in the Company’s success is its ability to motivate and retain
its key employees.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the structure of remuneration for executive Directors and senior
management with a view to developing and implementing remuneration policies following Admission which
both provide an appropriate motivational framework and align the interests of the senior management with
the performance of the business and the interests of the Shareholders.

As part of this exercise, the Remuneration Committee has decided that the introduction of the Share Option
Scheme will support the Company’s business strategy in the future.

The Share Option Scheme, which was adopted on 17 October 2011, will focus participants on delivering
strong year-on-year annual performance and align their longer term interests with those of Shareholders. The
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Share Option Scheme also reflects the Remuneration Committee’s policy of linking remuneration to the
performance of the Company.

The ABI Principles of Remuneration (the “ABI Principles”) apply to companies with a main market listing
and therefore will not apply to the Company following Admission. Whilst the Directors consider the terms
of the Share Option Scheme to be appropriate for the Company, the Share Option Scheme does not comply
with the ABI Principles in a number of ways. The principal ways in which the Share Option Scheme does
not comply with the ABI Principles include, inter alia:

•          the ABI Principles recommend the phasing of grants of options on an annual basis. Under the Share
Option Scheme, the Remuneration Committee may grant options from time to time and it is intended
that various individuals will receive substantial grants on Admission (in relation to which, see
paragraph 6.1 of Part 7 of this document);

•          the ABI Principles recommend that commitments to issue new shares should not exceed 5 per cent.
of issued shares in any rolling ten year period for all discretionary schemes (such as the Share Option
Scheme). The terms of the Share Option Scheme envisage that 10 per cent. of the number of Ordinary
Shares as at Admission may be used for option grants; and

•          the ABI Principles recommend that on resignation or termination for cause, unvested awards should
normally lapse (as they do under the Share Option Scheme). In typical “good leaver” circumstances
(for example death, disability, ill-health, redundancy, sale of a part of the business), awards should
vest on a pro-rata basis (i.e. to the extent performance and time-vesting conditions are satisfied). On
leaving employment, the terms of the Share Option Scheme allow the Remuneration Committee,
acting fairly and reasonably and taking due consideration of the circumstances, to determine that
awards should vest in full. In determining whether to exercise this discretion, the Remuneration
Committee must satisfy itself that the early exercise of an option does not constitute a reward for
failure.

Further details of the principal features of the Share Option Scheme are set out in paragraph 4 of Part 7 of
this document.

Conditional on Admission, the Company has made certain awards of options over Ordinary Shares to certain
individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Certain such awards are described in paragraph 6.1 of Part 7 of
this document.

In addition to the Share Option Scheme, the Company will, following Admission, operate a discretionary
bonus scheme (the “Bonus Scheme”) in relation to certain employees. Any award of bonuses under the
Bonus Scheme will be made at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee.

The Directors believe, on the basis that the Company is a Tier Three Firm for the purposes of the
Remuneration Code, that the terms of both the Share Option Scheme, the Bonus Scheme and the other
aspects of the remuneration arrangements of the Company are compliant with the requirements of the
Remuneration Code in force as at the date of this document.

17.      Corporate Governance

17.1    Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Company, as a company whose shares will be admitted to trading on AIM, is not obliged to meet
the requirements of the Code. Nevertheless, as a matter of best practice the Company will adopt many
of the Code’s recommendations from Admission. The Board has established Audit, Remuneration,
Nomination and Risk Committees with formally delegated duties and responsibilities.

Rule 21 of the AIM Rules for Companies regarding dealings in the Ordinary Shares will apply to the
Company. The Company will take all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by the Directors and
applicable employees. The Company has adopted and will operate a share dealing code for Directors
and relevant employees consistent with the Model Code on share dealings.
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17.2    The Board

Under the Articles and pursuant to the Relationship Agreement, one third of the Board will comprise
directors who will be appointed by Arbuthnot (“Arbuthnot Directors”), one third of the Board will
comprise directors who will be independent directors (“Independent Directors”), and one third of
the Board will comprise directors who will be executive directors and full-time employees of the
Company (“Executive Directors”).

As at Admission, the Board will comprise six directors and the two Arbuthnot Directors will be Henry
Angest and Andrew Salmon, the two Independent Directors will be Paul Marrow and Carol Sergeant,
and the two Executive Directors will be Paul Lynam and Neeraj Kapur. While a full time employee
of the Company, Paul Lynam will remain an executive director of Arbuthnot following Admission.

Under the Articles, the Chairman of the Company (Henry Angest) has the benefit of a casting vote at
meetings of both the Board and the Shareholders, in the event that there is an equality of votes.

Under the Relationship Agreement, the composition of the Board may be varied by the passing of a
resolution of the Board acting by a majority, such majority to include the Arbuthnot Directors and the
Independent Directors. The Articles also contain provisions relating to the alteration of the
composition of the Board.

Further details of the principal features of the Relationship Agreement are set out in paragraph 9.2 of
Part 7 of this document.

17.3    Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to oversee on behalf of the Board the financial reporting
processes of the Company and the external audit thereof, the internal control of the business of the
Company and the work of the Company’s internal audit function in reviewing the Company’s systems
of internal control.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review arrangements established by the
Directors for compliance with regulatory and financial reporting requirements, monitor the integrity
of the Company’s statutory accounts and other financial statements, oversee the work of external
auditors, monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function and liaise with
the audit committee of Arbuthnot. The Audit Committee has the authority to obtain any information
it requires from any employee or external party, and at least once a year will meet with the Company’s
external auditors and internal audit function without any Executive Directors being present.

The Audit Committee as at Admission shall be comprised of Andrew Salmon, Paul Marrow and
Carol Sergeant. The first chair of the Audit Committee shall be Paul Marrow. The quorum for
meetings of the Audit Committee will be two members, one of which shall be Andrew Salmon.

17.4    Risk Committee

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Committee are to approve trading positions in excess of the
limits set by the management of the Company, oversee the development, implementation and
maintenance of the Company’s overall risk management framework and its risk appetite, strategy,
principles and policies, oversee the Company’s risk exposures, risk/return and proposed
improvements to the Company’s risk management framework, oversee adherence to Company risk
principles, policies and standards, and at all times act in adherence with and with regard to the risk
principles, policies and standards adopted by Arbuthnot and keep Arbuthnot regularly informed of any
risk issues or breaches faced by the Company which may affect the Arbuthnot Group.

The Risk Committee as at Admission shall be comprised of Andrew Salmon, Paul Lynam and Paul
Marrow. The first chair of the Risk Committee shall be Andrew Salmon. The quorum for meetings of
the Risk Committee will be two members, one of which shall be the Chairman or his alternate.
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17.5    Remuneration Committee

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review the salaries and other
benefits to be paid to Executive Directors having regard to any roles that may be performed by such
Directors as directors of any other group companies in the corporate group of which the Company
forms a part, apply the Company’s remuneration code and monitor its implementation, review the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, consider and if thought fit award, any incentives to be offered under
the Share Option Scheme and pension arrangements, subject to the achievement of specific criteria.
The Remuneration Committee is also generally to follow the ICSA Guidance on the Terms of
Reference for Remuneration Committees.

The Remuneration Committee as at Admission shall be comprised of Henry Angest, Paul Marrow and
Carol Sergeant. The first chair of the Remuneration Committee shall be Henry Angest. The quorum
for meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be two members.

17.6    Nomination Committee

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the number of Directors and
the balance between Executive and Independent Directors, recommend new Independent Director and
Executive Director appointments to the Board and the length of term for which a Non-Executive
Director may be expected to serve, and have regard to provisions of the Relationship Agreement when
performing its duties. The Nomination Committee is also generally to follow the ICSA Guidance on
the Terms of Reference for Nomination Committees.

The Nomination Committee as at Admission shall be comprised of Henry Angest, Paul Marrow and
Carol Sergeant. The first chair of the Nomination Committee shall be Henry Angest. The quorum for
meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be two members.

17.7    Relationship with Arbuthnot

The Board recognises that, since Arbuthnot will retain a controlling interest in the Company on
Admission, it is important to establish a framework within which the Company may carry out its
operations with a degree of independence from Arbuthnot, having regard to the significant
shareholding Arbuthnot will retain in the Company following Admission.

The Company has entered into the Relationship Agreement with Arbuthnot, which governs certain
aspects of the relationship between the Company and Arbuthnot following Admission. The term of
the Relationship Agreement will be from Admission until the earlier of Arbuthnot ceasing to hold
50 per cent. or more of the voting rights attached to the Ordinary Shares, and the Ordinary Shares
ceasing to be admitted to trading on AIM or any other regulated investment market.

The Relationship Agreement provides as follows, subject to the other specific provisions of the
Relationship Agreement:

•          the Company will have its own management dedicated to working full-time for the promotion
of the success of the Company;

•          it is acknowledged that it is appropriate that the views of Arbuthnot as a substantial shareholder
in the Company are taken into account by the Directors in making decisions in relation to the
management and running of the Company; and

•          in making decisions in relation to the management and running of the Company the Directors
shall have regard to the interests of all the Shareholders.

The Relationship Agreement recognises the right of Arbuthnot to exercise its rights as a holder of
Ordinary Shares in what it considers to be in its best interest. It must not do so in breach of the
restrictions in the Relationship Agreement on voting on certain related party transactions or to cancel
the Company’s listing and admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM. Subject to these
limited exceptions Arbuthnot would therefore be free to exercise its rights as Shareholder in the
Company.
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Key matters governed by the Relationship Agreement include, inter alia, the following:

•          the right of Arbuthnot to appoint one third of the Directors of the Company;

•          restrictions on the ability of the Directors appointed by Arbuthnot to count in the quorum and
vote on matters which constitute Related Party Transactions (as defined in the Relationship
Agreement);

•          the right of Arbuthnot to require a dividend to be paid by the Company (subject to the
Company’s financial position, regulatory requirements and certain other matters); and

•          the Company shall prepare a business plan for the Group for each financial year which shall,
to be effective, require to be approved and adopted by resolution of the Board passed by a
majority vote (of which at least one Director voting in favour is a director appointed by
Arbuthnot) of those Directors present at a Board meeting duly convened and held.

Further details of the principal features of the Relationship Agreement are set out in paragraph 9.2 of
Part 7 of this document.

In addition, following Admission, certain services will be provided by the Company to Arbuthnot, and
by Arbuthnot to the Company. The Company has entered into the Services Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company will provide such services to Arbuthnot and vice versa. Further details of the
principal features of the Services Agreement are set out in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document.

18.      Dividend Policy

The Directors intend to adopt a progressive dividend policy which will take into account the Company’s
capital requirements, earnings and cash flow whilst maintaining a responsible dividend cover and having
regard to the provisions of the Relationship Agreement relating to the payment of dividends.

It is currently intended that a dividend of £600,000 will be declared by the Company at the time of publishing
the Company’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2011, in respect of the period from Admission
until such date. The Directors intend this to be declared as a final dividend and be paid in May 2012.

It is the intention of the Directors, subject to there being no material change in the Company’s financial
condition and business prospects, that in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company should pay out 40 to 60 per cent. of the Company’s profits available for distribution. Thereafter
the Directors currently intend to adopt a progressive dividend policy.

For the financial years ending 31 December 2012 onwards, the Directors intend that interim and final
dividends in respect of each year ending 31 December will be paid respectively in August of that year
and May of the following year.

19.      Reasons for Admission and Use of Proceeds

The Placing and Admission should enable Secure Trust Bank to take advantage of the substantial
opportunities that the Directors have identified in the lending market and referred to in paragraph 10 of this
Part 2.

The Directors believe that the Placing and Admission will help unlock substantial potential by providing the
Company with capital in order to facilitate future growth in its loan book and the potential to make selective
acquisitions of loan books and businesses as well as raise its corporate profile and brand awareness. In
addition, the Placing and Admission will provide a market and a value for Secure Trust Bank’s Ordinary
Shares which the Directors believe will, in conjunction with the Share Option Scheme, help the Company to
continue to attract and retain high calibre employees.

The net proceeds of the issue of New Shares (after deduction of the expenses of the Placing and Admission)
of approximately £9.8 million will increase the capital base of the Company, after payment of a dividend of
£3.4 million to be paid to Arbuthnot conditional on Admission, to £22.8 million on a pro forma basis, as set
out in Part 6, further strengthening its ability to both lend and to develop its business.



20.      Summary of the Placing

The Placing comprises an offer by the Company of 1,666,667 New Shares to raise gross proceeds of
approximately £12.0 million and the sale of, in aggregate, 1,804,166 Sale Shares by Arbuthnot. The Placing
Shares will represent approximately 24.5 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company on
Admission.

The Placing is conditional on Admission taking place on or before 2 November 2011 (or such later date, not
being later than 4 November 2011, as the Company and the Advisers may agree).

Collins Stewart has agreed to use reasonable endeavours to procure Placees in accordance with the terms of
the Placing Agreement (further details of which are set out in paragraph 9.5 of Part 7 of this document). The
Placing is not being underwritten.

Arbuthnot has agreed in the Placing Agreement to a six month lock-up arrangement with Collins Stewart and
Hawkpoint. Approximately 75.5 per cent. of the Ordinary Shares will be subject to such lock-up arrangement
following Admission.

The Company has also been informed by Arbuthnot that Arbuthnot recognises that, over time, Secure Trust
Bank may require further capital in order to take full advantage of suitable opportunities that may present
themselves to Secure Trust Bank, and Arbuthnot would be willing to see its interest in the Company further
diluted at an appropriate time, in an appropriate way to enhance value for all Shareholders.

Further details of the Placing are set out in Part 4 of this document.

21.      Declaration of Shareholdings and Approval Requirements

AIM Rules for Companies

Shareholders are obliged to comply with the shareholding notification and disclosure requirements set out in
Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (“DTRs”). The DTRs can be accessed and downloaded
from the FSA’s website at http://fsahandbook.info/FSA/html/handbook/DTR/5. Shareholders are urged to
consider their notification and disclosure obligations carefully, as a failure to make a required disclosure may
result in disenfranchisement of a Shareholder under the Articles.

FSMA

A FSA authorised firm is subject to restrictions regarding persons who may act as a “controller” of it, and
procedural requirements which apply to the process by which a person acquires control, or certain increases
in control over it. A “controller” for the purposes of FSMA and the FSA Rules is a person who alone or with
those he is acting in concert holds ten per cent. or more of the shares or voting rights in, or is able to exercise
significant influence in relation to, a regulated firm or its parent undertaking.

A person who decides to acquire or increase control over a UK authorised firm must give advance written
notice to the FSA which will then decide whether to approve the acquisition, either conditionally or
unconditionally, or to object to it. There is also a general duty to give prior notification to the FSA of any
proposal to cease to have control over a regulated firm or to reduce an existing level of control from specified
thresholds.

Breach of the notification requirements imposed by FSMA on the controller is a criminal offence.

City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Please refer to paragraph 14.1 of Part 7 of this document.
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PART 3

RISK FACTORS

The risks set out below are the risks which the Directors currently consider to be material but are not the only
risks relating to the Company and the Group. There may be additional risks that the Directors do not
currently consider to be material or of which the Directors are not aware which may have a material adverse
effect on the Company if they occur. If this occurs, the market price of the Ordinary Shares could decline
and you may lose all or part of your investment. In addition to the other information contained in this
document, the following risk factors affecting the Company should be considered carefully. It should be
noted that this list is not exhaustive and that other risk factors may apply.

The order in which the following risk factors are presented does not necessarily reflect the likelihood of their
occurrence or the relative magnitude of their potential material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
results of operations, financial condition, prospects and/or the value of Ordinary Shares.

In this Part 3, references to the “Company” shall also, where the context admits, be deemed to be references
to the Group.

Economic conditions in the United Kingdom

The performance of the Company is significantly influenced by the economic conditions of the UK. A
further or more sustained downturn in the UK economy could result in a general reduction in business
activity and a consequent loss of income for the Company. In particular, higher inflation and/or higher
interest rates may impact on the disposable income available to consumers in the UK, resulting in reduced
market demand for the Company’s loan and deposit products. In addition, higher unemployment rates will
result in lower levels of disposable income amongst the individuals so affected. It is also possible that
recessionary pressures may reduce the amount of money available to consumers to make payments on their
loans with the Company which could lead to increased levels of default and lower earnings and profitability
for the Company. Any further or more sustained economic downturn in the UK could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Market conditions and volatility

Businesses in the financial services sector are affected by changing general market conditions which are
outside the control of the Company and which can cause the results and value of such businesses to fluctuate
from year to year, as well as on a long-term basis, in ways that may be unpredictable. These conditions
include economic cycles such as financial market cycles, including volatile movements in market prices for
securities; and banking industry cycles. Other factors which impact the business and economic environment
and businesses in the financial services sector include fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates,
confidence in the financial system, consumer spending, business investment, the real estate market, the
volatility and strength and weakness of the capital markets, catastrophic events, terrorism, acts of war and
the governmental and political developments relating to the foregoing, as well as social or political
instability, diplomatic relations and international conflicts. Any one or a combination of these factors could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Volatility in markets may adversely affect the profits of many businesses in the financial services sector,
including the Company. As a result of the recent credit crisis, central banks and governments, particularly
the UK, have taken extraordinary steps to maintain liquidity in the financial system and to provide
unprecedented credit support to large and small businesses in the financial services sector (including by
means of nationalisations, substantial capital injections and the provision of uncapped indemnities for their
liabilities to certain borrowers) to avoid further severe dislocation and liquidity disruptions. There remains
considerable uncertainty in the capital markets and the wider credit and financial markets as a whole. Were
a significant financial institution to collapse, a sovereign state to default on its debt, or other market
dislocation to occur, such an event could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition or results of operations.
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Credit risk

A significant proportion of the Company’s business, and hence its profits, derives from offering credit
products to customers, which are largely unsecured. Some of these customers may have experienced
difficulties in the past in repaying their debts, and may continue to do so in the future. The Company is
therefore exposed to the risk associated with the deterioration in the credit quality of its customers and to the
risk that its customers will not meet their obligations when they fall due. Although the Company seeks to
address this risk through its internal controls and its credit risk policies, there is no guarantee that such
controls and policies will provide sufficient mitigation against credit risk default. Higher than anticipated
levels of customer default could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition or results of operations.

In relation to certain of its products, the Company lends to customers in circumstances where the Company
has recourse against an asset purchased with the loaned amount. Where a customer under such an agreement
gets into difficulties with repaying the loaned amount, the Company may take possession of the asset, and
will seek to recover amounts due under the loan by the sale of the asset. In such circumstances, the amount
which the Company may recover will be dependent on the second-hand market for assets of the type in
question. In the event that the second-hand market for such assets is weak, the Company’s rate of recovery
on such loans may be adversely affected, and such circumstances could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

A significant proportion of the Company’s loans have been originated in the motor finance and retail point
of sale finance segments which are well known to members of the Executive Committee. The Company
started lending in these areas in 2009 and so has not yet built a long track record in these areas. As part of
its growth strategy the Company anticipates entering other lending segments which are also known well to
members of the Executive Committee but for which the Company itself has limited or no direct experience.

The Company is a relatively new entrant in the motor and retail point of sale segments, and accordingly, the
Company has a limited arrears experience in these segments. Higher than anticipated levels of customers
default, as loans in these segments develop, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial performance and results of operations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. This risk
is inherent in banking operations and can be heightened by a number of enterprise-specific factors such as
an over-reliance on a particular source of funding or by market-wide phenomena such as market dislocation
and major disasters. The Company’s liquidity management focuses on maintaining a diverse and appropriate
funding strategy for its operations, in controlling the mismatch of maturities and on carefully monitoring its
liabilities. However, the Company’s ability to access sources of liquidity during periods of liquidity stress
(such as have been experienced in the broader market in recent years), may be constrained as a result of
current and future market conditions.

The Company currently relies on customer deposits and capital for its funding and does not currently have
exposure to the wholesale funding market. This strategy has in the past enabled the Company to obtain the
funds it requires in order to maintain appropriate levels of liquidity, but there can be no assurance that
depositors will continue to place deposits with the Company to enable it to continue with this strategy.
Factors which may influence the Company’s ability to raise deposits include competition from other banks
and financial institutions for deposits, as well as the Company’s reputation among current and prospective
depositors.

The Company, as a UK banking business, is required to meet minimum liquidity standards. The FSA has
implemented new liquidity requirements for UK banks and banking groups. It is expected that further
amendment will be made to liquidity requirements in the medium term to require banks and banking groups
to hold a higher proportion of assets as cash or short term investments. Such requirements could adversely
affect the Company’s ability to generate profits.

No statement contained in this risk factor should be taken as qualifying the statement made as to sufficiency
of working capital in paragraph 11 of Part 7 of this document.
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Interest rate volatility

The Company’s interest rate risk is reviewed monthly by the Asset and Liability Committee and reported to
the Executive Committee. The Company’s approach to interest rate volatility involves hedging the risk by
raising fixed term deposits which broadly match the duration of the loan products, where possible, and
entering into arrangements with market counterparties and other institutions to hedge such risk. However,
there is a risk that in the future the Company may be unable successfully to raise (or unable to raise at an
acceptable cost) sufficient liquidity on the same average duration as its loan book; or that the Company lends
money on a variable interest rate basis and is unable successfully to use (or unable to use at an acceptable
cost) hedging techniques to reduce or eliminate the interest rate risk. In these circumstances fluctuations in
interest rates could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Operational risk

Businesses in the financial services sector inherently have operational risks. Such operational risks include
fraud, human error, failure to document transactions properly or to obtain proper authorisation, failure to
comply with regulatory requirements and conduct of business rules, equipment failures, failure of the
Company’s disaster recovery contingency plans, or the failure of external systems, including those of
suppliers or counterparties. Such businesses are also dependent on a number of procedures operating as
intended, including credit underwriting systems and controls, collections procedures and recovery
procedures, all of which have a significant impact on the Company’s financial performance.

The planned growth of the Company’s business means that the systems and controls, and other internal
procedures which the Company has in place (including its infrastructure and employees) will need to keep
pace with the needs of the Company’s growing business. If the Company does not have the resources to
support such growth, then the Company’s growth targets may not be achieved.

Although the Company has implemented risk controls and loss mitigation actions, and resources are devoted
to developing efficient procedures and to staff training, these procedures may not be effective in controlling
each of the operational risks faced by the Company. Such matters can potentially result in financial loss as
well as harm to the reputation of the Company, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Regulatory risk

Licences

The Company is authorised and regulated by the FSA and has permission from the FSA to carry on activities
specified in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Regulated Activities) Order 2001, including but
not limited to accepting deposits. Variation, non-renewal or cancellation of the Company’s FSA permission
or suspension or cancellation of the Company’s CCA licence would result in the Company becoming
incapable of carrying on all or some of its activities within the UK which could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

CCA documentation and enforcement

A significant proportion of the Company’s business, and hence its profits, derives from offering credit
products to consumers using consumer credit agreements which are regulated by the CCA. The CCA
requirements for consumer credit agreements are technical in nature and can be subject to varying
interpretations. If the relevant requirements are not reflected in consumer credit agreements in the manner
prescribed, and such agreements are subsequently challenged by customers, or in some cases, the OFT, the
agreements may be determined by a court to be non-compliant with applicable consumer credit legislation
and regulations.

If any of the regulated credit agreements of the Company, or ancillary documentation in relation to those
agreements, are determined by a court to be non-compliant with applicable consumer credit legislation and
regulations following challenge by a customer, the agreements may be held to be unenforceable. If any of
the Company’s credit agreements are determined by a court to be unenforceable, the relevant agreement(s)
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will not be void or unlawful and a customer will continue to have an obligation to make payments to the
Company in settlement of the debt under the agreement. However, the Company will not be able to obtain a
summary judgment, charging order or make a customer bankrupt in the event that a customer ceases to make
the required payments to the Company. In these circumstances, the Company will not be able to generate
revenue from the affected agreement and there is the risk that the Company will be unable to fully recover
the amount of credit extended to a customer, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

In addition to a court determining that a consumer credit agreement is unenforceable, non-compliance with
the applicable consumer credit legislation and regulations could also lead to fines and/or public censure by
regulatory bodies, damage to reputation and/or in extreme circumstances, withdrawal of the Company’s
consumer credit licence, any of which independently or in tandem could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Under the CCA, hire purchase customers are entitled to terminate agreements before the end of the term on
payment of the amount (if any) by which one-half of the total price for the goods exceeds the aggregate of
sums that have already fallen due. In respect of the Company’s motor finance business, where such rules may
apply, customers may terminate the agreement and return the secured asset to the Company on the payment
of such sum. The secured asset returned may be worth less than the value of the outstanding loan for the
remainder of the term. In the event that the number of customers of the Company doing this were to increase,
and the returned secured assets were worth less than the value of the outstanding loan for the remainder of
the term, then this may result in the Company being required to increase its provisions for bad debts, which
in turn may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Government policy, legislation and regulation

The Company is subject to financial services laws, regulations, administrative actions and policies in the UK
(including EU legislation as it is implemented in the UK, and the rules and regulations of the European
Banking Authority). If these laws change in the future to the detriment of the Company, they could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, the products and services it offers or its financial
condition or results of operations.

There is a continuing political and regulatory scrutiny of the operation of the retail banking and consumer
credit industries in the UK, EU and internationally. The nature and impact of future changes in policies, laws,
taxation and regulatory action are not predictable, are beyond the Company’s control and could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Areas where changes could have a material adverse effect include:

•          the monetary, interest rate and other policies of the Bank of England and regulatory authorities.
Variations in interest rates, in particular, could have a strong impact on the Company’s earnings and
balance sheet and are influenced by factors, such as economic conditions and Monetary Policy
Committee policy, that are outside the Company’s control;

•          general changes in UK government or regulatory policy or changes in regulatory regimes that may
significantly influence investor decisions in the UK or may increase the costs of doing business with
consumers in the UK;

•          European Union legislation affecting the supervision and regulation of banks within the European
Union (including the United Kingdom);

•          other general changes in the regulatory requirements, such as prudential rules relating to the bank
governance, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks;

•          changes in competition and pricing environments; and

•          changes to the ways in which regulated financial institutions conduct their business with consumers.
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Under the Banking Act 2009, the FSA, HM Treasury and the Bank of England have been given certain
powers in relation to authorised UK deposit-takers. The powers are wide-ranging. In summary, the FSA,
HM Treasury and the Bank of England may direct and accelerate transfers of banking business to a private
sector purchaser, take control of a failing bank by transferring all or part of the business of the bank into a
“bridge bank” wholly owned by the Bank of England or take into temporary public ownership of a bank that
fails to meet specified regulatory conditions. These powers, therefore, may entail divesting the authorised
UK deposit-taker of some or all of its assets or transferring ownership of any securities issued by the
authorised UK deposit-taker irrespective of any encumbrance or trust over them. Accordingly, although the
Directors believe that such powers will only ever be exercised in extreme circumstances, the enforceability
of the obligations of the Company could be affected if such powers were to be exercised.

On 12 September 2011, the ICB Report was published. The remit of the ICB was to consider the structure
of the UK banking sector, and look at structural and non-structural measures to reform the banking system
and promote competition. The nature of the changes that will be implemented following the ICB Report is
not yet clear. Although it is expected that the recommendations will not be fully implemented until 2019, the
implementation of the recommendations of the ICB Report could have cost and compliance implications for
the Company, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or
results of operations.

The regulatory environment in which the Company carries on its business has been subject to a significant
amount of change in the recent past, and this is likely to continue in the future. Such changes include (but
are not limited to): (i) changes to the relevant rules applicable to the conduct of the Company’s business,
including the Company’s obligations to treat customers fairly and otherwise in relation to the Company’s
dealings with its customers; (ii) the implementation earlier this year of remuneration provisions and
requirements into the FSA Rules, as a result of the Capital Requirements Directive III (2010/76/EU); (iii)
the remaining provisions of the Capital Requirements Directive III (2010/76/EU), which will, amongst other
things, once implemented require the UK Government to strengthen capital, liquidity and risk coverage
requirements and impose greater disclosure requirements in relation to capital and exposure to risk; (iv) the
Capital Requirements Directive IV which will, amongst other things, once implemented require the UK
Government to strengthen further capital and liquidity requirements, strengthen corporate governance
procedures, impose restrictions to reduce reliance on external credit rating agencies and impose further
disclosure requirements in relation to remuneration; (v) the potential for increased contribution levies in the
future to the FSCS; and (vi) proposals to require banks and systematically important financial institutions to
implement and maintain recovery and resolution plans (also known as “living wills”) in relation to which the
European Commission is expected to publish formal legislative proposals for an EU framework on bank
recovery and resolution in November 2011, and in relation to which the FSA published a consultation paper
on recovery and resolution plans for deposit-taking institutions and systemically important investment firms
in August 2011.

In addition, HM Treasury consultation papers containing details on the restructuring of the UK financial
services regulatory regime were released in July 2010 and February 2011. HM Treasury released a White
Paper and consultation paper, containing draft legislation, on 16 June 2011. The restructuring plans include
the abolition of the current tripartite regulatory system (whereby responsibility for financial stability in the
UK is currently shared by HM Treasury, the Bank of England and the FSA), resulting in the FSA ceasing to
exist in its current form by the end of 2012. In particular: (i) the FPC will be established as a committee of
the Bank of England with responsibility for considering and taking action to address macroeconomic issues
affecting economic and financial stability; (ii) the creation of the PRA, which will be a subsidiary of the
Bank of England with responsibility for the prudential regulation of banks, insurers and certain other firms;
and (iii) the creation of the FCA which is due to take on the FSA’s responsibility for conduct regulation in
the retail and wholesale markets, which will also be responsible for the microprudential regulation of firms
not regulated by the PRA and will take over responsibility for the UKLA function. The draft Bill contained
in the White Paper expressly sets out the FCA’s “consumer protection” objective, and includes a proposal to
give the FCA the power to make “product intervention rules” (pre-approval, outright bans and consumer and
industry warnings), which, if adopted by the FCA would represent a shift towards an increasingly intrusive
and interventionist approach to supervision.
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The championing of consumer rights is also a policy of the current UK Government, and further changes to
the consumer protection regime in the UK as a result of such policy or similar government policies may
result in increased costs to the Company in terms of engaging with customers and prospective customers,
and the ways in which the Company carries on its business.

The FSA’s current enforcement remit will be split between the PRA and the FCA. The PRA will be
responsible for enforcing its own rules and the FCA for enforcing everything else currently done by the FSA,
both civil and criminal (the large part of the FSA’s current enforcement remit).

It is difficult to predict how these and other future reforms will affect the Company, although any such
reforms could have cost and compliance implications for the Company, which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Complaints and investigations

The Company operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to potentially significant
litigation and regulatory risks. Adverse regulatory action against the Company or adverse judgments in
litigation to which the Company is a party could result in restrictions or limitations on the Company’s
operations or result in a material adverse effect on the Company’s reputation or results of operations.

In particular, as the Company deals with consumers, the Company must comply with rules such as the FSA
Rules on treating customers fairly and other rules designed to protect consumers. In addition to the
enforcement of rights and remedies by individual consumers against the Company, there are consumer
organisations which champion consumer rights, including those rights in relation to retail financial services.
Any such individual or collective action could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

The FSA and other regulatory authorities, with whose rules the Company is required to comply, also have
wide powers of investigation to conduct enquiries into the Company’s business.

If the Company is found to have breached any applicable rules, this could result in restrictions on the
activities which the Company may carry on, or the curtailment of a particular activity altogether. Any such
events could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations, as well as causing reputational damage to the Company.

It is possible that, in the future, through the introduction of new rules or because of decisions of the courts
or regulatory authorities, the activities conducted by the Company would give rise to claims. Significant
claims against the Company arising from its lending or deposit taking activities would, if successful, have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

FSCS

The Company, as an FSA authorised firm, may be called upon to make contributions into the FSCS where
the depositors of another FSCS firm make claims for compensation from the FSCS. In the event that such
claims were significant, the levy which the Company may be required to pay might also be significant. The
payment of such a levy could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
or results of operations.

As a result of the recent credit crisis, the general public in the United Kingdom has become more aware of
the FSCS. As at the date of this document, the maximum level of compensation which may be awarded under
the FSCS stands at £85,000 per person per firm in relation to protected deposits held by firms. This compares
with the maximum level of compensation of £50,000 per person per firm which was in place up to and
including 31 December 2010. If the maximum amount of compensation which can be awarded under the
FSCS was lowered or removed this could have a significant adverse effect on the Company’s ability to raise
deposits.
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Relationship with Arbuthnot

Shareholder rights

The Company’s major shareholder is Arbuthnot, who as of Admission will beneficially own and control
10,695,834 Ordinary Shares, which equates to 75.5 per cent. of the issued Ordinary Shares as at Admission.
On Admission, Arbuthnot will continue to control the majority of the issued Ordinary Shares, and will
therefore be able to exercise voting control over the Company for matters which require the approval of the
Shareholders, including those matters which are required to be passed by way of special resolution.

As a result of its level of shareholding in the Company on Admission, Arbuthnot has the ability to determine
the outcome of matters requiring Shareholder approval, including appointments to the Board and significant
corporate transactions, such as an acquisition or other change of control of the Company. As Arbuthnot will
be interested in 50 per cent. or more of the voting rights attaching to the Ordinary Shares on Admission, it
will be deemed under the City Code to be able to exercise control and will be able (other than in respect of
related party transactions requiring Shareholder approval under the AIM Rules and/or the Relationship
Agreement) to vote down any special or ordinary resolution put to the Shareholders, as it will hold sufficient
Ordinary Shares to block any special or ordinary resolution proposed by the Company (including any
ordinary resolution proposed by the other Shareholders to remove a Director). The interests of Arbuthnot
may be different from the interests of the other Shareholders.

In addition, Arbuthnot has the ability to exercise its voting rights as a Shareholder to cancel the Company’s
admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM. Arbuthnot has however undertaken in the Relationship
Agreement that it will not exercise such voting rights until the earlier of the termination of the Relationship
Agreement, and two years from the date of Admission unless the Independent Directors (acting
unanimously), confirm in writing to Arbuthnot that such cancellation would not be prejudicial to the
Shareholders (other than Arbuthnot).

Relationship Agreement

In the Relationship Agreement, the Company has agreed that it will make a distribution by way of dividend
in each of its financial years in accordance with the Company’s business plan, subject to the prevailing
circumstances at the time including: (i) the Group’s working capital requirements; (ii) the Company’s
regulatory capital requirements; (iii) the regulatory capital requirements of the Group and the Arbuthnot
Group. Under the Relationship Agreement, Arbuthnot may (acting reasonably) require an increase in the
amount of the dividend contemplated in the Group’s business plan, where such increase is required to ensure
that Arbuthnot has sufficient capital resources to comply with its regulatory capital and other legal
requirements, provided that the Company is not required to make any distributions which would be unlawful
or that would cause the Company to be in breach of any regulatory requirements applicable to it. The
Company may therefore be required to make a distribution (to all Shareholders) in circumstances where the
Board may otherwise have preferred that such profits should be retained by the Company.

By virtue of the Company’s governance structure under the Relationship Agreement, for such time as
Arbuthnot holds 50 per cent. or more of the Ordinary Shares, it has the right under the terms of the
Relationship Agreement to appoint one third of the directors of the Company. Such right is also entrenched
in the Articles. Arbuthnot will therefore continue to exert significant influence over the operation of the
Company through its appointee Directors following Admission.

Regulatory capital

On Admission, the Company will be grouped for regulatory purposes with the Arbuthnot Group. There is
therefore a risk that, if an event were to occur within the Arbuthnot Group, such an event may have an impact
on the regulatory capital or liquidity position of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that such an event
was outside of the Company’s control.

On Admission, the Company will be grouped with the Arbuthnot Group for regulatory purposes. One
consequence of this is that the large exposure rules that would otherwise apply between the Company and
Arbuthnot are waived. This means that the counterparty exposure of the Company to Arbuthnot is higher than
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it might otherwise be were those rules to apply. If an adverse event were to occur to Arbuthnot, the Company
may have difficulties in retrieving money held with Arbuthnot from Arbuthnot.

Shared services

The Company relies on the Arbuthnot Group to provide certain services necessary to support its operations.
Such services will, following Admission, be provided to the Company by Arbuthnot under the Services
Agreement (the terms of which are summarised in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document). Therefore, the
Company will not be able to exercise the level of control over the provision of these services as would be
the case if such services were provided using the Company’s own systems and personnel. Any failure or
default in the provision of such services could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

In addition, the Services Agreement contains a mutual exclusion of liability clause in favour of both the
Company and Arbuthnot. The effect of this is that, in the event of a breach of the terms of the Services
Agreement by Arbuthnot, the Company will be restricted from enforcing the contractual and other rights and
remedies which may have otherwise been available to it had the Services Agreement been entered into with
a party unrelated to the Company.

The City Code

On Admission, Arbuthnot will hold 75.5 per cent. of the voting rights in the Company. As such, although the
City Code would generally apply to Arbuthnot in the event that it made an offer for the Ordinary Shares
which it did not already own, the relevant rules of the City Code relating to mandatory bids will not apply
to Arbuthnot. The result of this is that, subject to the provisions of the Relationship Agreement preventing
Arbuthnot from acquiring further Ordinary Shares, and any other regulatory requirements, Arbuthnot will be
free to acquire further Ordinary Shares without triggering a mandatory bid under the City Code.

Taxation

As a member of Arbuthnot’s VAT group, Secure Trust Bank has joint and several liability for Arbuthnot’s
VAT obligations. It should be noted that members of a VAT group are jointly and severally liable for VAT
liabilities that arise during membership of a VAT group. There is, therefore, a risk that Secure Trust Bank
could be liable for VAT incurred by Arbuthnot and its group companies.

General

Adverse events within the Arbuthnot Group could have an adverse effect on the Company by reason of its
association with the Arbuthnot Group.

Technological changes

The Company may face increasing competition from technologies, services and products currently being
developed, or which may be developed in the future, by both its existing competitors and new market
entrants. The development and regulatory acceptance of new technologies involves time, substantial cost and
risks. The Company cannot accurately predict how emerging and future technological changes will affect its
operations or the competitiveness of its products and services.

Competition

The Company may face increasing competition (direct and indirect) from other financial service providers,
in particular those financial service providers operating in the same area of business as the Company. Many
of the Company’s competitors and potential competitors are significantly larger and therefore have
significantly greater resources than the Company. Such increases in competition may have an adverse effect
on the performance of the Company, reducing revenues, margins and profitability.

Since and the credit crisis larger banks in the Company’s area of business have tightened their credit criteria.
If and when greater liquidity returns to the banking market in volumes more comparable to levels prior to
the credit crisis, then these larger institutions may seek to move down the credit spectrum into direct
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competition with the Company, which could significantly affect the Company’s ability to retain customers.
In addition, in the event that larger institutions were to provide additional finance by way of loans to the
customers of the Company, those customers could take on significant amounts of debt with such competitors.
If this were to occur, this could adversely affect the ability of such customers to service the debts which they
have with the Company. If this were to occur, this could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company’s market position will depend on the effectiveness of its marketing initiatives and its ability
to anticipate and respond to various factors affecting the industry, including new products and services,
pricing strategies by competitors, shifts in consumer preferences and changes in economic, political and
social conditions.

There can be no assurances that the Company will be able to compete effectively with current or future
competitors, nor that the increasingly competitive pressures faced by the Company from such competing
business will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future performance. In addition, the
Company’s existing customers could cease to use the Company’s loan or deposit products for a variety of
reasons including, for example, the availability of more competitive products from alternative providers.

The Company’s business model focuses on building market share through delivering a superior customer
service experience to its customers. Any failure of the Company to maintain the right image and brand
awareness, to attract, and gain loyalty from, customers and adapt to keep up with or ahead of its competitors
could have a material adverse effect on its business prospects or results of operations.

Failure in risk management

The Company has in place risk management policies and controls, financial controls, and reporting systems
and procedures. The Company believes that it has taken reasonable steps to establish and maintain policies,
controls, systems and procedures. However, a failure of any of these policies, controls, systems and
procedures could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations and in addition could have a significant negative impact on the Company’s reputation.

Dependence on key personnel

The Company depends on the services of its Board and key management personnel, and their ability to
deliver a successful implementation of the Company’s growth strategy. The loss of the services of any of
these persons, or a failure by them to deliver such growth strategy successfully could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

The success of the Company also depends on its ability to identify, hire, train, motivate and retain suitably
experienced personnel. The Company cannot give assurances that it will be able to attract or retain the
suitably experienced personnel that it requires in the future, which may adversely affect its future growth and
profitability.

Additional requirement for capital

Although the Directors have confidence in the future revenue-earning potential of the Company, there is no
certainty that the Company will achieve or sustain profitability or positive cash flow from its operating
activities. The Company’s capital requirements depend on numerous factors, including the level of losses,
the growth of the loan book through existing or new lending activities and any changes in regulatory
requirements. If the Company is affected by any of these factors the Company may be required to raise
further capital, which may be dilutive to Shareholders, and may adversely impact on the Company’s return
on capital.

Implementation of planned growth strategies

The Company’s future prospects depend on its ability to grow, and to manage growth successfully, in
particular through growing its lending book across a wide range of propositions both by asset class and
socio-economic grouping under a relatively new leadership team. In addition, any such growth (which may
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include growth by way of acquisitions and/or joint ventures) will place additional demands on the
Company’s management, administrative and technical resources, and will also require the Company’s
management to identify segments of the lending market into which successful lending may be made. Failure
to achieve or manage this growth, a failure in any such additional resources required, or a failure on the
part of the Company’s management to correctly identify the segments of the lending market into which
successful lending may be made, could lead to a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, growth
prospects, results of operations and/or financial condition.

Part of the Company’s growth strategy involves: (i) identifying and acquiring loan portfolios from third
parties; and/or (ii) acquiring businesses that enhance the Company’s origination capabilities. The Company
could find on completion of an acquisition (notwithstanding the steps taken by the Company in relation to
such acquisition) that such acquired portfolio or business contains liabilities for which the Company would
be responsible, or the return on any portfolio or business so acquired could be significantly less than that
anticipated at the time of acquisition, each of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Acquisitions which the Company intends to make following Admission may also be subject to regulatory
approval. In the event that, where required, such approval is not forthcoming, the Company may not be able
to implement this aspect of its growth strategy which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Growth in the Company’s lending activities will depend, in part, on the availability of deposit or other
funding on acceptable terms. Increases in the cost of funding, to the extent that such increases could not be
offset by higher lending margins, would impact on the Company’s profit margins and ability to generate
profits. An absence of such deposit funding would impact on the future growth of the Company.

Catastrophic events, terrorist acts or acts of war

Catastrophic events, terrorist acts or acts of war may lead to an abrupt interruption of activities, and as such
businesses may be subject to losses resulting from such disruptions. If business continuity plans are not
available or adequate, losses may increase further. In addition, such events and the responses to those events
may create economic and political uncertainties which could have an unanticipated adverse impact on the
general market conditions in which the Company may operate, and on the operations of the Company.

Negative impact of claims and litigation

Legal proceedings could be brought against the Company. This could be costly and may divert the efforts of
management and other personnel from normal business operations. It could also adversely affect the
reputation and brand image of the relevant business which could reduce consumer demand and materially
damage the business and prospects of that business, thus devaluing the Company’s assets.

Future performance

There is no certainty and no representation or warranty is given by any person that the Company will be able
to continue to achieve the same or greater returns referred to in this document, in particular the financial
returns referred to in Part 5 of this document.

Market value of Ordinary Shares

Following Admission, it is likely that the Company’s share price will fluctuate and may not always
accurately reflect the underlying value of the Company’s business. The value of Ordinary Shares may go
down as well as up and investors may lose some or all of the original sum invested. The price that investors
may realise for their holdings of Ordinary Shares, when they are able to do so, may be influenced by factors,
some of which are specific to the Company and others of which are extraneous.
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Investment in AIM-traded securities

Application has been made for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to AIM, a market designated primarily
for emerging or smaller companies. The AIM Rules for Companies are less demanding than those of the
Official List of the UK Listing Authority. Further, neither the London Stock Exchange nor the UK Listing
Authority has examined or approved the contents of this document. Investment in shares on AIM is perceived
to involve a higher degree of risk than an investment in shares quoted on the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority. AIM has been in existence since June 1995 but its future success and liquidity in the market for
the Company’s securities cannot be guaranteed. A prospective investor should be aware of the risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after careful consideration and, if
appropriate, consultation with an independent financial adviser.

No assurance that an active trading market will develop

Although an application has been made for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to AIM, as there has been no
public trading market for the Ordinary Shares, there can be no assurance that an active trading market will
develop or, if one does develop, that it will be maintained. The market for securities in smaller public
companies such as the Company is less liquid than for larger public companies. The liquidity of the market
for the Ordinary Shares will also depend on the number of Shareholders in the Company. An investment in
the Ordinary Shares may be difficult to realise, and Shareholders who need to dispose of their Ordinary
Shares may be forced to do so at prices that do not fully reflect the value of the Company.

In addition, on Admission Arbuthnot will continue to hold 75.5 per cent. of the Company’s issued share
capital, meaning that the “free float” of Ordinary Shares will be smaller than it might otherwise be. This may
have the result that trading in the Ordinary Shares might be less liquid than would be the case if the “free
float” were larger.

Dividends

The payment of any dividend or distribution by the Company will depend upon a number of factors,
including the Company’s ability to execute its business plan, its operating results, financial condition, current
and anticipated cash needs and regulatory capital requirements and legal and other regulatory restrictions, as
well as the provisions of the Relationship Agreement relating to dividends, as explained above and as
summarised in paragraph 9.2 of Part 7 of this document. Dividend growth in the Ordinary Shares will in
part rely on underlying growth in the Company’s businesses and, in particular, the dividend policy mentioned
in paragraph 18 of Part 2 of this document should not be construed as a dividend forecast. Any change in the
tax treatment of dividends may reduce the amount received by shareholders.

Disapplication of pre-emption rights

At the General Meeting of the Company on 27 October 2011, the Directors were granted authority by the
Shareholders of the Company to allot up to 2,601,665 Ordinary Shares and pre-emption rights in respect of
such Ordinary Shares were disapplied. There will therefore be 934,998 Ordinary Shares that are unissued
and which the Board has authority to allot without making a pre-emptive offer to Shareholders until the
expiry of the Company’s next AGM.

Overseas Shareholders

Shareholders not resident in the UK should consider the extent to which any proposed investment in the
Company may be subject to consents or limitations and whether the repatriation of investment income,
capital and the proceeds of sales by non-UK resident shareholders may require government registration or
approval.

Additionally, overseas Shareholders should be aware before making any investment that future sanctions
legislation effective in the UK could have the effect of prohibiting or restricting the Company from making
payments (whether by way of dividend or otherwise) to overseas Shareholders in jurisdictions which have
become targets of such sanctions legislation.
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The Ordinary Shares are denominated in, and trading in the Ordinary Shares on AIM will be denominated
in, sterling. Overseas shareholders will therefore by subject to fluctuating exchange rates between sterling
and any other currency into which they might wish to convert any payments, received by way of dividend or
otherwise, in respect of any investment they make in the Ordinary Shares.

Taxation

Investors should consider, in relation to any proposed investment in Ordinary Shares, the taxes of any
jurisdiction or governmental or regulatory authority, including without limitation, the extent to which they
may be subject to any state, federal or local taxes or other assessment or charges in the nature of tax that may
be applicable to any payment to them in respect of any investment. Neither the Company nor any other
person will pay any additional amounts to any investor to reimburse such investor for any tax, assessment or
charge required to be withheld or deducted from payments in respect of any investment in Ordinary Shares.
Any investor who is in any doubt as to his tax position is strongly recommended to consult his professional
advisers immediately.

Levels of and reliefs from taxation

The levels of, and reliefs from, taxation may change. Investors should not rely on general guidance and
should seek their own advice. There can be no guarantee that the rates of taxation envisaged by the Directors
will be the ongoing rates of taxation paid by the Company.

The foregoing factors are not exhaustive and do not purport to be a complete explanation of all the
risks and significant considerations involved in investing in the Company.

45



PART 4

THE PLACING

1.        Terms and Conditions of the Placing

Please see the appendix to this document.

2.        Admission to Trading and Dealing Arrangements

Application has been made for admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM. It is expected that
Admission will become effective and that dealings in the Ordinary Shares will commence on 2 November
2011, and in any event no later than 4 November 2011.

The Ordinary Shares will have ISIN number GB00B6TKHP66. The Ordinary Shares are not dealt on any
other recognised investment exchange and no application has been or is being made for the Ordinary Shares
to be admitted to any other exchange.

3.        Lock-Up Arrangements

Arbuthnot, who on Admission will be interested in, in aggregate, 10,695,834 Ordinary Shares (representing
approximately 75.5 per cent. of the Enlarged Share Capital), has undertaken (subject to certain limited
exceptions including disposals by way of acceptance of a takeover offer for the entire issued share capital of
the Company or disposals pursuant to a court order) not to dispose of such Ordinary Shares following
Admission or any other securities in exchange for or convertible into, or substantially similar to, Ordinary
Shares (or any interest in them or in respect of them) at any time in the six months following Admission
without the prior consent of Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint.

4.        Share Options

Conditional on Admission, the Company has made certain awards of options over Ordinary Shares to certain
individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Certain such awards are described in paragraph 6.1 of Part 7 of
this document.

Further details of the principal features of the Share Option Scheme are set out in paragraph 4 of Part 7 of
this document.

5.        Dilution

On Admission the Enlarged Share Capital of the Company will consist of 14,166,667 Ordinary Shares of
which the Placing Shares will represent 24.5 per cent. On Admission Arbuthnot will hold 10,695,834
Ordinary Shares (representing approximately 75.5 per cent. of the Enlarged Share Capital) and a dilution of
approximately 24.5 per cent. of their previous interests in the Company as a result of Admission and the
Placing.

6.        CREST

CREST is a paperless settlement system enabling securities to be evidenced otherwise than by certificate and
transferred otherwise than by written instrument. The Articles of Association permit the Company to issue
shares in uncertificated form in accordance with the CREST Regulations.

The Directors have applied for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to CREST with effect from Admission
and CREST has agreed to such admission. Accordingly, the settlement of transactions in the Ordinary Shares
following Admission may take place within CREST if individual Shareholders so wish. CREST is a
voluntary system and holders of Ordinary Shares who wish to receive and retain share certificates will be
able to do so. Where Placees have requested to receive their Ordinary Shares in certificated form, share
certificates will be despatched by first class post within 14 days of the date of Admission.
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7.        Selling Restrictions

The distribution of this document and the Placing in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons
into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about and observe any restrictions on
the distribution of this document and the Placing, including those in the paragraphs that follow. Any failure
to comply with these restrictions may constitute an offer to buy any of the Ordinary Shares to any person in
any jurisdiction to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

No action has been or will be taken in any jurisdiction that would permit a public offering of the Ordinary
Shares, or possession or distribution of this document or any other offering or publicity material relating to
the Ordinary Shares, in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, other than in
the United Kingdom.

United Kingdom

In the UK, members of the public are not eligible to take part in the Placing. This document and the terms
and conditions set out and referred to herein are directed only at persons selected by Collins Stewart who are
“investment professionals” falling within article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
(Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “FPO”) or “high net worth companies, unincorporated associations
etc” falling within article 49(2) of the FPO or to persons to whom it may otherwise lawfully be
communicated (all such persons together being referred to as “relevant persons”). This document and the
terms and conditions set out herein must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons.

European Economic Area

The Ordinary Shares are not being offered or sold to any person in the European Union, other than to
“qualified investors” as defined in article 2.1(e) of Directive 2003/71/EC, which includes legal entities which
are regulated by the FSA or entities which are not so regulated whose corporate purpose is solely to invest
in securities.

United States and other jurisdictions

The Ordinary Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “Securities Act”) or under the securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the
United States and may not be offered, sold, resold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into the
United States absent registration except pursuant to an exemption from or in a transaction not subject to the
registration requirements of the Securities Act. No public offering of the Ordinary Shares is being made in
the United States. The Placing is being made outside the United States in offshore transactions (as defined
in Regulation S under the Securities Act (“Regulation S”)) meeting the requirements of Regulation S under
the Securities Act. Persons receiving this document (including custodians, nominees and trustees) must not
forward, distribute, mail or otherwise transmit it in or into the United States or use the United States mails,
directly or indirectly, in connection with the Placing.

This document does not constitute an offer to sell or issue or a solicitation of an offer to buy or subscribe for
Ordinary Shares in any jurisdiction including, without limitation, the United States, Canada, Australia, Japan
or any other jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is or may be unlawful (a “Prohibited
Jurisdiction”). This document and the information contained herein are not for publication or distribution,
directly or indirectly, to persons in a Prohibited Jurisdiction unless permitted pursuant to an exemption under
the relevant local law or regulation in any such jurisdiction.

The distribution of this document, the Placing and/or the subscription for or acquisition of the Ordinary
Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law and/or regulation. No action has been taken by the
Company, Collins Stewart or any of their respective affiliates that would permit an offer of the Ordinary
Shares or possession or distribution of this document or any other publicity material relating to such
Ordinary Shares in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Persons receiving this
document are required to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.



PART 5

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON THE COMPANY

KPMG Audit Plc Tel +44 (0) 20 7311 5505
15 Canada Square DX 157460 Canary Wharf 5
Canary Wharf ruth.horgan@kpmg.co.uk
London E14 5GL
United Kingdom

The Directors
Secure Trust Bank Plc
One Arleston Way
Shirley
Solihull
B90 4LH

28 October 2011

Dear Sirs

Secure Trust Bank Plc (the ‘Company’)

We report on the financial information set out on pages 50 to 92 for the 3 years and six months ended 30 June
2011. This financial information has been prepared for inclusion in the AIM Admission Document dated 28
October 2011 of Secure Trust Bank Plc on the basis of the accounting policies set out in note 1. This report
is required by Paragraph (a) of Schedule Two of the AIM Rules for Companies and is given for the purpose
of complying with that paragraph and for no other purpose. We have not audited or reviewed the financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2010 which has been included for comparative purposes only,
and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparing the financial information on the basis of
preparation set out in note 1 to the financial information and in accordance with IFRS (as adopted and
endorsed by the EU).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion on the financial information and to report our opinion to you.

Save for any responsibility arising under Paragraph (a) of Schedule Two of the AIM Rules for Companies to
any person as and to the extent there provided, to the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any
responsibility and will not accept any liability to any other person for any loss suffered by any such other
person as a result of, arising out of, or in connection with this report or our statement, required by and given
solely for the purposes of complying with Schedule Two of the AIM Rules for Companies, consenting to its
inclusion in the Admission Document.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board in the United Kingdom. Our work included an assessment of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial information. It also included an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by those responsible for the preparation of the financial information and
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the entity’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our work so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error.

Opinion on financial information

In our opinion, the financial information gives, for the purposes of the AIM Admission Document dated
28 October 2011, a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Secure Trust Bank Plc as at 30 June 2011 and
of its profits, cash flows and changes in equity for the three years and six months ended 30 June 2011 in
accordance with the basis of preparation set out in note 1 and in accordance with IFRS (as adopted and
endorsed by the EU).

Declaration

For the purposes of Paragraph (a) of Schedule Two of the AIM Rules for Companies we are responsible for
this report as part of the AIM Admission Document and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to
ensure that the information contained in this report is, to the best of our knowledge, in accordance with the
facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. This declaration is included in the AIM Admission
Document in compliance with Schedule Two of the AIM Rules for Companies.

Yours faithfully

KPMG Audit Plc
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year Ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                 Note               2008              2009               2010              2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Interest and similar income                           3,420              9,935            15,891              7,066              9,896
Interest expense and 

similar charges                                            (830)            (1,345)            (3,419)            (1,326)            (1,898)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net interest income                                      2,590              8,590            12,472              5,740              7,998
Net fee and commission 

income                                                     15,423            13,119            11,750              5,706              5,572
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Operating income                                      18,013            21,709            24,222            11,446            13,570
Impairment losses on 

loans and advances                  13                (533)            (1,173)            (2,168)               (814)            (1,812)
Other income                                                    121                   41                 982              1,124                     –
Group restructure –

Intercompany balances                                     –                (693)                    –                     –                     –
Operating expenses                       6           (12,567)          (11,788)          (14,350)            (6,507)            (8,094)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Profit before income tax                              5,034              8,096              8,686              5,249              3,664
Income tax expense                       8             (1,528)            (2,293)            (2,436)            (1,463)               (990)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Profit for the period                                     3,506              5,803              6,250              3,786              2,674                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Revaluation reserve
– Revaluation of freehold 

premises                                                       (969)                   (2)                    –                     –                     –
– Amount transferred to 

profit and loss                                                 (39)                    –                    (2)                   (1)                   (1)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Other comprehensive 
income for the period, 
net of income tax                                    (1,008)                   (2)                   (2)                   (1)                   (1)

                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total comprehensive 
income for the period                              2,498              5,801              6,248              3,785              2,673                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the 

Group                                                         3,506              5,803              6,250              3,786              2,674                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total comprehensive 
income attributable to:

Equity holders of the 
Group                                                         2,498              5,801              6,248              3,785              2,673                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Earnings per share for profit 
attributable to the equity 
holders of the Group during 
the year expressed in pence 
per share:

– basic and fully diluted                9                70.1              116.1              125.0                75.7                53.5                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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Consolidated statement of financial position

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                 Note               2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

ASSETS
Cash                                             10                   13                     4                   13                     6                   10
Loans and advances 

to banks                                   11            12,882            39,334            42,577            44,755            96,560
Loans and advances 

to customers                            12            12,551            51,440            89,482            66,463          123,857
Debt securities 

held-to-maturity                       14            14,293            11,000            25,627            57,570              5,555
Other assets                                 19              6,820              7,280            16,852            12,254            14,635
Derivative financial 

instruments                              18                     –                     –                     –                     –                 501
Intangible assets                          15                 290                 785                 783                 701                 729
Property, plant and 

equipment                                17              6,350              5,952              5,295              5,724              5,110
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total assets                                                 53,199          115,795          180,629          187,473          246,957                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks                   20                     4                     –                     –                     –                     –
Deposits from customers             21            35,828            93,342          153,778          163,278          217,001
Current tax liability                                       1,444              1,517              1,564              2,019              1,637
Other liabilities                            22              6,102              6,423              7,035              5,878              8,794
Deferred tax liability                   24                   74                   65                   56                   65                   56
Debt securities in issue               23              1,000              2,400              2,400              2,400              3,000
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total liabilities                                            44,452          103,747          164,833          173,640          230,488                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY

Share capital                                26              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000
Retained earnings                                          3,601              6,904            10,654              8,690            11,328
Revaluation reserve                                          146                 144                 142                 143                 141
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total shareholders’ 
equity                                                        8,747            12,048            15,796            13,833            16,469                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Total shareholders’ 
equity and liabilities                              53,199          115,795          180,629          187,473          246,957                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2008

                                                                                  Share        Revaluation             Retained                           
                                                                               capital                reserve             earnings                   Total
                                                                                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Balance at 1 January 2008                                        5,000                  1,154                     845                  6,999
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2008                   –                         –                  3,506                  3,506
Other comprehensive income, net of 
income tax

Revaluation reserve
– Revaluation of freehold premises                                 –                    (969)                        –                    (969)
– Amount transferred to profit and loss                           –                      (39)                        –                      (39)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total other comprehensive income                               –                 (1,008)                        –                 (1,008)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total comprehensive income for the period                 –                 (1,008)                 3,506                  2,498                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions 
to owners

Dividends                                                                          –                         –                    (750)                  (750)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total contributions by and 
distributions to owners                                               –                         –                    (750)                  (750)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Balance at 31 December 2008                                5,000                     146                  3,601                  8,747                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Year ended 31 December 2009

                                                                                  Share        Revaluation             Retained                           
                                                                                capital                reserve             earnings                   Total
                                                                                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Balance at 1 January 2009                                        5,000                     146                  3,601                  8,747
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2009                   –                         –                  5,803                  5,803
Other comprehensive income, net of 
income tax

Revaluation reserve
– Amount transferred to profit and loss                           –                        (2)                        –                        (2)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total other comprehensive income                               –                        (2)                        –                        (2)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total comprehensive income for the period                 –                        (2)                 5,803                  5,801                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions 
to owners

Dividends                                                                          –                         –                 (2,500)               (2,500)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total contributions by and distributions 
to owners                                                                     –                         –                 (2,500)               (2,500)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Balance at 31 December 2009                                5,000                     144                  6,904                12,048                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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Year ended 31 December 2010

                                                                                  Share        Revaluation             Retained                           
                                                                                capital                reserve             earnings                   Total
                                                                                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Balance at 1 January 2010                                        5,000                     144                  6,904                12,048
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2010                   –                         –                  6,250                  6,250
Other comprehensive income, net of 
income tax

Revaluation reserve
– Amount transferred to profit and loss                           –                        (2)                        –                        (2)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total other comprehensive income                               –                        (2)                        –                        (2)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total comprehensive income for the period                 –                        (2)                 6,250                  6,248                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions 
to owners

Dividends                                                                          –                         –                 (2,500)               (2,500)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total contributions by and distributions 
to owners                                                                     –                         –                 (2,500)               (2,500)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Balance at 31 December 2010                                5,000                     142                10,654                15,796                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Six months ended 30 June 2010

                                                                                  Share        Revaluation             Retained                           
                                                                                capital                reserve             earnings                   Total
                                                                                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Balance at 1 January 2010                                        5,000                     144                  6,904                12,048
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the six months ended 30 June 2010                 –                         –                  3,786                  3,786
Other comprehensive income, net of 
income tax

Revaluation reserve
– Amount transferred to profit and loss                           –                        (1)                        –                        (1)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total other comprehensive income                               –                        (1)                        –                        (1)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total comprehensive income for the period                 –                        (1)                 3,786                  3,785                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions to 
owners

Dividends                                                                          –                         –                 (2,000)               (2,000)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total contributions by and distributions 
to owners                                                                     –                         –                 (2,000)               (2,000)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Balance as at 30 June 2010                                     5,000                     143                  8,690                13,833                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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Six months ended 30 June 2011

                                                                                  Share        Revaluation             Retained                           
                                                                                capital                reserve             earnings                   Total
                                                                                   £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Balance at 1 January 2011                                        5,000                     142                10,654                15,796
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the six months ended 30 June 2011                 –                         –                  2,674                  2,674
Other comprehensive income, net of 
income tax

Revaluation reserve
– Amount transferred to profit and loss                           –                        (1)                        –                        (1)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total other comprehensive income                               –                        (1)                        –                        (1)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total comprehensive income for the period                 –                        (1)                 2,674                  2,673                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Transactions with owners, recorded 
directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions 
to owners

Dividends                                                                          –                         –                 (2,000)               (2,000)
                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total contributions by and distributions 
to owners                                                                     –                         –                 (2,000)               (2,000)                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––

Balance as at 30 June 2011                                     5,000                     141                11,328                16,469                                                                           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended Six months ended

                                                         31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                 Note               2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Cash flows from operating 
activities

Profit for the period                                       3,506              5,803              6,250              3,786              2,674
Income tax expense                                       1,528              2,293              2,436              1,463                 990
Depreciation                                                     481                 551                 781                 283                 227
Amortisation                                                     131                 155                 179                   84                   77
Group restructure 

intercompany balances                                     –                 693                     –                     –                     –
Provisions against amounts 

due from customers                                      533              1,173              2,168                 814              1,812
Profit on disposal of computer 

software                                                           (3)                    –                     –                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Cash flows from operating 

profits before changes in 
operating assets and 
liabilities                                                    6,176            10,668            11,814              6,430              5,780

Changes in operating assets 
and liabilities:

– net (increase)/decrease in 
loans and advances to
customers                                                    3,541           (40,062)          (40,210)          (15,837)          (36,187)

– net (increase)/decrease in 
other assets                                                (1,441)            (1,251)            (9,572)            (4,973)             2,217

– net increase/(decrease) in 
deposits from banks                                          4                    (4)                    –                     –                     –

– net increase/(decrease) in 
amounts due to
customers                                                  (3,716)           57,514            60,436            69,936            63,223

– net increase/(decrease) in 
other liabilities                                            3,177             (1,432)                612                (520)             1,759

– Income tax (paid)/received                            (46)               (380)            (2,400)               (988)               (819)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net cash inflow from 
operating activities                                  7,695            25,053            20,680            54,048            35,973                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Cash flows from investing 
activities

Purchase of intangible assets      15                  (55)               (650)               (177)                    –                  (23)
Purchase of property, plant 

and equipment                         17                (544)               (153)               (124)                 (55)                 (42)
Proceeds from sale of software                          38                     –                     –                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net cash from investing 
activities                                                      (561)               (803)               (301)                 (55)                 (65)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

55



Year ended Six months ended
                                                         31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                 Note               2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
Cash flows from financing 
activities

Subordinated loan increase                                  –              1,400                     –                     –                     –
Dividends paid                                                (750)            (2,500)            (2,500)            (2,000)            (2,000)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net cash used in financing 
activities                                                      (750)            (1,100)            (2,500)            (2,000)            (2,000)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Net increase in cash and 
cash equivalents                                       6,384            23,150            17,879            51,993            33,908

Cash and cash equivalents at 
1 January                                                 20,804            27,188            50,338            50,338            68,217

                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents as 
at 30 June/31 December        28            27,188            50,338            68,217          102,331          102,125                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.        Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1      Reporting entity

Secure Trust Bank PLC is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom (referred to as the
“Company”). The registered address of Secure Trust Bank PLC is One Arleston Way, Solihull,
B90 4LH. The consolidated financial statements of Secure Trust Bank PLC as at and for the six
months ended 30 June 2011 comprise Secure Trust Bank PLC and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group” and individually as “subsidiaries”). The Group is primarily involved in banking and
financial services.

1.2      Basis of presentation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
(as adopted and endorsed by the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
note 2.

The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. For this reason,
they continue to adopt the ‘going concern’ basis for preparing accounts.

(a)      Standards, interpretations and amendments effective in 2011 – relevant to the Group

•          IAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related party disclosures’ (effective from 1 January 2011). The
revised standard includes an exemption from the disclosure requirements for related
party transactions between “state controlled” entities and includes a revised definition
for related parties.

•          Improvements to IFRS. Sets out minor amendments to IFRS standards as part of annual
improvements process.

The above changes did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

(b)      Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (applicable to the Group)
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 or later
periods, but the Group has not early adopted them:

•          IFRS 7 (Revised), ‘Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets’ (effective from 1 July
2011). The revised standard requires additional disclosures for transfers of financial
assets and where there are a disproportionate amount of transactions undertaken around
the period end. The revised standard will not have any material impact on the Group’s
financial accounts.1
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•          IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2013). This standard deals
with the classification and measurement of financial assets and will replace IAS 39. The
requirements of this standard represent a significant change from the existing
requirements in IAS 39. The standard contains two primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. The standard eliminates the existing IAS
39 categories of ‘held to maturity’, ‘available for sale’ and ‘loans and receivables’. The
potential effect of this standard is currently being evaluated but it is expected to have a
pervasive impact on the Group’s financial statements, due to the nature of the Group’s
operations.2

1.3      Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

1.4      Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for all
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group only
recognises interest income on loans that make a payment in the accounting period.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

1.5      Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions which are not considered integral to the effective interest rate are generally
recognised on an accruals basis when the service has been provided.

1.6      Financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and other financial
liabilities. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition. A
financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value as well as the transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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(a)       Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised on the date on which
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets held in this category are carried at fair value through profit or
loss.

(b)      Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans are recognised
when cash is advanced to the borrowers. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

(c)      Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(d)      Other financial liabilities

Deposits are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments. Deposits
are recognised when cash is received from the depositors. Deposits are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

(e)       Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is
created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability in the statement
of financial position. In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the
transferred asset. There have not been any instances where assets have only been partially
derecognised.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

(f)       Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal payments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for
impairment.

1.7      Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.8      Impairment of financial assets

(a)      Assets carried at amortised cost

On an on-going basis the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment
loss include, but are not limited to, the following:

•          Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

•          Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower; and

•          Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment.
Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in the statement of comprehensive
income.

(b)      Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and
whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as
new loans.

1.9      Intangible assets

(a)      Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a loan book acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired loan book at the date of acquisition.

The goodwill on the Music loan book relates to relationships with suppliers. These are assessed
as enduring relationships and therefore goodwill is deemed to have an infinite life.

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment or when events or changes in economic
circumstances indicate that impairment may have taken place and carried at fair value less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amounts. This will be
released over the life of the book.

(b)      Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the
expected useful lives (three to five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised
as an expense as incurred.
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1.10    Property, plant and equipment

Property is held at historical cost as modified by revaluation less depreciation. Plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to reduce their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, applying the following
annual rates, which are subject to regular review:

Freehold Buildings 2 per cent.

Office equipment 5 per cent. to 15 per cent.

Computer equipment 20 per cent. to 33 per cent.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These
are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Group has elected under IAS 16.31 to measure its property at fair value. Revaluations should be
kept up to date such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from its fair value as required
by IAS 16.34.

1.11    Leases

Rentals made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease.

1.12    Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less
than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash, loans and advances to banks
and building societies and short-term highly liquid debt securities.

1.13    Employee benefits

Post-retirement obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution scheme and to individual defined contribution
schemes for the benefit of certain employees. The schemes are funded through payments to insurance
companies or trustee-administered funds at the contribution rates agreed with individual employees.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

There are no post-retirement benefits other than pensions.

1.14    Income taxation

Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the profits arise. Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as an asset only
to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset against current or future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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1.15    Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved.

2.        Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

2.1      Estimation uncertainty

Credit losses

The Group reviews its loan portfolios and held-to-maturity investments to assess impairment at least
on a half-yearly basis. The basis for evaluating impairment losses is described in note 1.8. Where
financial assets are individually evaluated for impairment, management uses their best estimates in
calculating the net present value of future cash flows. Management has to make judgements on the
financial position of the counterparty and the net realisable value of collateral, in determining the
expected future cash flows.

Goodwill impairment

The accounting policy for goodwill is described in note 1.9 (a). Significant management judgements
are made in estimations, to evaluate whether an impairment of goodwill is necessary.

Goodwill is monitored for management purposes throughout the period. This will enable management
to complete goodwill impairment testing if indicators arise. The accuracy of future cash flows is
subject to a high degree of uncertainty in volatile market conditions. During such conditions,
management would do impairment testing more frequently than annually to ensure that the
assumptions applied are still valid in the current market conditions.

At the time of the impairment testing, if the future expected cash flows decline and/or the cost of
capital has increased, then the recoverable amount will reduce.

Purchased Loan Books

Income on purchased books is calculated using the EIR method. Future cash flows were assessed at
inception and are reviewed in line with business performance on a regular basis.

Taxation

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

2.2      Judgements

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a half-yearly basis. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive
income, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the
decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling
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its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and
timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Valuation of financial instruments

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are based on quoted market prices. If the market
is not active the Group establishes a fair value by using appropriate valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same for which market observable prices exist, net present value and discounted cash
flow analysis. The objective of valuation techniques is to determine the fair value of the financial
instrument at the reporting date as the price that would have been agreed between active market
participants in an arm’s length transaction.

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making measurements:

•         Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

•          Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

•          Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The consideration of factors such as the magnitude and frequency of trading activity, the availability
of prices and the size of bid/offer spreads, assist in the judgement as to whether a market is active.
If in the opinion of management, a significant proportion of the instrument’s carrying amount is driven
by unobservable inputs, the instrument in its entirety is classified as valued using significant
unobservable inputs. ‘Unobservable’ in this context means that there is little or no current market data
available from which to determine the level at which an arm’s length transaction would be likely to
occur. It generally does not mean that there is no market data available at all upon which to base a
determination of fair value (consensus pricing data may, for example, be used).

At 30 June 2011

                                                                     Level 1               Level 2               Level 3                   Total
                                                                        £000                   £000                   £000                   £000

Derivative financial instruments                            –                     501                         –                     501
                                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total                                                                       –                     501                         –                     501                                                                ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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3.        Maturity analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2008:

As at 31 December 2008

                                                                                                     Due within   Due after more
                                                                                                        one year     than one year                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                           13                         –                       13
Loans and advances to banks                                                             12,882                         –                12,882
Loans and advances to customers                                                        5,470                  7,081                12,551
Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                         14,293                         –                14,293
Other assets                                                                                          5,449                  1,371                  6,820
Intangible assets                                                                                          –                     290                     290
Property, plant and equipment                                                                    –                  6,350                  6,350
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                        38,107                15,092                53,199                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks                                                                                    4                         –                         4
Deposits from customers                                                                    35,828                         –                35,828
Current tax liability                                                                              1,444                         –                  1,444
Other liabilities                                                                                     6,102                         –                  6,102
Deferred tax liability                                                                                   –                       74                       74
Debt securities in issue                                                                                –                  1,000                  1,000
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                   43,378                  1,074                44,452                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The table below shows the maturity analysis of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2009:

As at 31 December 2009

                                                                                                     Due within   Due after more
                                                                                                        one year     than one year                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                             4                         –                         4
Loans and advances to banks                                                             39,334                         –                39,334
Loans and advances to customers                                                      16,566                34,874                51,440
Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                         11,000                         –                11,000
Other assets                                                                                          7,280                         –                  7,280
Intangible assets                                                                                          –                     785                     785
Property, plant and equipment                                                                    –                  5,952                  5,952
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                        74,184                41,611              115,795                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers                                                                    93,342                         –                93,342
Current tax liability                                                                              1,517                         –                  1,517
Other liabilities                                                                                     6,423                         –                  6,423
Deferred tax liability                                                                                   9                       56                       65
Debt securities in issue                                                                                –                  2,400                  2,400
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                 101,291                  2,456              103,747                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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The table below shows the maturity analysis of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2010:

As at 31 December 2010

                                                                                                     Due within   Due after more
                                                                                                        one year     than one year                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                           13                         –                       13
Loans and advances to banks                                                             42,577                         –                42,577
Loans and advances to customers                                                      35,318                54,164                89,482
Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                         25,627                         –                25,627
Other assets                                                                                        15,850                  1,002                16,852
Intangible assets                                                                                          –                     783                     783
Property, plant and equipment                                                                    –                  5,295                  5,295
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                      119,385                61,244              180,629                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers                                                                  153,778                         –              153,778
Current tax liability                                                                              1,564                         –                  1,564
Other liabilities                                                                                     7,035                         –                  7,035
Deferred tax liability                                                                                   –                       56                       56
Debt securities in issue                                                                                –                  2,400                  2,400
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                 162,377                  2,456              164,833                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The table below shows the maturity analysis of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2010:

As at 30 June 2010

                                                                                                     Due within   Due after more
                                                                                                        one year     than one year                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                             6                         –                         6
Loans and advances to banks                                                             44,755                         –                44,755
Loans and advances to customers                                                      18,726                47,737                66,463
Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                         57,570                         –                57,570
Other assets                                                                                        12,254                         –                12,254
Intangible assets                                                                                          –                     701                     701
Property, plant and equipment                                                                    –                  5,724                  5,724
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                      133,311                54,162              187,473                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers                                                                  163,278                         –              163,278
Current tax liability                                                                              2,019                         –                  2,019
Other liabilities                                                                                     5,878                         –                  5,878
Deferred tax liability                                                                                   –                       65                       65
Debt securities in issue                                                                                –                  2,400                  2,400
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                 171,175                  2,465              173,640                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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The table below shows the maturity analysis of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2011:

As at 30 June 2011

                                                                                                     Due within   Due after more
                                                                                                        one year     than one year                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                           10                         –                       10
Loans and advances to banks                                                             96,560                         –                96,560
Loans and advances to customers                                                      43,896                79,961              123,857
Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                           5,555                         –                  5,555
Other assets                                                                                        14,635                         –                14,635
Derivative financial instruments                                                                  –                     501                     501
Intangible assets                                                                                          –                     729                     729
Property, plant and equipment                                                                    –                  5,110                  5,110
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                      160,656                86,301              246,957                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers                                                                  174,716                42,285              217,001
Current tax liability                                                                              1,637                         –                  1,637
Other liabilities                                                                                     6,715                  2,079                  8,794
Deferred tax liability                                                                                   –                       56                       56
Debt securities in issue                                                                                –                  3,000                  3,000
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                 183,068                47,420              230,488                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
4.        Financial risk management

Strategy

The Directors and senior management of the Group have formally adopted a Risk and Controls Policy which
sets out the Board’s attitude to risk and internal controls. Key risks identified by the Directors are formally
reviewed and assessed at least once a year by the Board, in addition to which key business risks are
identified, evaluated and managed by operating management on an ongoing basis by means of procedures
such as physical controls, credit and other authorisation limits and segregation of duties. The Board also
receives regular reports on any risk matters that need to be brought to its attention. Significant risks identified
in connection with the development of new activities are subject to consideration by the Board. There are
budgeting procedures in place and reports are presented regularly to the Board detailing the results of each
principal business unit, variances against budget and prior year, and other performance data.

The principal non-operational risks inherent in the Group’s business are credit and liquidity risk.

(a)      Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred at
the statement of financial position date. Significant changes in the economy could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the statement of financial position date. Management therefore
carefully manages its exposures to credit risk as they consider this to be the most significant risk to
the business.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to individual borrowers or groups of borrowers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis
and subject to an annual or more frequent review. The limits on the level of credit risk are approved
periodically by the Board of Directors and actual exposures against limits monitored daily.

66



Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits
where appropriate. The assets undergo a rigorous scoring process to mitigate risk and are monitored
by the Board.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on the following dates was as follows:

                                                              As at 31        As at 31        As at 31             As at              As at
                                                           December     December     December         30 June         30 June
                                                                   2008              2009              2010              2010              2011
                                                                   £000              £000              £000              £000              £000
Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are
as follows:
Loans and advances to banks                  12,882           39,334           42,577           44,755           96,560
Loan and advances to customers            12,551           51,440           89,482           66,463         123,857
Debt securities held-to-maturity             14,293           11,000           25,627           57,570             5,555
Amounts due from related

companies                                              4,933             5,492           11,379             8,684           10,559
Derivative financial instruments                      –                    –                    –                    –                501
                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
As at 30 June/31 December                  44,659         107,266         169,065         177,472         237,032                                                           ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
The above table represents the maximum credit risk exposure (net of impairment) to the Group
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance-
sheet assets, the exposures are based on the net carrying amounts as reported in the balance sheet.

(b)      Operational risk

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the Group’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiatives and creativity. Operational risk arises from all of the Group’s operations.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational
risk is assigned to the senior management of the Group.

Compliance with Group standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
Internal Audit. The results of the Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the company’s senior
management, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee.

(c)      Market risk

Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate and currency products, all of which are exposed
to general and specific market movements.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposures in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential adverse impact on the Group’s future cash flows from changes in
interest rates and arises from the differing interest rate risk characteristics of the Group’s assets and
liabilities. In particular, fixed rate products expose the Group to the risk that a change in interest rates
could cause either a reduction in interest income or an increase in interest expense relative to variable
rate interest flows. The Group seeks to “match” interest rate risk on either side of the statement of
financial position. However, this is not a perfect match and interest rate risk is present on money
market deposits of a fixed rate nature. The Group monitors the interest rate mismatch on a daily basis
in conjunction with liquidity and capital.
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The interest rate mismatch is monitored, throughout the maturity bandings of the book, on a parallel
scenario for both 50 and 100 basis points movement. The Group consider the 50 and 100 basis points
movement to be appropriate for scenario testing given the current economic outlook and industry
expectations. This typically results in a pre-tax mismatch of £0.1 million or less (2010: £0.5 million
to £0.9 million) for the Group, with the same impact to equity pre-tax. In June 2011 the Group put
interest rate caps in place primarily to hedge the exposure to cash flow variability from interest rate
movements on variable rate customer deposits.

Interest rate sensitivity gap

The following tables summarise the repricing periods for the assets and liabilities in the Group. Items
are allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate and the
maturity date.

As at 31 December 2008
                                                              More than     More than     More than                                            
                                                                3 months       6 months      1 year but                                      Non
                                              Within  but less than  but less than        less than     More than          interest
                                          3 months       6 months            1 year          5 years          5 years          bearing              Total
                                                £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000

ASSETS
Cash                                               –                    –                    –                    –                    –                  13                  13
Loans and advances

to banks                            12,882                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           12,882
Loans and advances to

customers                            7,195             4,258                    –             5,536                    –            (4,438)          12,551
Debt securities held-

to-maturity                        11,293             3,000                    –                    –                    –                    –           14,293
Other assets                                   –                    –                    –                    –                    –           13,460           13,460
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                          31,370             7,258                    –             5,536                    –             9,035           53,199                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks                     4                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –                    4
Deposits from 

customers                          35,828                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           35,828
Other liabilities                              –                    –                    –                    –                    –             7,620             7,620
Debt securities in issue          1,000                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –             1,000
Equity                                            –                    –                    –                    –                    –             8,747             8,747
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                    36,832                    –                    –                    –                    –           16,367           53,199                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Interest rate sensitivity

gap                                     (5,462)            7,258                    –             5,536                    –            (7,332)                   –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cumulative gap                     (5,462)            1,796             1,796             7,332             7,332                    –                    –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
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As at 31 December 2009
                                                              More than     More than     More than                                            
                                                                3 months       6 months      1 year but                                      Non
                                              Within  but less than  but less than        less than     More than          interest
                                          3 months       6 months            1 year          5 years          5 years          bearing              Total
                                                £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000

ASSETS
Cash                                               –                    –                    –                    –                    –                    4                    4
Loans and advances

to banks                            35,334             4,000                    –                    –                    –                    –           39,334
Loans and advances to

customers                            3,636             1,748             8,728           40,075                    –            (2,747)          51,440
Debt securities held-

to-maturity                        11,000                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           11,000
Other assets                                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           14,017           14,017
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                           49,970             5,748             8,728           40,075                    –           11,274         115,795                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from 

customers                          93,342                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           93,342
Other liabilities                              –                    –                    –                    –                    –             8,005             8,005
Debt securities in issue           2,400                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –             2,400
Equity                                            –                    –                    –                    –                    –           12,048           12,048
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                     95,742                    –                    –                    –                    –           20,053         115,795                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Interest rate sensitivity

gap                                   (45,772)            5,748             8,728           40,075                    –            (8,779)                   –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cumulative gap                   (45,772)        (40,024)        (31,296)            8,779             8,779                    –                    –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
As at 31 December 2010
                                                              More than     More than     More than                                            
                                                                3 months       6 months      1 year but                                      Non
                                              Within  but less than  but less than        less than     More than          interest
                                          3 months       6 months            1 year          5 years          5 years          bearing              Total
                                                £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000

ASSETS
Cash                                               –                    –                    –                    –                    –                  13                  13
Loans and advances

to banks                            36,590             5,987                    –                    –                    –                    –           42,577
Loans and advances to

customers                          13,274           11,376           15,490           55,861                    –            (6,519)          89,482
Debt securities held-

to-maturity                        15,589             5,028             5,010                    –                    –                    –           25,627
Other assets                                   –                    –                    –                    –                    –           22,930           22,930
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                          65,453           22,391           20,500           55,861                    –           16,424         180,629                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from 

customers                        153,778                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –         153,778
Other liabilities                              –                    –                    –                    –                    –             8,655             8,655
Debt securities in issue          2,400                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –             2,400
Equity                                            –                    –                    –                    –                    –           15,796           15,796
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                  156,178                    –                    –                    –                    –           24,451         180,629                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Interest rate sensitivity

gap                                   (90,725)          22,391           20,500           55,861                    –            (8,027)                   –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cumulative gap                   (90,725)        (68,334)        (47,834)            8,027             8,027                    –                    –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
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As at 30 June 2010
                                                              More than     More than     More than                                            
                                                                3 months       6 months      1 year but                                      Non
                                              Within  but less than  but less than        less than     More than          interest
                                          3 months       6 months            1 year          5 years          5 years          bearing              Total
                                                £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000

ASSETS
Cash                                               –                    –                    –                    –                    –                    6                    6
Loans and advances

to banks                            44,755                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –           44,755
Loans and advances to

customers                            6,443             3,716           10,260           52,415                207            (6,578)          66,463
Debt securities held-

to-maturity                        34,531           12,000           11,039                    –                    –                    –           57,570
Other assets                                   –                    –                    –                    –                    –           18,679           18,679
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                          85,729           15,716           21,299           52,415                207           12,107         187,473                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from 

customers                        163,278                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –         163,278
Other liabilities                              –                    –                    –                    –                    –             7,962             7,962
Debt securities in issue          2,400                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –             2,400
Equity                                            –                    –                    –                    –                    –           13,833           13,833
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                  165,678                    –                    –                    –                    –           21,795         187,473                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Interest rate sensitivity

gap                                   (79,949)          15,716           21,299           52,415                207            (9,688)                   –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cumulative gap                   (79,949)        (64,233)        (42,934)            9,481             9,688                    –                    –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
As at 30 June 2011
                                                              More than     More than     More than                                            
                                                                3 months       6 months      1 year but                                      Non
                                              Within  but less than  but less than        less than     More than          interest
                                          3 months       6 months            1 year          5 years          5 years          bearing              Total
                                                £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000              £000

ASSETS
Cash                                               –                    –                    –                    –                    –                  10                  10
Loans and advances

to banks                            83,591           12,969                    –                    –                    –                    –           96,560
Loans and advances to

customers                          15,092           12,528           19,592           85,415                    –            (8,770)        123,857
Debt securities held-

to-maturity                             555             5,000                    –                    –                    –                    –             5,555
Other assets                                   –                    –                    –                    –                    –           20,474           20,474
Derivative financial

instruments                                –                    –                    –                    –                    –                501                501
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total assets                          99,238           30,497           19,592           85,415                    –           12,215         246,957                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers    174,716                    –                    –           42,285                    –                    –         217,001
Other liabilities                              –                    –                    –                    –                    –           10,487           10,487
Debt securities in issue          3,000                    –                    –                    –                    –                    –             3,000
Equity                                            –                    –                    –                    –                    –           16,469           16,469
                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Total liabilities                  177,716                    –                    –           42,285                    –           26,956         246,957                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Interest rate sensitivity

gap                                   (78,478)          30,497           19,592           43,130                    –          (14,741)                   –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
Cumulative gap                   (78,478)        (47,981)        (28,389)          14,741           14,741                    –                    –                                        ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––      ––––––––
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(d)      Liquidity risk

The new liquidity regime came into force on the 1 October 2010. The FSA requires a firm to maintain
at all times liquidity resources which are adequate, both as to amount and quality, to ensure that there
is no significant risk that its liabilities cannot be met as they fall due. There is also a requirement that
a firm ensures its liquidity resources contain an adequate buffer of high quality, unencumbered assets
(i.e. Government securities in the liquidity asset buffer); and it maintains a prudent funding profile.
The liquid assets buffer is a pool of highly liquid assets that can be called upon to create sufficient
liquidity to meet liabilities on demand, particularly in a period of liquidity stress. The liquidity
resources outside the buffer must either be marketable assets with a demonstrable secondary market
that the firm can access, or a credit facility that can be activated in times of stress.

The Group prepared and approved its Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment (ILAA). The
liquidity buffers required by the ILAA have all been put in place and maintained since. Liquidity
resources outside of the buffer are made up of certificates of deposit. The Group also maintains long-
term committed bank facilities.

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current
accounts, maturing deposits and loan draw-downs. The Group does not maintain cash resources to
meet all of these needs, as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds
can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of
maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of inter-bank and other
borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities
is fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
transacted business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure
to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

The table below analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the Group into relevant maturity
groupings at 31 December 2008:

As at 31 December 2008

                                                           Gross                              More than       More than
                                                       nominal                  Not         3 months      1 year but                       
                               Carrying            inflow/       more than           but less         less than       More than
                                 amount          (outflow)       3 months     than 1 year            5 years            5 years
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Non-derivative
liabilities

Deposits from banks           4                    (4)                   (4)                    –                     –                     –
Deposits from

customers               35,828           (35,828)            (5,147)          (30,681)                    –                     –
Other liabilities            6,102             (6,102)            (6,102)                    –                     –                     –
Debt securities

in issue                     1,000             (1,000)                    –                     –                     –             (1,000)
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                  42,934           (42,934)          (11,253)          (30,681)                    –             (1,000)                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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The table below analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the Group into relevant maturity
groupings at 31 December 2009:

As at 31 December 2009

                                                           Gross                              More than       More than
                                                       nominal                  Not         3 months      1 year but                       
                               Carrying            inflow/       more than           but less         less than       More than
                                 amount          (outflow)       3 months     than 1 year            5 years            5 years
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Non-derivative
liabilities

Deposits from
customers               93,342           (93,342)          (67,366)          (25,976)                    –                     –

Other liabilities            6,423             (6,423)            (1,383)            (5,040)                    –                     –
Debt securities

in issue                     2,400             (2,400)                    –                     –             (2,400)                    –
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                102,165         (102,165)          (68,749)          (31,016)            (2,400)                    –                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The table below analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the Group into relevant maturity
groupings at 31 December 2010:

As at 31 December 2010

                                                           Gross                              More than       More than
                                                       nominal                  Not         3 months      1 year but                       
                               Carrying            inflow/       more than           but less         less than       More than
                                 amount          (outflow)       3 months     than 1 year            5 years            5 years
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Non-derivative
liabilities

Deposits from
customers             153,778         (153,778)          (74,472)          (79,306)                    –                     –

Other liabilities            7,035             (7,035)            (5,003)            (2,032)                    –                     –
Debt securities

in issue                     2,400             (2,400)                    –                     –                     –             (2,400)
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                163,213         (163,213)          (79,475)          (81,338)                    –             (2,400)                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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The table below analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the Group into relevant maturity
groupings at 30 June 2010:

As at 30 June 2010

                                                           Gross                              More than       More than
                                                       nominal                  Not         3 months      1 year but                       
                               Carrying            inflow/       more than           but less         less than       More than
                                 amount          (outflow)       3 months     than 1 year            5 years            5 years
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Non-derivative
liabilities

Deposits from
customers             163,278         (163,278)          (83,701)          (79,577)                    –                     –

Other liabilities            5,878             (5,878)            (5,878)                    –                     –                     –
Debt securities

in issue                     2,400             (2,400)                    –                     –             (2,400)                    –
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                171,556         (171,556)          (89,579)          (79,577)            (2,400)                    –                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The table below analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the Group into relevant maturity
groupings at 30 June 2011:

As at 30 June 2011

                                                           Gross                              More than       More than
                                                       nominal                  Not         3 months      1 year but                       
                               Carrying            inflow/       more than           but less         less than       More than
                                 amount          (outflow)       3 months     than 1 year            5 years            5 years
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Non-derivative
liabilities

Deposits from
customers             217,001         (217,001)          (93,653)          (81,063)          (42,285)                    –

Other liabilities            8,794             (8,794)            (6,715)                    –             (2,079)                    –
Debt securities

in issue                     3,000             (3,000)                    –                     –                     –             (3,000)
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                228,795         (228,795)        (100,368)          (81,063)          (44,364)            (3,000)                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the group and its exposure
to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
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(e)      Financial assets and liabilities

The tables below sets out the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities into the respective
classifications:

                                                                                                          Other               Total
                                                       Held-to-      Loans and       amortised          carrying
                                                       maturity     receivables                 cost           amount       Fair value
                                                             £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

As at 31 December 2008

Cash                                                           –                   13                     –                   13                   13
Loans and advances to banks                    –            12,882                     –            12,882            12,882
Loans and advances to customers             –            12,551                     –            12,551            12,551
Debt securities held-to-maturity       14,293                     –                     –            14,293            14,293
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                          14,293            25,446                     –            39,739            39,739                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deposits from banks                                  –                     –                     4                     4                     4
Deposits from customers                           –                     –            35,828            35,828            35,828
Debt securities in issue                              –                     –              1,000              1,000              1,000
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                   –                     –            36,832            36,832            36,832                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 31 December 2009

Cash                                                           –                     4                     –                     4                     4
Loans and advances to banks                    –            39,334                     –            39,334            39,334
Loans and advances to customers             –            51,440                     –            51,440            51,440
Debt securities held-to-maturity       11,000                     –                     –            11,000            11,000
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                          11,000            90,778                     –          101,778          101,778                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deposits from customers                           –                     –            93,342            93,342            93,342
Debt securities in issue                              –                     –              2,400              2,400              2,400
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                   –                     –            95,742            95,742            95,742                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 31 December 2010

Cash                                                           –                   13                     –                   13                   13
Loans and advances to banks                    –            42,577                     –            42,577            42,577
Loans and advances to customers             –            89,482                     –            89,482            89,482
Debt securities held-to-maturity       25,627                     –                     –            25,627            25,627
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                          25,627          132,072                     –          157,699          157,699                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deposits from customers                           –                     –          153,778          153,778          153,778
Debt securities in issue                              –                     –              2,400              2,400              2,400
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                   –                     –          156,178          156,178          156,178                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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As at 30 June 2010

                                                                                                          Other               Total
                                                       Held-to-      Loans and       amortised          carrying
                                                       maturity     receivables                 cost           amount       Fair value
                                                             £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Cash                                                           –                     6                     –                     6                     6
Loans and advances to banks                    –            44,755                     –            44,755            44,755
Loans and advances to customers             –            66,463                     –            66,463            66,463
Debt securities held-to-maturity       57,570                     –                     –            57,570            57,570
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                          57,570          111,224                     –          168,794          168,794                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deposits from customers                           –                     –          163,278          163,278          163,278
Debt securities in issue                              –                     –              2,400              2,400              2,400
                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                   –                     –          165,678          165,678          165,678                                                     ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 30 June 2011

                                       Fair
                                     value                                                                                             
                                 through                                                            Other               Total
                                     profit         Held-to-      Loans and       amortised          carrying
                                   or loss          maturity     receivables                 cost           amount       Fair value
                                     £000               £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Cash                                                           –                   10                     –                   10                   10
Loans and advances

to banks                                                  –            96,560                     –            96,560            96,560
Loans and advances

to customers                                           –          123,857                     –          123,857          123,857
Debt securities

held-to-maturity                              5,555                     –                     –              5,555              5,555
Derivative financial

instruments                 501                     –                     –                     –                 501                 501
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                       501              5,555          220,427                     –          226,483          226,483                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deposits from

customers                                               –                     –          217,001          217,001          217,001
Debt securities

in issue                                                   –                     –              3,000              3,000              3,000
                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                   –                     –          220,001          220,001          220,001                             ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

5.        Capital management

The Group’s capital management policy is focused on optimising shareholder value, in a safe and sustainable
manner. There is a clear focus on delivering organic growth and ensuring capital resources are sufficient to
support planned levels of growth. The Board regularly reviews the capital position.

In accordance with the EU’s Capital Requirements Directive (CRD) and the required parameters set out in
the FSA Handbook (BIPRU 2.2), the Individual Capital Assessment Process (ICAAP) is embedded in the
risk management framework of the Group and is subject to ongoing updates and revisions when necessary.
However, at a minimum, the ICAAP is updated annually as part of the business planning process. The
ICAAP is a process that brings together management framework (i.e. the policies, procedures, strategies, and
systems that the Group has implemented to identify, manage and mitigate its risks) and the financial
disciplines of business planning and capital management.
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Not all material risks can be mitigated by capital, but where capital is appropriate the Board has adopted a
“Pillar 1 plus” approach to determine the level of capital the Group needs to hold. This method takes the
Pillar 1 capital formula calculations (standardised approach for credit, market and operational risk) as a
starting point, and then considers whether each of the calculations delivers a sufficient capital sum
adequately to cover management’s anticipated risks. Where the Board considers that the Pillar 1 calculations
does not reflect the risk, an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2 should be applied, as per the Individual
Capital Guidance (ICG) issued by the FSA.

The Group’s regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

•          Tier 1 comprises mainly shareholders’ funds, non-controlling interests, after deducting goodwill and
other intangible assets.

•          Lower Tier 2 comprises qualifying subordinated loan capital and revaluation reserves. Lower Tier 2
capital cannot exceed 50 per cent. of tier 1 capital.

The following table shows the regulatory capital resources as managed by the Group:

                                                                       As at              As at              As at              As at              As at 
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
Tier 1
Share capital                                                  5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000
Retained earnings                                          3,601              6,904            10,654              8,690            11,328
Goodwill                                                               –                (309)               (309)               (309)               (309)
Other deductions                                             (290)               (476)               (474)               (392)               (420)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total tier 1 capital                                        8,311            11,119            14,871            12,989            15,599                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Tier 2
Revaluation reserve                                          146                 144                 142                 143                 141
Debt securities in issue                                  1,000              2,400              2,400              2,400              3,000
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total tier 2 capital                                        1,146              2,544              2,542              2,543              3,141
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total tier 1 & tier 2 capital                         9,457            13,663            17,413            15,532            18,740                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The ICAAP includes a summary of the capital required to mitigate the identified risks in its regulated entities
and the amount of capital that the Group has available. The latest version of the Group ICAAP was approved
by the Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC board on 11 February 2011. The FSA sets ICG for each UK bank
calibrated by references to its Capital Resources Requirement, broadly equivalent to 8 per cent. of risk
weighted assets and thus representing the capital required under Pillar 1 of the Basel II framework. The
ICAAP is a key input into the FSA’s ICG setting process, which addresses the requirements of Pillar 2 of the
Basel II framework. The FSA’s approach is to monitor the available capital resources in relation to the ICG
requirement. The Group maintains an extra internal buffer and capital ratios are reviewed on a monthly basis
to ensure that external requirements are adhered to. The Group has complied with all of the externally
imposed capital requirements to which it is subject.
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6.        Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010              2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Operating expenses comprise:
Staff costs, including Directors:
– Wages and salaries                                      6,380              6,113              6,359              2,769              2,980
– Social security costs                                      558                 515                 665                 317                 285
– Pension costs                                                 214                 206                 202                 106                 120
Amortisation of computer

software (note 15)                                         131                 155                 179                   84                   77
Depreciation (note 17)                                      481                 551                 781                 283                 227
Profit on disposals of property,

plant and equipment                                        (3)                    –                     –                  (39)                   (3)
Financial Services

Compensation Scheme Levy                            3                     –                     –                     –                     –
Charitable donations                                             5                     6                     5                     –                     –
Operating lease rentals                                       80                 161                   95                   42                 184
Restructuring costs                                           320                     –                     –                     –                     –
Group management recharges                              –                 320                 960                 480              1,294
Other administrative expenses                       4,398              3,761              5,104              2,465              2,930
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total operating expenses                             12,567            11,788            14,350              6,507              8,094                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The auditors’ remuneration for the audit of the Group’s accounts was £42,500 (June 2010: £42,500; 2010:
£85,000; 2009: £95,000; 2008: £117,000). Remuneration of the auditors for non-audit services was: services
related to taxation £20,754 (June 2010: £18,000; 2010: £75,000; 2009: £5,000; 2008: £36,000) and all other
services £50,000 (June 2010: £0; 2010: £5,000; 2009: £0; 2008: £0).

Other administrative expenses comprise legal and professional, IT, communications, stationery and other
costs.

7.        Average number of employees

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011

Directors (including non-executive 
directors)                                                           7                     8                     9                     9                     9

Management                                                       10                   10                   12                   11                   12
Administration                                                  238                 194                 185                 183                 202
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total                                                                  255                 212                 206                 203                 223                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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8.        Income tax expense

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
United Kingdom corporation tax

at 26.5% (2010: 28%, 2009: 28%,
2008: 28.5%)

Current taxation
Corporation tax charge – current period       1,444              2,197              2,238              1,188                 993
Corporation tax charge – adjustments

in respect of prior periods                              68                 105                 207                 310                   21
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                      1,512              2,302              2,445              1,498              1,014                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary

differences                                                      16                  (44)               (124)                 (35)                 (24)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods               –                   35                 115                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                           16                    (9)                   (9)                 (35)                 (24)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Income tax expense                                       1,528              2,293              2,436              1,463                 990                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Tax reconciliation
Profit before tax                                             5,034              8,096              8,686              5,249              3,664
Tax at 26.5% (2010: 28%, 2009: 28%,

2008: 28.5%)                                             1,435              2,267              2,432              1,470                 971
Permanent differences                                        25                (114)               (317)               (317)                    –
Tax rate change                                                     –                     –                    (1)                    –                    (2)
Prior period adjustments                                    68                 140                 322                 310                   21
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Corporation tax charge for the 

period                                                         1,528              2,293              2,436              1,463                 990                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 30 per cent. to 28 per cent. with effect from 1 April 2008 and
reduced from 28 per cent. to 26 per cent. with effect from 1 April 2011.

9.        Earnings per ordinary share

Basic and fully diluted

Earnings per ordinary share are calculated on the net basis by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Group of £2,674,000 at 30 June 2011 (June 2010: £3,786,000; 2010: £6,250,000; 2009: £5,803,000;
2008: £3,506,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,000,000 at 30 June 2011 (June
2010: 5,000,000; 2010: 5,000,000; 2009: 5,000,000; 2008: 5,000,000). There is no difference between basic
and fully diluted earnings per ordinary share.

10.      Cash

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December                June                June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
Cash in hand included in cash

and cash equivalents (note 28)                       13                     4                  13                     6                  10                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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11.      Loans and advances to banks

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Placements with banks included in
cash and cash equivalents (note 28)        12,882            39,334            42,577            44,755            96,560                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

Moody’s long term ratings:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Aa1                                                                6,382                     –                     –                     –                     –
Aaa                                                                        –                     –            16,457                     –            59,937
Aa3                                                                       –              6,000              2,491                     –              4,066
No rating (Arbuthnot Banking 

Group PLC)                                               6,500            33,334            23,629            44,755            32,557
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Loans and advances to banks                   12,882            39,334            42,577            44,755            96,560                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
None of the loans and advances to banks is either past due or impaired.

12.      Loans and advances to customers

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Gross loans and advances                            16,989            57,252            97,296            73,041          132,627
Less: allowances for impairment on

loans and advances (note 13)                   (4,438)            (5,812)            (7,814)            (6,578)            (8,770)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Loans and advances to customers            12,551            51,440            89,482            66,463          123,857                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
For a maturity profile of loans and advances to customers, refer to note 4.

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as follows:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Gross investment in finance lease 
receivables:

– No later than 1 year                                           –                 317              3,294              1,267              7,515
– Later than 1 year and no later 

than 5 years                                                       –                 179              5,324              2,364              7,336
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                             –                 496              8,618              3,631            14,851
Unearned future finance income on 

finance leases                                                    –                  (61)            (3,392)            (1,490)            (2,082)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net investment in finance leases                          –                 435              5,226              2,141            12,769                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
The net investment in finance leases 

may be analysed as follows:
– No later than 1 year                                           –                 267              1,405                 581              7,252
– Later than 1 year and no later 

than 5 years                                                       –                 168              3,821              1,560              5,517
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                             –                 435              5,226              2,141            12,769                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Loans and advances to customers can be further summarised as follows:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Neither past due nor impaired                     10,225            45,901            79,893            64,438          117,703
Past due but not impaired                              1,899              5,341              5,757              2,708              5,600
Impaired                                                         4,865              6,010            11,646              5,895              9,324
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Gross                                                            16,989            57,252            97,296            73,041          132,627
Less: allowance for impairment                   (4,438)            (5,812)            (7,814)            (6,578)            (8,770)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net                                                               12,551            51,440            89,482            66,463          123,857                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Gross amounts of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Past due up to 30 days                                   1,582              3,953              3,863              1,381              3,455
Past due 30 – 60 days                                       173                 804              1,416                 761              1,382
Past due 60 – 90 days                                       144                 584                 478                 566                 763
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total                                                               1,899              5,341              5,757              2,708              5,600                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
13.      Allowances for impairment of loans and advances

A reconciliation of the allowance account for losses on loans and advances by class is as follows:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

At 1 January                                                  4,815              4,438              5,812              5,812              7,814
Adjustments for disposals                            (1,079)                    –                     –                     2                     –
Impairment losses                                             533              1,173              2,168                 814              1,812
Loans written off during the six

months as uncollectible                                 (44)                    –                (166)                 (50)               (853)
Amounts recovered during the year                 213                 201                     –                     –                    (3)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 30 June/31 December                          4,438              5,812              7,814              6,578              8,770                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––

80



14.      Debt securities held-to-maturity

Debt securities represent certificates of deposit. The Group’s intention is to hold them to maturity and,
therefore, they are stated in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. All of which had a maturity,
when placed, of 3 months or less included in cash and cash equivalents (note 28).

The movement in debt securities held to maturity may be summarised as follows:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

At 1 January                                                16,021            14,293            11,000            11,000            25,627
Additions                                                     77,858            48,097          150,790            96,051              9,507
Redemptions                                               (79,586)          (51,390)        (136,163)          (49,481)          (29,579)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 30 June/31 December                        14,293            11,000            25,627            57,570              5,555                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Moody’s long term ratings:

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Aa1                                                                3,422                     –
Aa2                                                              10,871                     –              5,000              5,000                     –
Aa3                                                                       –            11,000            20,627            52,570              5,555
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                    14,293            11,000            25,627            57,570              5,555                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
None of the debt securities held-to-maturity are either past due or impaired.

15.      Intangible assets

Goodwill

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Opening net book amount                                    –                     –                 309                 309                 309
Additions                                                              –                 309                     –                     –                     –
Accumulated amortisation charge                        –                     –                     –                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Closing net book amount                                     –                 309                 309                 309                 309                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Computer Software

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

At 1 January                                                  1,395              1,414              1,755              1,755              1,932
Additions                                                            55                 341                 177                     –                   23
Disposals                                                           (36)                    –                     –                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 30 June/31 December                          1,414              1,755              1,932              1,755              1,955                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
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                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January                                                    (993)            (1,124)            (1,279)            (1,279)            (1,458)
Amortisation charge                                        (131)               (155)               (179)                 (84)                 (77)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As at 30 June/31 December                         (1,124)            (1,279)            (1,458)            (1,363)            (1,535)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net book amount                                            290                 476                 474                 392                 420                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total intangible assets
                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June          30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Goodwill                                                               –                 309                 309                 309                 309
Computer software                                           290                 476                 474                 392                 420
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total                                                                290                 785                 783                 701                 729                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
16.      Shares in subsidiary undertakings
                                                                                                            Shares        Impairment
                                                                                                            at cost           provisions                      Net
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000
At 1 January 2008                                                                                1,513                 (1,016)                    497
Write off investment                                                                                    –                         –                         –
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 December 2008                                                                          1,513                 (1,016)                    497                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Write off investment                                                                                    –                    (426)                  (426)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 December 2009                                                                          1,513                 (1,442)                      71                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Write off investment                                                                                    –                      (70)                    (70)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 31 December 2010                                                                          1,513                 (1,512)                        1                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 January 2010                                                                                1,513                 (1,442)                      71
Write off investment                                                                                    –                      (70)                    (70)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 30 June 2010                                                                                   1,513                 (1,512)                        1                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 1 January 2011                                                                                1,513                 (1,512)                        1
Write off investment                                                                                    –                         –                         –
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
At 30 June 2011                                                                                   1,513                 (1,512)                        1                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
The principal subsidiary undertakings of Secure Trust Bank PLC at 30 June 2011 were:

                                                                                                 Country of              Interest       Principal
                                                                                                 incorporation                 %       activity

Secure Homes Services Limited                                              UK                               100       Property Rental
Secure Trust Bank Leasing Limited                                        UK                               100       Leasing

Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment. All subsidiary
undertakings are unlisted. None of the subsidiary undertakings are banking institutions.

(i)    All the above subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidated financial statements and have an accounting reference date
of 31 December

(ii)   All the above interests relate wholly to ordinary shares

82



17.      Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2008

                                                                                                        Freehold          Computer 
                                                                                                        land and           and other 
                                                                                                       buildings          equipment                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2008                                                                                5,885                  7,317                13,202
Additions                                                                                                     –                     544                     544
Revaluation                                                                                         (1,380)                        –                 (1,380)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2008                                                                      4,505                  7,861                12,366
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008                                                                                       –                 (5,535)               (5,535)
Depreciation charge                                                                               (105)                  (376)                  (481)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2008                                                                       (105)               (5,911)               (6,016)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book amount                                                                                4,400                  1,950                  6,350                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
31 December 2009

                                                                                                        Freehold          Computer 
                                                                                                        land and           and other 
                                                                                                       buildings          equipment                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2009                                                                                4,400                  7,861                12,261
Additions                                                                                                     –                     153                     153
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2009                                                                      4,400                  8,014                12,414
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2009                                                                                       –                 (5,911)               (5,911)
Depreciation charge                                                                                 (78)                  (473)                  (551)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2009                                                                         (78)               (6,384)               (6,462)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book amount                                                                                4,322                  1,630                  5,952                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
31 December 2010

                                                                                                        Freehold          Computer 
                                                                                                        land and           and other 
                                                                                                       buildings          equipment                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2010                                                                                4,400                  8,014                12,414
Additions                                                                                                     –                     124                     124
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2010                                                                      4,400                  8,138                12,538
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2010                                                                                    (78)               (6,384)               (6,462)
Depreciation charge                                                                                 (78)                  (703)                  (781)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 31 December 2010                                                                       (156)               (7,087)               (7,243)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book amount                                                                                4,244                  1,051                  5,295                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
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30 June 2010

                                                                                                        Freehold          Computer 
                                                                                                        land and           and other 
                                                                                                       buildings          equipment                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2010                                                                                4,400                  8,014                12,414
Additions                                                                                                     –                       55                       55
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 30 June 2010                                                                               4,400                  8,069                12,469
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2010                                                                                    (78)               (6,384)               (6,462)
Depreciation charge                                                                                 (39)                  (244)                  (283)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 30 June 2010                                                                                (117)               (6,628)               (6,745)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book amount                                                                                4,283                  1,441                  5,724                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
30 June 2011

                                                                                                        Freehold          Computer 
                                                                                                        land and           and other 
                                                                                                       buildings          equipment                   Total
                                                                                                              £000                   £000                   £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2011                                                                                4,400                  8,138                12,538
Additions                                                                                                     –                       42                       42
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 30 June 2011                                                                               4,400                  8,180                12,580
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011                                                                                  (156)               (7,087)               (7,243)
Depreciation charge                                                                                 (39)                  (188)                  (227)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
As at 30 June 2011                                                                                (195)               (7,275)               (7,470)
                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
Net book amount                                                                                4,205                     905                  5,110                                                                                                      ––––––––           ––––––––           ––––––––
During the six month period ended 30 June 2011, a motor vehicle that had previously been written off, was
sold for £3,000.

The Group’s freehold property at 1 Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH, was valued on 17 December 2008 by
an External Valuer, Graham Piercy, FRICS, of DWD2 Limited, Property Consultants. The Valuation was in
accordance with the requirements of the RICS Valuation Standards 6th Edition and the International
Valuation Standards. The Valuation of the property was on the basis and assumption it is an Owner/Occupied
property, valued to Market Value assuming that the property will be sold as part of the continuing business.
The Valuer’s opinion of Market Value was primarily derived using comparable recent market transactions on
arm’s length terms. As a Regulated Purpose Valuation, the Valuer, Graham Piercy FRICS, confirms this was
the first occasion on which he had provided a Valuation of the Property. DWD2 Limited had had no previous
relationship with the Company and accordingly received no fees in DWD2 Limited’s preceding financial
year. The Directors do not believe that the fair value of freehold property is materially different from the
carrying value. All freehold land and buildings are occupied and used by Group companies. The carrying
value of freehold land not depreciated is £0.5 million (June 2010: £0.5 million; 2010: £0.5 million; 2009:
£0.5 million; 2008: £0.5 million).
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The historical cost of freehold property included at valuation is as follows:

                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Cost                                                                3,778              3,778              3,778              3,778              3,778
Accumulated depreciation                              (675)               (751)               (827)               (789)               (865)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Net book amount                                           3,103              3,027              2,951              2,989              2,913                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
18.      Derivative financial instruments

As at 30 June 2011
                                                                                                              Contract/                 Fair                 Fair
                                                                                                                notional               value               value
                                                                                                                  amount              assets        liabilities
                                                                                                                      £000               £000               £000

Interest rate caps                                                                                        40,000                 501                     –

Moody’s long term ratings:
                                                                                                                                                                    As at
                                                                                                                                                                30 June
                                                                                                                                                                   2011
                                                                                                                                                                   £000

Aa3                                                                                                                                                          40,000

19.      Other assets

                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Trade receivables                                           1,381              1,393              1,825              1,083              1,628
Amounts due from related companies          4,933              5,492            11,379              8,684            10,559
Prepayments and accrued income                    506                 395              3,648              2,487              2,448
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                      6,820              7,280            16,852            12,254            14,635                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
20.      Deposits from banks
                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Deposits from other banks                                   4                     –                     –                     –                     –                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
21.      Deposits from customers
                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Current/demand accounts                              5,147            26,418            27,514            27,229            28,741
Term deposits                                              30,681            66,924          126,264          136,049          188,260
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                    35,828            93,342          153,778          163,278          217,001                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
For a maturity profile of deposits from customers, refer to note 4.
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22.      Other liabilities

                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Trade payables                                                  140                   75                   88              1,260              4,820
Amounts due to related companies               5,081              4,330              4,188              2,981              2,104
Accruals and deferred income                          881              2,018              2,759              1,637              1,870
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                      6,102              6,423              7,035              5,878              8,794                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Within trade payables at 30 June 2011, there is £2,079,000 (June 2010: £nil; 2010: £nil; 2009: £nil; 2008:
nil) collateral held from Rentsmart. The Group purchases lease receivables from Rentsmart and pays them a
commission. In return, Rentsmart will continue to operate the agreement, retain the credit risk and provide
the Group with a collateral amount that is at least equal to the capital required for the purchased lease
receivables.

FSCS Levy

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS’) has provided compensation to consumers following
the collapse of a number of deposit takers. The compensation paid out to consumers is currently funded
through loans from the Bank of England and HM Treasury. The Group could be liable to pay a proportion
of the outstanding borrowings that the FSCS has borrowed from HM Treasury which at 30 September 2010
stood at approximately £20 billion. Currently, the levy paid by the Group represents its share of the interest
on these borrowings.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had accrued £124,000 (June 2010: £54,000; 2010: £99,000; 2009: £54,000;
2008: £41,000) in respect of the levy, based on the bank’s estimated share of total market protected deposits.

The ultimate FSCS levy to the industry as a result of the collapses cannot currently be estimated reliably as
it is dependent on various uncertain factors including the potential recoveries of assets by the FSCS and
changes in the interest rate, the level of protected deposits and the population of FSCS members at the time.

23.      Debt securities in issue

                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Subordinated loan                                          1,000              2,400              2,400              2,400              3,000                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
As a consequence of the revised regulatory framework being introduced under Basel II, the Company raised
£1,000k by way of a subordinated loan from the parent Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC in December 2007.
This was due to be repaid in 2015 and attracted interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 1.5 per cent.

The loan was increase by £1,400k in 2009 under the same terms as above. In June 2011 the loan was
increased by a further £600k and the interest rate changed to LIBOR plus 4 per cent. The repayment date of
the loan was also extended to 2017.
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24.      Deferred taxation

The deferred tax asset comprises:

                                                                       As at              As at              As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Unrealised surplus on revaluation
of freehold property                                      (72)                 (56)               (126)                 (56)               (126)

Accelerated capital allowances and
other short-term timing differences                (2)                   (9)                  70                    (9)                  70

                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deferred tax (liability)/asset                             (74)                 (65)                 (56)                 (65)                 (56)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
At 1 January                                                    (469)                 (74)                 (65)                 (65)                 (56)
Revaluation reserve                                          411                   16                  (70)                    –                     –
Profit and loss account – accelerated

capital allowances and other
short-term timing differences                        (16)                   (7)                  79                     –                     –

                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Deferred tax (liability)/asset as

at 30 June/31 December                                (74)                 (65)                 (56)                 (65)                 (56)                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
25.      Contingent liabilities and commitments

Capital commitments

At 30 June 2011, the Group had no capital commitments (June 2010: £nil; 2010: £nil; 2009: £nil; 2008: £nil).

Credit commitments

At 30 June 2011, the Group had no commitments (June 2010: £nil; 2010: £nil; 2009: £nil; 2008: £nil) to
extend credit to customers.

The future aggregate lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 30 June 30 June

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011
                                  Land                           Land                            Land                           Land                           Land                
                                    and                             and                               and                             and                             and                
                           Buildings        Other  Buildings          Other  Buildings        Other  Buildings        Other  Buildings       Other
                                  £000          £000          £000           £000          £000          £000          £000          £000          £000        £000

Within 1 year                   4              13              63               79              29              32              60              64              46          168
Between 1 year

and 5 years               130            224              41               26              15                9              25              13                –           288
                            –––––––    –––––––    –––––––     –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––  –––––––
                                    134            237            104             105              44              41              85              77              46          456                            –––––––    –––––––    –––––––     –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––    –––––––  –––––––
The leases under Land and Buildings are 4 branches. Other leases include motor vehicles and computer
hardware.

Other commitments

At 30 June 2011 a commitment exists to make further payments with regard to the Financial Compensation
Scheme Levy for 2011 and thereafter. Due to uncertainties regarding the calculation of the levy and the
Group’s share thereof, the Directors consider this cost to be unquantifiable.
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26.      Share capital

                                                                                                                                Number of            Ordinary
                                                                                                                                      shares                 shares
                                                                                                                                                                   £000

At 1 January and as at 30 June/31 December                                                          5,000,000                  5,000                                                                                                                                 ––––––––           ––––––––
There was no movement in the issued share capital in the current or prior year. The total authorised and
issued number of ordinary shares at 30 June 2011, 30 June 2010, 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2008 was 5,000,000 with a par value as at 30 June 2011 of £1 per share (June 2010: £1 per
share; 2010: £1 per share; 2009: £1 per share; 2008: £1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

27.      Dividends

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Dividend paid                                                   750              2,500              2,500              2,000              2,000
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The dividend per share was 40 pence for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (June 2010: 40 pence; 2010:
50 pence; 2009: 50 pence; 2008: 15 pence).

28.      Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises of the following balances
with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Cash (note 10)                                                    13                     4                   13                     6                   10
Loans and advances to banks

(note 11)                                                  12,882            39,334            42,577            44,755            96,560
Debt securities held-to-maturity

(note 14)                                                  14,293            11,000            25,627            57,570              5,555
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                    27,188            50,338            68,217          102,331          102,125
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
29.      Related-party transactions

Related parties of the Group include subsidiaries, Key Management Personnel, close family members of Key
Management Personnel and entities which are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced, or
for which significant voting power is held, by Key Management Personnel or their close family members.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business on
normal commercial terms. These include loans and deposits. Except for the directors’ disclosures, there were
no other Key Management Personnel disclosures; therefore the tables below relate to directors.
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Loans
                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Loans outstanding at 1 January                        416                 434                 219                 219                 229
Interest capitalised                                              18                     –                   10                     5                     1
Loan reclassification                                             –                (215)                    –                     –                     –
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Total loans outstanding

as at period end                                            434                 219                 229                 224                 230                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Interest income earned                                       13                     5                     5                     3                     3                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The reclassification relates to a loan to a director who ceased to be employed by the bank.

No provisions have been recognised in respect of loans given to related parties as at 30 June 2011 (June
2010: £nil; 2010: £nil; 2009: £nil; 2008: £nil).

The loans to directors are secured on property or shares and bear interest at rates linked to base rate.

The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most
meaningful information to represent the transactions during the year. The above transactions arose during the
normal course of business and are on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with
third-parties.

Deposits held with Arbuthnot Banking Group

                                                                       As at               As at               As at               As at               As at
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Deposits outstanding at 1 January                        –              6,500              7,500              7,500                     –
Deposits made during the year                      6,500            15,500          120,078            90,038              3,000
Deposit repayments during the year                     –           (14,500)        (127,578)          (75,525)            (3,000)
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Balance as at period end                               6,500              7,500                     –            22,013                     –                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Interest income earned                                       76                 100                 103                   49                     5                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The Company undertook the following transactions with other companies in the Arbuthnot Banking Group:

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Secure Homes Services Limited
– building rental paid                                   360                 360                 360                 180                 180

OBC Insurance Consultants
Limited – sales commission paid                   79                     –                     –                     –                     –

Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Ltd
– Recharge of shared services                        18                 106                 220                 110                   77

Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC
– Group recharges                                            –                 320                 960                 480              1,294

                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                         457                 786              1,540                 770              1,551
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
Amounts receivable from and payable to related companies are included in notes 19 and 22.
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Subordinated loan

Refer to note 23.

Directors’ remuneration

The directors’ emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits in kind) were as follows:

Year ended Six months ended
                                                          31 December  31 December  31 December           30 June           30 June
                                                                       2008               2009               2010               2010               2011
                                                                       £000               £000               £000               £000               £000

Other emoluments                                            799                 775                 850                 281                 306
Compensation for loss of office                           –                     –                 673                 552                     –
Pension contributions                                           –                   75                   58                   35                   30
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
                                                                         799                 850              1,581                 868                 336
                                                               ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––       ––––––––
The emoluments of Messrs Angest, Salmon, Cobb, Turrell, Proctor and Wickham are paid by Arbuthnot
Banking Group PLC and disclosed in the Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC consolidated financial statements.

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director are £136k for the period ended 30 June 2011 (June
2010: £643k; 2010: £643k; 2009: £407k; 2008: £558k), including £17k (June 2010: £17k; 2010: £17k; 2009:
£50k; 2008: £50k) of contributions made to a money purchase scheme on their behalf and in June 2010
£552k (2010: £673k) in compensation for loss of office.

No directors have a beneficial interest in any shares of the Group and therefore exercised no share options
as at 30 June 2011 (June 2010: none; 2010: none; 2009: none; 2008: none). The interests of any directors
whom hold shares in the ultimate parent company are shown in the Directors Report of the ultimate parent
company.

30.      Operating segments

The Group is organised into five main operating segments, which consist out of the different products
available, disclosed below:

(1)      Personal unsecured lending – Unsecured consumer loans sold to existing customers and via brokers
and Activity Partners.

(2)      Acquired portfolios – Portfolios of unsecured personal loans acquired from Citi and LV.

(3)      Motor finance – Hire purchase agreements secured against the vehicle being financed.

(4)      Retail point of sale finance – Point of sale unsecured finance for in-store and online retailers.

(5)      One Bill – An account designed to aid customers with their household budgeting and payments
process.

There were no transactions between the operating segments. Management review these segments by looking
at the income, size and growth rate of the loan books, impairments and customer numbers. Except for these
items no costs or balance sheet items are allocated to the segments.
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                                                          Personal                                             Retail point                                                                
                                                        unsecured       Acquired           Motor          of sale                                                      Group
                                                             lending      portfolios          finance         finance        One Bill            Other             Total
                                                                 £000             £000             £000             £000             £000             £000             £000

Year ended 31 December 2008
Interest revenue                                       3,499                   –                    –                    –                    –                (79)           3,420
Fee and commission income                         –                    –                    –                    –           13,334            2,089          15,423
                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Revenue from external
customers                                           3,499                   –                    –                    –           13,334            2,010          18,843

                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Impairment losses                                      203                   –                    –                    –                285                 45                533
Lending balances                                    7,300                   –                    –                    –             4,599               652          12,551

Year ended 31 December 2009
Interest revenue                                       3,290            5,547               180               458                   –                460            9,935
Fee and commission income                         –                    –                    –                    –           12,792               327          13,119
                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Revenue from external
customers                                           3,290            5,547               180               458          12,792               787          23,054                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––

Impairment losses                                      478                   –                  35                  48                602                 10             1,173
Lending balances                                    9,590          25,465            4,680            6,437            4,734               534          51,440

Year ended 31 December 2010
Interest revenue                                       3,807            6,063            3,384            2,066                   –                571          15,891
Fee and commission income                         –                    –                    –                    –           10,567            1,183          11,750
                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Revenue from external
customers                                           3,807            6,063            3,384            2,066          10,567            1,754          27,641                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––

Impairment losses                                      761                   –                642               294               382                 89             2,168
Lending balances                                  22,407          10,723          31,270          21,640            3,010               432          89,482

                                                          Personal                                             Retail point                                                                
                                                        unsecured       Acquired           Motor           of sale                                                      Group
                                                             lending      portfolios          finance          finance        One Bill            Other             Total
                                                                 £000             £000             £000             £000             £000             £000             £000

Six months ended 30 June 2010
Interest revenue                                       1,711            3,678               881               615                   –                181            7,066
Fee and commission income                         –                    –                    –                    –             5,382               324            5,706
                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Revenue from external
customers                                           1,711            3,678               881               615            5,382               505          12,772                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––

Impairment losses                                      345                   –                150               124               193                   2                814
Lending balances                                  14,704          16,965          16,556          14,396            3,367               475          66,463

Six months ended 30 June 2011
Interest revenue                                       2,621            1,383            4,120            1,603                   –                169            9,896
Fee and commission income                         –                    –                    –                    –             4,769               803            5,572
                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––
Revenue from external
customers                                           2,621            1,383            4,120            1,603            4,769               972          15,468                                                         ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––     ––––––––

Impairment losses                                      702                   –                784               113                (67)              280            1,812
Lending balances                                  34,552            5,807          48,386          32,053            2,637               422        123,857

The “Other” segment above includes segments below the quantitive threshold for separate disclosure and
fulfils the requirement of IFRS8.28. All the Group’s operations are conducted wholly within the United
Kingdom and geographical information is therefore not presented.

31.      Immediate and ultimate parent company

The directors regard Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC, a Company registered in England and Wales, as the
immediate and ultimate parent company. Henry Angest, the Group Chairman and Chief Executive has a
beneficial interest in 52.8 per cent. of the issued share capital of Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC and is
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regarded by the directors as the ultimate controlling entity. A copy of the consolidated financial statements
of Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC may be obtained from the Secretary, Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC,
One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH.

32.      Events after the balance sheet date

In August 2011 the Group received a £813,750 back dated management charge from its parent entity,
Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC, which has been accrued for the six months ended 30 June 2011.

A £3.4 million dividend will be paid to Arbuthnot conditional on Admission and paid at the same time as the
receipt of new capital. A further dividend of £1.6 million was paid to Arbuthnot in September 2011.

Except for the items listed above, there were no other post balance sheet events.
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PART 6

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON
SECURE TRUST BANK PLC

The unaudited pro forma financial information set out below has been prepared pursuant to item 20.2 of
Annex I of the Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 (as applied by the AIM Rules for Companies) to
illustrate the impact of the Placing on the consolidated net assets of Secure Trust Bank. The pro forma
financial information has been prepared for illustrative purposes only and, because of its nature, addresses a
hypothetical situation and, therefore, does not and will not present Secure Trust Bank’s actual financial
position or results.

The pro forma financial information is based on the consolidated net assets of Secure Trust Bank as at
30 June 2011 and has been prepared on the basis that the Placing and Admission took place at that date. The
pro forma financial information takes no account of the results or any other changes in the financial or
trading position of Secure Trust Bank or its subsidiaries for the period subsequent to 30 June 2011, including
the payment of a £1.6 million dividend subsequent to 30 June 2011 referred to in Note 32 of the historical
financial information contained in Part 5 of this document.

                                                                                                  Statement of                                                       Pro forma
                                                                                                         financial                   Adjustments             consolidated 
                                                                                                      position at            Equity  Pre Admission       at 30 June
                                                                                                 30 June 2011(1)         placing(2)       dividend(3)                    2011
                                                                                                               £000                £000                £000                £000

ASSETS
Cash                                                                                                           10                      –                      –                    10
Loans and advances to banks                                                             96,560               9,759              (3,400)          102,919
Loans and advances
to customers                                                                                  123,857                      –                      –           123,857

Debt securities held-to-maturity                                                           5,555                      –                      –               5,555
Other assets                                                                                         14,635                      –                      –             14,635
Derivative financial instruments                                                              501                      –                      –                  501
Intangible assets                                                                                       729                      –                      –                  729
Property, plant and equipment                                                              5,110                      –                      –               5,110
                                                                                                     ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––
Total assets                                                                                       246,957               9,759              (3,400)          253,316                                                                                                     ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers                                                                  217,001                      –                      –           217,001
Current tax liability                                                                               1,637                      –                      –               1,637
Other liabilities                                                                                     8,794                      –                      –               8,794
Deferred tax liability                                                                                  56                      –                      –                    56
Debt securities in issue                                                                         3,000                      –                      –               3,000
                                                                                                     ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––
Total liabilities                                                                                 230,488                      –                      –           230,488                                                                                                     ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––
Net assets                                                                                            16,469               9,759              (3,400)            22,828                                                                                                     ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––        ––––––––
Notes:

1.     The net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2011 have been extracted without adjustment from the historical financial information
set out in Part 5.

2.     The estimated net proceeds of the Placing of £9.8 million comprise gross proceeds of £12.0 million less estimated transaction
costs of £2.2 million (including VAT).

3.     Conditional on Admission, the Company will pay a dividend to Arbuthnot of £3.4 million.
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PART 7

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1.        Incorporation, Registered Office and Website

1.1      The Company was incorporated in England and Wales on 26 November 1954, as a private company
with limited liability under the Companies Act 1948, with the name of Secure Homes Limited and
with registered number 00541132. On 03 May 1994, the Company re-registered as a public limited
company under the Companies Act 1985 with the name of Secure Trust Bank Public Limited
Company.

1.2      The Company’s registered office and head office is at One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH and the
telephone number is 0121 693 9100. It is domiciled in England.

1.3      The Company’s corporate website, at which the information required by Rule 26 of the AIM Rules
for Companies can be found, is www.securetrustbank.com.

1.4      The Company has the following significant subsidiary undertakings. Each of these companies is
beneficially wholly-owned by a member of the Group and the issued share capital is fully paid. The
registered office of each of these companies is One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH.

                                                                                          Percentage
                                                                                             of issued
                                                                                       share capital
                                                                                       held directly
                                                Country of                      or indirectly
Name                                       incorporation           by the Company     Principal activity

      England and Wales                       100     

      England and Wales                       100     

2.        Share Capital

2.1      For the period covered by the financial information of the Company set out in Part 5 of this document,
there have been no changes to the authorised and issued share capital of the Company.

2.2      The Company’s issued and fully paid share capital, at the date of this document and as it is expected
to be on Admission is as follows:

At the date of this document On Admission
                                                                                          Number of                                     Number of
                                                                                             Ordinary                                       Ordinary
                                                                                     Shares of 40p                                Shares of 40p
                                                                    Amount                    each               Amount                    each

Ordinary Shares                                     £5,000,000         12,500,000         £5,666,667         14,166,667

Subletting of freehold
premises on an open market
rental to the Company and
receipt of commissions from
utility providers supplying
customers of the Company

Funding and operation of
finance leases

Secure Trust Bank
Leasing Limited

Secure Homes Services
Limited
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2.3      The following shareholders’ resolutions were passed by the Company on 27 October 2011 (with
resolutions 1 and 2 below being passed as ordinary resolutions, and resolutions 3 to 5 being passed as
special resolutions):

1.        THAT:

(A)     each of the 5,000,000 ordinary shares of £1.00 each in the Company be and is hereby
consolidated into 2,500,000 ordinary shares of £2.00 each; and

(B)      subject to the passing of resolution 1(A) above, each of the 2,500,000 Ordinary Shares
of £2.00 each in the Company be and is hereby sub-divided by five into 12,500,000
ordinary shares of 40 pence each.

2.        THAT, in accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act, the Directors be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares
in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for or convert any securities into shares in the
Company (“relevant securities”) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,040,666 in
substitution for any existing authorities of the Company which are hereby revoked without
prejudice to any allotment, offer or agreement made pursuant thereto and the authority
conferred by this resolution shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire
at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting save that the Company may,
before such expiry, variation or revocation, make an offer or agreement which would or might
require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry, variation or revocation and the
Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement notwithstanding
that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired or been varied or revoked.

3.        THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 2 above, and in accordance with section 570 of the
Companies Act, the Directors be and are hereby generally empowered to allot equity securities
(as defined in section 560 of the Companies Act) pursuant to the authority conferred by
resolution 2 above, as if section 561(1) of the Companies Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall:

(A)     be limited to the allotment of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,040,666; and

(B)      expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting (unless
renewed, varied or revoked by the Company prior to or on that date) save that the
Company may, before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might
require equity securities to be allotted after expiry, variation or revocation of this
resolution and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of any such offer
or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this resolution has expired or
been varied or revoked.

4.        THAT with immediate effect:

(A)     the Articles be amended by deleting all of the provisions of the Company’s
memorandum of association which, by virtue of section 29 of the Companies Act are to
be treated as provisions of the Articles; and

(B)      the draft regulations attached to this resolution be and hereby are adopted as the Articles
in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing articles of association of the
Company.
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5.        THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes
of section 701 of the Companies Act to make one or more market purchases (within the
meaning of section 693(4) of the Companies Act) of Ordinary Shares provided that:

(A)     the maximum number of Ordinary Shares authorised to be purchased is 708,333
(representing 5 per cent.) of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at the date of
Admission;

(B)      the minimum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share is 40p (exclusive of
expenses);

(C)      the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share is
the higher of an amount equal to (1) 5 per cent. above the average of the middle market
quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date on which the ordinary share is
contracted to be purchased and (2) the price of the last independent trade of an Ordinary
Share on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out;

(D)     unless previously received, varied, or revoked, the authority hereby conferred shall
expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting; and

(E)      the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authority
hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such authority which will or may be executed
wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority and may make a purchase of Ordinary
Shares pursuant to any such contract.

2.5      Save in respect of the Placing, none of the Ordinary Shares have been marketed or are available in
whole or in part to the public in conjunction with the application for the Ordinary Shares to be
admitted to AIM.

2.6      The Ordinary Shares are in registered form, freely transferable, and are capable of being held in
uncertificated form and will be admitted to CREST with effect from Admission.

2.7      Save as disclosed in this document there are no acquisition rights or obligations over authorised but
unissued share capital of the Company and there is no undertaking to increase the share capital. In
addition, there are no convertible securities, exchangeable securities or shares with warrants in the
Company as at the date of this document.

2.8      On 17 October 2011, options over Ordinary Shares were granted to certain employees of the
Company. Certain such options are described in paragraph 4 of this Part 7 and paragraph 4 of Part 4
of this document.

3.        Articles of Association

3.1      The Articles contain, inter alia, provisions to the following effect:

(A)     Voting rights

Subject to any other provision of the Articles and without prejudice to any special rights,
privileges or restrictions as to voting attached to any shares for the time being forming part of
the capital of the Company, on a show of hands each Shareholder (being an individual) present
in person has in total one vote and every proxy present who has been duly appointed by one or
more Shareholders entitled to vote on the resolution has one vote, except that if the proxy has
been appointed by more than one Shareholder entitled to vote on the resolution and is
instructed by one or more of those Shareholders to vote for the resolution and by one or more
of those Shareholders to vote against it, or is instructed by one or more of those Shareholders
to vote in one way and is given discretion as to how to vote by one or more others (and wishes
to use that discretion to vote in the other way) he has one vote for and one vote against the
resolution; and each corporate representative present who has been duly authorised by a
Shareholder (being a corporation) has the same voting rights as the corporation would be
entitled to; and on a poll each Shareholder present in person or by proxy or (being a
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corporation) by a duly authorised representative has one vote for each share of which he is the
holder or in respect of which his appointment as proxy or corporate representative has been
made. On a show of hands or on a poll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy or (in
the case of a corporate Shareholder) by a duly authorised representative and on a poll a
Shareholder entitled to more than one vote need not, if he votes, use all his votes or cast all the
votes he uses in the same way.

(B)      Variation of Rights

If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to
any class or any of such rights may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, whether
or not the Company is being wound up, be modified, abrogated or varied either with the
consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths in nominal value of the issued shares of that
class excluding any shares of that class held as treasury shares, or with the sanction of an
special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class (but not
otherwise) and may be so modified, abrogated or varied either whilst the Company is a going
concern or during or in contemplation of a winding up. These conditions are not more stringent
than required by law.

(C)      Transfer of Shares

A Shareholder may transfer all or any of his shares:

(1)      in the case of certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in writing in any usual form
or in any other form which the Board may approve; and

(2)      in the case of uncertificated shares (subject to the class of shares becoming
‘Participating Securities’ in accordance with the CREST Regulations) by means of
CREST in such manner provided for, and subject as provided in, the CREST
Regulations and the rules of CREST, and accordingly no provision of the Articles shall
apply in respect of an uncertificated share to the extent that it requires or contemplates
the effecting of a transfer by an instrument in writing or the production of a certificate
for the share to be transferred.

The instrument of transfer of a Certificated Share shall be executed by or on behalf of the
transferor and (in the case of a partly paid share) the transferee. All instruments of transfer,
when registered, may be retained by the Company.

The Board may, in its absolute discretion, decline to register any transfer of any share which is
not a fully paid share.

Registration of a transfer of an uncertificated share may be declined in any circumstance
permitted or required by (i) the CREST Regulations; (ii) CREST; and (iii) the London Stock
Exchange.

Save as provided above and subject to paragraph (E) below, the Articles contain no restrictions
on the free transferability of fully paid shares provided that the transfer is in respect of only one
class of share, the number of jointholders does not exceed four and it is accompanied by the
share certificate and any other evidence of title required by the Board and that the provisions
in the Articles relating to the deposit of instruments for transfer have been complied with.

(D)     Dividends

No dividend or interim dividend shall be paid otherwise than in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Company may in general meeting declare
dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the Shareholders, but no dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Board may from time to time pay such
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the financial position of the
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Company and may also pay the fixed dividends payable on any shares of the Company at
intervals settled by the Board if it appears to the Board that the financial position of the
Company justifies such payment.

If the Board acts in good faith, it shall not incur any liability to the holders of any class of shares
for any loss they may suffer in consequence of the payment of an interim or fixed dividend on
any other class of shares ranking pari passu with or after those shares.

Dividends are not payable on any fixed dates.

Except insofar as the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any share otherwise provide,
all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares in
respect whereof the dividend is paid, but no amount paid on a share in advance of calls shall
be treated for the purpose of paying a dividend as paid up on the share. All dividends shall be
apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the shares during any portion
or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any share is issued on
terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as if paid up in full or in part from a particular
date, whether past or future, such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

Any dividend unclaimed after a period of twelve years from the date on which such dividend
was declared, or such dividend became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company.

(E)      Suspension of Rights

If any Shareholder, or any other person appearing to the Directors to be interested in any shares
in the capital of the Company held by such Shareholder, has been duly served with a statutory
notice in respect of those shares and is in default for the period of 14 days from the date of
service of the notice in supplying to the Company the information thereby required, then the
Company may (at the absolute discretion of the Directors) at any time thereafter by notice to
such Shareholder direct that, in respect of the shares in relation to which the default occurred
and any other shares held at the date of the notice by the Shareholder, or such of them as the
Directors may determine from time to time, the Shareholder shall not be entitled to be present
or to vote on any question, (whether in person or by proxy or in the case of a corporate
Shareholder, by a duly authorised representative), at any general meeting of the Company or
separate general meeting of the holders of any class of shares of the Company, or to be
reckoned in a quorum. In addition, whether the holding represents 0.25 per cent. of the issued
shares of that class, such Shareholder shall have no right to receive any dividend, and the Board
may decline to register any transfer of such shares other than where:

(a)      the Shareholder is not himself in default as regards supplying the information required
by the statutory notice and proves to the satisfaction of the Board that no person in
default of supplying such information is interested in any of the shares which are the
subject of the transfer; or

(b)      the transfer is of part only of the Shareholder’s holding and, when presented for
registration, is accompanied by a certificate by the Shareholder in a form satisfactory to
the Board to the effect that after due and careful enquiry the Shareholder is satisfied that
none of the shares the subject of the transfer are restricted shares; or

(c)      the transfer is made pursuant to acceptance of a takeover offer for the Company or in
relation to any of its shares or in consequence of a sale to a bona fide third party, which
will be deemed to include sale made through the London Stock Exchange or any
recognised investment exchange or any stock exchange selected by the Company
outside the United Kingdom on which the Company’s shares are normally traded or is
shown to the Board’s satisfaction to be made in consequence of a sale in good faith of
the whole of the beneficial interest in the shares to a person who is unconnected with the
holder and with any other person appearing to be interested in the shares.
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(F)      Return of Capital

If the Company shall be wound up the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution
of the Company and any other sanction required by the Companies Act, divide amongst the
Shareholders in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company (whether
they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose, set such value
as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such
division shall be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of Shareholders.
The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees
upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidator, with like sanction, shall
think fit, but so that no Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities
or other assets whereon there is any liability.

(G)     Pre-emption rights

There are no rights of pre-emption under the articles of association of the Company in respect
of transfers of issued Ordinary Shares.

In certain circumstances, the Company’s shareholders may have statutory pre-emption rights
under the Companies Act in respect of the allotment of new shares in the Company. These
statutory pre-emption rights would require the Company to offer new shares for allotment to
existing shareholders on a pro rata basis before allotting them to other persons. In such
circumstances, the procedure for the exercise of such statutory pre-emption rights would be set
out in the documentation by which such shares would be offered to the Group’s shareholders.

Parts of sections 428 to 430F of the Companies Act contain provisions which, in certain
circumstances, require and entitle persons making a takeover offer for the shares in the
Company and who acquire 90 per cent. or more of the shares to which such offer relates (if all
other conditions of that offer have been satisfied or waived) to acquire, and for the holders of
shares in the Company to be entitled and required to sell, the shares held by the non-acceptors
of that offer, in each case on a mandatory basis and on the same terms as the takeover offer.

(H)     Borrowing Powers

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or
charge all or any part of the undertaking, property and assets (present and future) and uncalled
capital of the Company and, subject to the Companies Act, to issue debentures and other
securities, whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of the
Company or any third party.

(I)       Annual General Meetings

The Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its Annual General Meeting in
addition to any other meetings in that year. The Annual General Meeting shall be held at such
time and place as may be determined by the Directors. An Annual General Meeting shall be
called by not less than 21 clear days written notice.

(J)       General Meetings

The Directors may call a General Meeting. The Directors must call a General Meeting if the
Shareholders and the Companies Act require them to do so. If at any time there are not
sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum the Directors capable of acting may
convene a General Meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Directors. Any General Meeting of the Company other than an Annual
General Meeting shall be called by not less than 14 clear days’ notice in writing (subject to the
Companies Act). In any General Meeting, in the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman of
the Meeting shall have a casting vote.
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(K)     Directors

Unless and until otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the Company, the number of
Directors shall not be less than three, but shall not be subject to any maximum.

Arbuthnot shall be entitled, for such time as it and any Shareholder of the Arbuthnot Group
beneficially own or are together interested in 50 per cent. or more of the issued Ordinary Shares
carrying voting rights, to appoint and remove such number of persons to be Arbuthnot
Directors as shall represent one third of all the Directors. Also for such time, power of the
Board to appoint and remove Directors shall not, with one exception, apply to any Arbuthnot
Directors.

Except for such time as Arbuthnot and any Shareholder of its group beneficially own or are
together interested in 50 per cent. or more of the issued shares of the Company carrying voting
rights:

•          at each Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors (or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third)
other than the Arbuthnot Directors for such time as Arbuthnot holds 50 per cent. or more
of the issued shares of the Company carrying voting rights shall retire from office. A
Director retiring at a meeting shall retain office until the dissolution of such meeting. If
there is only one Director subject to retirement by rotation, he shall retire;

•          the Directors to retire at each Annual General Meeting shall include so far as necessary
to obtain the number required any Director who wishes to retire and not offer himself
for re-election and any further Directors so to retire shall, including such Directors as
aforesaid be the one-third or other nearest number who have been longest in office. As
between two or more who have been in office an equal length of time, the Director to
retire shall in default of agreement between them be determined by lot. The length of
time a Director has been in office shall be computed from his last election or
appointment when he has previously vacated office. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election;

•          the Company, at any general meeting at which any Directors retire in manner aforesaid
may, subject to any resolution reducing the number of Directors, fill up the vacated
offices by electing a like number of persons to be Directors and may fill up any other
vacancies; and

•          if at any general meeting at which an election of Directors ought to take place the places
of the retiring Directors are not filled up, then the Company may pass an ordinary
resolution to re-elect every Director or Directors eligible to continue in office until the
dissolution of the Annual General Meeting in the next year.

There is no age limit for the appointment or retirement of a director, and it is not necessary to
give special notice of any resolution appointing or approving the appointment of a Director by
reason only of his age.

In any meeting of the Directors, in the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman of the
meeting shall have a casting vote.

Other than Managing Directors and Executive Directors whose remuneration shall be
determined in accordance with Article 104 of the Articles (summarised in the immediately
following paragraph), the Directors (or Arbuthnot in the case of the Arbuthnot Directors) shall
be entitled to be paid out of funds of the Company by way of fees for their services as Directors
such sums (if any) as the Board may from time to time determine (not exceeding in the
aggregate an annual sum (excluding amounts payable under any other provision of these
Articles) of £400,000 (or such larger amount as the Company may by ordinary resolution
determine) and such remuneration shall include any amounts payable to Arbuthnot in respect of
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the Arbuthnot Directors and shall otherwise be divided between the Directors as they shall agree
or, failing agreement, equally. Such remuneration shall be deemed to accrue from day to day.

The salary or remuneration of any Managing Director or such Executive Director of the
Company shall, subject as provided in any contract, be such as the Board may from time to time
determine, and may be of any description including, without limitation, a fixed sum of money,
a sum altogether or in part be governed by the business done or profits made, the making of
provisions for the payment to him or his other dependants of a pension on retirement from the
office or employment to which he is appointed, or the participation in pension and life
assurance and other benefits; or may otherwise be upon such other terms as the Board
determines.

The Directors may also be paid all reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses properly
incurred by them in or about the performance of their duties as Directors including any
expenses incurred in attending and returning from meetings of the Directors or any committee
of the Directors or General Meetings of the Company or of the holders of any class of shares
or debentures of the Company or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company.

Any Director who is appointed to any executive office or who serves on any committee or who
devotes special attention to the business of the Company, or who otherwise performs services
which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a Director,
may be paid such extra remuneration by way of salary, fees, percentage of profits or otherwise
as the Board may determine.

Save as set out in the paragraph immediately following, or by the terms of any authorisation
given by the Board, including (without limitation) pursuant to any provision of the Articles, a
Director must not vote at a meeting of the Board or any committee or sub-committee of the
Board in respect of any contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal in which he has an
interest (other than an interest in shares, debentures or other securities of or otherwise in or
through the Company) which is to his knowledge a material interest and a Director must not be
counted in the quorum at a meeting of the Board or any committee or sub-committee of the
Board in relation to any such matter.

A Director shall (in the absence of some other material interest than is indicated below) be
entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) in respect of any resolution concerning any of
the following matters, namely:

(1)      the giving of any guarantee, security or indemnity to him in respect of money lent to, or
obligations incurred by him at the request of or for the benefit of the Company or any
of its subsidiary undertakings;

(2)      the giving of any guarantee, security or indemnity to a third party in respect of a debt or
obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for which he himself
has assumed responsibility in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly with others
under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

(3)      any proposal concerning an offer of shares or debentures or other securities of or by the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for subscription, purchase or exchange
in which he is, or is to be, interested as a participant in the underwriting or sub-
underwriting thereof;

(4)      any contract, arrangement, transaction or other proposal concerning any other company
in which he is interested, directly or indirectly and whether as an officer or shareholder
or otherwise howsoever provided that he is not the holder of or beneficially interested in
one per cent. or more of any class of the equity share capital of such company (or of a
third company through which his interest is derived) or of the voting rights available to
Shareholders of the relevant company (any such interest being deemed for the purpose
of this Article to be a material interest in all circumstances);
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(5)      any contract, arrangement, transaction or other proposal concerning the adoption,
modification or operation of a superannuation fund or retirement benefits scheme under
which he may benefit and which either relates to both employees and Directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings and does not accord to any Director as
such any privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to which such scheme or
fund relates;

(6)      any contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning the adoption,
modification or operation of any scheme for enabling Directors and employees of the
Company and/or any subsidiary undertaking to acquire shares of the Company or any
arrangement for the benefit of employees of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings under which the Director benefits in a similar manner to employees;

(7)      any contract, policy, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning the purchase of
insurance for the benefit of the Directors whether under a Directors and Officers
Liability Policy or otherwise; and

(8)      any proposal under which he may benefit concerning the provision of funds to Directors
to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by them in defending proceedings or in
connection with any application under any of the provisions mentioned in the
Companies Act or otherwise enabling any such person to avoid incurring that
expenditure.

For the purposes of sections 175 and 180(4) of the Companies Act, in the Articles the
shareholders authorise each Arbuthnot Director’s and any Executive Director’s conflict
situations which arise or may arise as a result of any of the following matters or situations:

•          in relation to any duty he may owe or interest he may have as a director, officer or
employee of Arbuthnot and any of its parent and subsidiary undertakings or being
otherwise interested in the share or loan capital of Arbuthnot and any of its parent and
subsidiary undertakings (other than the Company); and

•          being remunerated for office or employment by Arbuthnot and any of its parent and
subsidiary undertakings (other than the Company).

4.        Share Option Schemes and Share Plans

4.1      The Secure Trust Bank Share Option Scheme

On 17 October 2011 the Company established the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
is administered by the Remuneration Committee.

The main features of the Share Option Scheme are summarised below.

Eligibility

All employees of the Group are eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme. With respect to
employees and executive directors of Arbuthnot, the grant of an option must be approved in advance
by the remuneration committee of Arbuthnot. The Remuneration Committee selects the individuals to
whom options are to be granted from time to time.

Grant of options

Options may be granted at such time or times as the Remuneration Committee determines.

Exercise price

When the Ordinary Shares are admitted to trading on AIM, the exercise price per Ordinary Share
under each option is the average of the closing market price of an Ordinary Share over the five dealing
days prior to the date of grant. If the Ordinary Shares are not admitted to trading on AIM, the exercise
price is the amount specified by the Remuneration Committee (not being less than the nominal value
of an Ordinary Share).
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In the event of any variation in the share capital of the Company the exercise price and/or the number
of Ordinary Shares comprised in each option may be adjusted as the Remuneration Committee
determines. No adjustment may be made which will reduce the exercise price below the nominal value
of an Ordinary Share.

Rights and restrictions

An option granted under the Share Option Scheme is not transferable. An option may not be exercised
later than the day before the tenth anniversary of its date of grant. Except in the circumstances referred
to below, an option will only be exercisable as follows:

(A)     50 per cent. of the option shall become exercisable on the date which is three years after the
date of grant; and

(B)      50 per cent. of the option shall become exercisable on the date which is five years after the date
of grant.

If the participant ceases to be employed by the Group by reason of injury, disability, ill-health or
redundancy; or because his employing company ceases to be a Shareholder of the Group; or because
his employing business is being transferred out of the Group, his option may be exercised within
6 months after such cessation. In the event of the death of a participant, the personal representatives
of a participant may exercise an option, to the extent exercisable at the date of death, within 6 months
after the death of the participant.

On cessation of employment for any other reason (or when a participant serves, or has been served
with, notice of termination of such employment), the option will lapse although the Remuneration
Committee has discretion to allow the exercise of the option for a period not exceeding 6 months from
the date of such cessation.

In such circumstances, the performance conditions may be modified or waived as the Remuneration
Committee, acting fairly and reasonably and taking due consideration of the circumstances, thinks fit.
The number of Ordinary Shares which can be acquired on exercise will be pro-rated on a time elapsed
basis, unless the Remuneration Committee, acting fairly and reasonably and taking due consideration
of the circumstances, decides otherwise. In determining whether to exercise its discretion in these
respects, the Remuneration Committee must satisfy itself that the early exercise of an option does not
constitute a reward for failure.

Corporate events

Options, to the extent not already exercisable, will accelerate in the event of a takeover of the
Company, in the event that an offeror becomes entitled or bound to acquire Ordinary Shares or in the
event that the court sanctions a compromise or arrangement for the reconstruction of the Company or
its amalgamation with any other company. In such event, all options may be exercised for a limited
period and will lapse if not so exercised.

Options, to the extent not already exercisable, will accelerate in the event that the Company is
voluntarily wound up and all options may be exercised within a limited period in connection with the
winding up, failing which they will lapse.

In such circumstances, the performance conditions may be modified or waived as the Remuneration
Committee, acting fairly and reasonably and taking due consideration of the circumstances, thinks fit.

Performance conditions

The exercise of options is subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions specified by the
Remuneration Committee.
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In respect of the options granted conditional on Admission (details of certain of which are set out in
paragraph 6.2 of this Part 7), the following performance conditions must be satisfied:

(A)     during the period between the date of grant and the date each respective part of the option
becomes exercisable (the “Vesting Period”), the dividends paid by the Company have
increased in percentage terms when compared to an assumed dividend of £8 million in respect
of the financial year ending 31 December 2012 by a minimum of the higher of:

(1)      the increase in the Retail Prices Index during that period; or

(2)      5 per cent. per annum during that period;

(B)      all dividends paid by the Company each year during the Vesting Period are paid from the
Company’s earnings referable to that year; and

(C)      from the date of grant to the date the option is exercised, there has been no public criticism by
any regulatory authority on the operation of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries which has
a material impact on the business of the Company.

In certain circumstances, the Remuneration Committee may waive or vary the performance
conditions.

Issuance of Ordinary Shares

The Ordinary Shares issued upon the exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme will
rank pari passu with the Company’s issued Ordinary Shares on the date of exercise, save as regards
any rights arising by reference to a record date prior to the date of such exercise.

Scheme limit

The aggregate number of Ordinary Shares issued or remaining issuable under the Share Option
Scheme on any date of grant shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of issued Ordinary Shares
on Admission.

Alteration

The Remuneration Committee may alter the Share Option Scheme except that (apart from minor
amendments to benefit the administration of the Share Option Scheme, to correct typographical or
other errors, to take account of a change in legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable tax,
exchange control or regulatory treatment for participants or the Group) no alteration to the advantage
of participants can be made without the prior approval of Shareholders in general meeting.

Termination and scheme period

The Remuneration Committee may terminate or suspend the operation of the Share Option Scheme
at any time, whereupon no further options shall be granted but in all other respects the provisions of
the Option Scheme shall remain in force. In any event, no options may be granted after the earlier of:

(A)     ten years after the date the Share Option Scheme is adopted; and

(B)      the date upon which Arbuthnot ceases to be the holding company (as defined in section 1159,
Companies Act 2006) of the Company.
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5.        Information on the Directors

5.1      The full names and business addresses of the Directors are as follows:

Name                                             Business Address Age

Henry Angest1                               One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 71
Neeraj Kapur                                One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 45
Paul Anthony Lynam                    One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 43
Paul Marrow                                 One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 58
Andrew Alfred Salmon                 One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 49
Carol Frances Sergeant2               One Arleston Way, Solihull, B90 4LH 59

5.2      In addition to being a director of the Company, the Directors have held or hold the following
directorships (excluding subsidiaries of any company of which he or she is also a director) and/or have
been/are a partner in the following partnerships within the five years immediately prior to the date of
this document:

Name Current directorships/partnerships Past directorships/partnerships

Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC
Flowidea Limited
Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited
Arbuthnot Properties Limited
Flowtrade Limited
Wyler Investments Limited
John K. Gilliat & Co., Limited
Arbuthnot Limited
Arbuthnot Securities Limited
Cherrydene UK Limited
41 Thurloe Square Company Limited
Ashmore and Strone Estate Limited
Arbuthnot Investments Limited

Henry Angest

N/A Group Vehicle Services (1) Limited
Group Vehicle Services Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (1) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (2) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (3) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management Limited
Charterhouse Japhet Credit Limited
D J S Contracts Limited
Dixon Motors Developments Limited
Farming and Agriculture Finance Limited
Lombard & Ulster Limited
Lombard Asset Leasing Limited
Lombard Business Finance Limited
Lombard Business Leasing Limited
Lombard Discount Limited
Lombard Facilities Limited
Lombard Finance Limited
Lombard Initial Leasing Limited
Lombard Lessors Limited
Lombard Maritime Limited
Lombard North Central Leasing Limited
Lombard North Central Wheelease Limited
Lombard Venture Finance Limited
Lombard Venture Leasing Limited
Natwest Corporate Investments
RBS Trade Services Limited
Rover Finance Holdings Limited
Rover Finance Limited

Neeraj Kapur
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Name Current directorships/partnerships Past directorships/partnerships

Royal Bank Business Asset Finance Limited
Royscot Industrial Leasing Limited
Royscot Leasing Limited
Royscot Trust Public Limited Company
Jaguar Cars Finance Limited
Royscot Auto Credit Limited
Royscot Motor Finance Limited
Dixon Motorcycle Holdings Limited
Dixon Mount Pleasant Developments
Limited

Motorsport Dealers International Limited
Riossi Limited
Riossi Motorcycles Ltd
Claycliffe Property Developments Limited
Mount Pleasant (Hull) Limited
Grimbsy Malting Retail Development
Company Limited

Lombard North Central Public Limited
Company

Group Vehicle Services (2) Limited
Group Vehicle Services (3) Limited
Charterhouse Japhet Leasing
Europe Equipment Services Limited
Lombard North Central Wheelease Limited
Lombard North Central plc

Neeraj Kapur
(Continued)

Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC
B.R.M Insurance Consultants Limited
Peoples Trust and Savings plc
Secure Estate Agency Limited
Secure Homes Limited
Secure Homes Services Limited
Secure Trust Bank Financial Services
Limited

SecureDirect Insurance Services Limited
Secure Trust Bank Leasing Limited
White Rose Motor Policies Limited

Lombard North Central Public Limited
Company

Charterhouse Japhet Credit Limited
JCB Finance Limited
Lombard Asset Leasing Limited
Lombard Business Finance Limited
Lombard Business Leasing Limited
Lombard Discount Limited
Lombard Facilities Limited
Lombard Finance Limited
Lombard Initial Leasing Limited
Lombard Lessors Limited
Lombard Maritime Limited
Lombard Network Services Limited
Lombard North Central Leasing Limited
Lombard North Central Wheelease Limited
Lombard Technology Services Limited
Lombard Venture Finance Limited
Lombard Venture Leasing Limited
Royal Bank Business Asset Finance Limited
Royscot Industrial Leasing Limited
Royscot Leasing Limited
Royscot Trust Public Limited Company
JCB Finance (Leasing) Ltd
Charterhouse Japhet Finance Limited
Farming and Agricultural Finance Limited
Jamjar Cars Limited
Landpower Leasing Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (1) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (2) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management (3) Limited
Lombard Vehicle Management Limited
Royscot Larch Limited
Royscot Motor Finance Limited
Royscot Auto Credit Limited
Claycliffe Property Developments Limited

Paul Anthony
Lynam

106



Name Current directorships/partnerships Past directorships/partnerships

5.3      Save as set out in paragraph 5.2 above, none of the Directors has any business interests or activities
outside the Group which are significant with respect to the Group.

5.4      In 1999, Andrew Salmon was reprimanded by the SFA and received a fine of £8,000 in settlement of
disciplinary proceedings in relation to the receipt and misuse of confidential information during the
period between October 1996 and April 1997. Save as disclosed in this paragraph 5.4, no Director:

(A)     has any unspent convictions in relation to indictable offences;

Dixon Motorcycle Holdings Limited
Dixon Mount Pleasant Developments
Limited

Grimsby Malting Retail Development
Company Limited

Motorsport Dealers International Limited
RoyScot Spa Leasing Limited
Lombard Commercial Limited
Riossi Motorcycles Limited
Lombard IT Vendor Finance Limited
Lombard HP Finance Limited
Lombard Plant Leasing Limited
Centurion Park Development Limited
Lombard Leasing Limited
Lombard Initial Finance Limited
Lombard Leasing Services Limited
Lombard Finance Leasing Limited
RBS Invoice Finance Limited
Lombard Corporate Finance Limited
Lombard Industrial Leasing Limited
RoyScot Taxi Finance Limited
Lombard Leasing Network Limited
Lombard Industrial Limited
RoyScot Commercial Leasing Limited
Great Eastern Limited
RBS Invoice Finance (Holdings) Limited
Lombard Ireland Limited
Lobard & Ulster Limited
Mount Pleasant (Hull) Limited
RoyScot S.A.V. Limited
Dixon (Hessle) Limited
Lombard Ireland Group Holdings Limited
Charterhouse Japhet Leasing Limited
Lombard Asset Finance Limited
Lombard Leasing Metropolitan Limited
Roadmaster Extended Warranties Limited
Moneycare Limited

Paul Anthony
Lynam
(Continued)

JCB Finance Limited
JCB Finance (Leasing) Limited
Landpower Leasing Limited

RBS Invoice Finance (Holdings) Limited
RBS Invoice Finance Limited
Lombard North Central PLC
Lombard Vehicle Management Limited

Paul Marrow

Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC
Arbuthnot Securities Limited
Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited
Gilliat Financial Solutions Limited
West Yorkshire Insurance Company Limited
Arbuthnot Investments Limited

Ingenious Film Partners 2 LLPAndrew Alfred
Salmon

Public Concern at Work
St. Paul’s Cathedral Foundation
Threadneedle Solutions Ltd

N/ACarol Frances
Sergeant
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(B)      has been adjudged bankrupt or been the subject of an individual voluntary arrangement or has
had a receiver appointed to any asset of such director; or

(C)      has been a director of any company which, while he was a director or within twelve months
after he ceased to be a director, had a receiver appointed or went into compulsory liquidation,
creditors’ voluntary liquidation, administration or company voluntary arrangement or made
any composition or arrangement with its creditors generally or with any class of its creditors;
or

(D)     has been a partner of any partnership which, while he was a partner or within 12 months after
he ceased to be a partner, went into compulsory liquidation, administration or partnership
voluntary arrangement or has had a receiver appointed to any partnership asset; or

(E)      has had any public criticism by statutory or regulatory authorities (including recognised
professional bodies); or

(F)      has been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting in the
management or conduct of the affairs of a company.

6.        Directors’ and Other Interests

6.1      Following the grant of share options over Ordinary Shares under the Share Option Scheme referred
to in paragraph 4 of this Part 7, the following Directors will hold the following options from
Admission:

                        Maximum number                                   
                       of Ordinary Shares            Exercise price             Date of                       Dates normally
Name           subject to the Option   per Ordinary Share              Grant                             exercisable

Paul                   2 per cent. of the        the Placing Price        the date of      Three years after the date
Lynam              Admission Shares                                           Admission                of Admission, as to 
                                                                                                                         50 per cent. of the award

Five years after the date 
of Admission, as to 

50 per cent. of the award

Andrew             2 per cent. of the        the Placing Price        the date of      Three years after the date 
Salmon             Admission Shares                                           Admission                of Admission, as to 
                                                                                                                         50 per cent. of the award

Five years after the date 
of Admission, as to 

50 per cent. of the award

Neeraj            0.5 per cent. of the        the Placing Price        the date of      Three years after the date 
Kapur               Admission Shares                                           Admission                of Admission, as to 
                                                                                                                         50 per cent. of the award

Five years after the date 
of Admission, as to 

50 per cent. of the award

6.2      Save as disclosed in paragraph 6.1 above, none of the Directors is or has been interested in any
transactions which is or was unusual in its nature or conditions or significant to the business of the
Group and which was effected by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the current or
immediately preceding year or during any earlier financial year and which remains in any respect
outstanding or unperformed.

6.3      Save as disclosed in paragraphs 4 and 6.1 of this Part 7, no share or loan capital of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries is under option or on Admission is or will be agreed conditionally or
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unconditionally to be put under option and no convertible or exchangeable securities of the Company
are or will be in issue.

6.4      The Disclosure and Transparency Rules require a person who acquires or disposes of shares (or other
financial instruments) carrying voting rights, and that acquisition or disposal results in the proportion
of voting rights held by that person exceeding or falling below three per cent. (or any whole figure
above three per cent), to disclose that interest to the Company. Save as set out below, the Company is
not aware of any person who, at the date of this document, holds directly or indirectly three per cent.
or more of the Company’s voting rights:

                                                                                                                                               Percentage
                                                                                                                     Number of      of the issued
Name                                                                                                   Ordinary Shares      share capital

Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC                                                                  12,500,000                     100

None of the Company’s major shareholders listed above has voting rights which are different from the
voting rights of other holders of Ordinary Shares.

6.5      Save as disclosed in this paragraph 6, the Directors are not aware of any person who, directly or
indirectly, jointly or severally, exercises at the date of this document, or could immediately following
Admission exercise, control over the Company.

6.6      There are no outstanding loans or guarantees which have been granted or provided to or for the benefit
of any Director by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

7.        Directors’ Service Agreements and Letters of Appointment

7.1      Executive Directors

Paul Lynam has entered into a service agreement with the Company dated 28 July 2010, as amended,
to act as the Chief Executive Officer which continues until terminated on twelve months’ written
notice by either party. The Company has the discretion to terminate Paul Lynam’s employment with
immediate effect by paying him his salary (excluding any bonus) in lieu of his notice period or any
remainder of his notice period. The service agreement contains a “garden leave” clause entitling the
Company to require Paul Lynam to cease performing his job during any notice period and requiring
him to remain away from work during such period. The agreement provides for an annual salary of
£300,000, a non-pensionable, taxable car allowance of £20,000 per annum, a discretionary annual
bonus and an entitlement to participate in life assurance of up to four times his salary, family
membership of a medical insurance scheme and permanent disability insurance. He is entitled to
receive an annual contribution of £35,000 into a personal pension scheme for his benefit. Paul
Lynam’s service agreement contains various post-termination covenants which are customary in
agreements of this nature in order to protect the Group’s business.

Neeraj Kapur has entered into a service agreement with the Company dated 13 May 2011, as replaced
on 27 October 2011, to act as the Chief Financial Officer which continues until terminated on six
months’ written notice by either party. The Company has the discretion to terminate Neeraj Kapur’s
employment with immediate effect by paying him his salary (excluding any bonus) in lieu of his
notice period or any remainder of his notice period. The service agreement contains a “garden leave”
clause entitling the Company to require Neeraj Kapur to cease performing his job during any notice
period and requiring him to remain away from work during such period. The agreement provides for
an annual salary of £175,000, a discretionary annual bonus, a car allowance of £17,500 per annum
and an entitlement to participate in a life insurance scheme of up to four times his salary and in family
membership of a medical expenses insurance scheme. He is entitled to receive an annual pension cash
allowance of £25,000, payable monthly through payroll. Neeraj Kapur’s service agreement contains
various post-termination covenants which are customary in agreements of this nature in order to
protect the Group’s business.
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7.2      Non-Executive Directors

Paul Marrow has been appointed as a Non-Executive Director under a letter of appointment with the
Company, as amended on 15 October 2011. The appointment is terminable on three month’s notice
by either party. Paul Marrow receives an annual fee of £45,000. Any additional time spent by Paul
Marrow outside of his normal duties as non-executive director will be subject to such charges as may
be agreed between Paul Marrow and the Company. Paul Marrow does not receive any benefits on
termination of the letter of appointment other than accrued and unpaid directors’ fees up to and
including the period of notice.

Carol Sergeant has been appointed as a Non-Executive Director under a letter of appointment with the
Company dated 17 October 2011. The appointment is terminable on three months’ notice by either
party. Carol Sergeant receives an annual fee of £45,000. Carol Sergeant does not receive any benefits
on termination of the letter of appointment other than accrued and unpaid directors’ fees up to and
including the period of notice.

Henry Angest and Andrew Salmon currently have service contracts in place with Arbuthnot. It is
intended that such contracts will continue following Admission. The cost of the provision of the
services of these Directors (£60,000 per annum for Henry Angest, and £45,000 per annum for Andrew
Salmon, in each case exclusive of value added and other taxes) will be charged by Arbuthnot to the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Services Agreement and the Relationship Agreement.
Henry Angest has been a director of the Company since before 7 June 1991. Andrew Salmon has been
a director of the Company since 8 July 2003.

8.        UK Taxation

8.1      UK Taxation

The following statements are based on current UK law and the published practice of HMRC, which
are subject to change at any time (possibly with retrospective effect). The information is given by way
of general summary only and does not constitute tax advice. These statements do not purport to be a
comprehensive analysis of the tax consequences applicable to Shareholders and relate only to certain
limited aspects of the UK taxation treatment of Shareholders. The statements may not apply to certain
classes of Shareholders who may be subject to special rules, such as dealers in securities, or to
Shareholders who are not absolute beneficial owners of their shares. In addition, except where the
position of non-UK residents is expressly referred to, the following statements relate solely to
Shareholders who are either resident, or in the case of individuals ordinarily resident, in the United
Kingdom for tax purposes.

Prospective Shareholders are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to the tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares, including the effect of any state
or local taxes, under the tax laws applicable in the UK and each country of which the
prospective shareholders are resident. Any Shareholder who is in doubt as to his or her tax
position or who is or may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom
should consult an appropriate professional adviser without delay.

8.2      Taxation of dividends

(A)     Under current UK legislation, no tax is required to be withheld from dividend payments by the
Company.

(B)      A UK resident individual Shareholder will be entitled to a tax credit in respect of any dividend
received from the Company and will be taxed on the aggregate of the dividend and the tax
credit (the “gross dividend”). The value of the tax credit is one ninth of the dividend received
(or ten per cent. of the gross dividend). The gross dividend will be treated as the top slice of
the individual’s income.

(C)      In the case of a UK resident individual who is liable to income tax at the basic rate only, there
will be no further tax to pay on the dividend received. A UK resident individual who is liable

110



to income tax at the higher rate will be subject to income tax on the gross dividend at
32.5 per cent., but will be able to set the tax credit off against part of this liability. As a result,
such a Shareholder will be liable to pay further income tax equal to 22.5 per cent. of the gross
dividend. A UK resident individual who is liable to income tax at the additional rate will be
subject to income tax on the gross dividend at 42.5 per cent., but will be able to set the tax credit
off against part of this liability. As a result, such a Shareholder will be liable to pay further
income tax equal to 32.5 per cent. of the gross dividend. A UK resident Shareholder who is not
liable to income tax on the dividend (or part of it) is not able to claim payment of the tax credit
in cash from HMRC.

(D)     UK resident corporate Shareholders which are “small companies” for the purposes of
UK taxation of dividends will not generally be subject to tax on dividends received.
Other UK resident corporate Shareholders (including authorised unit trusts and open-ended
investment companies) and pension funds will not normally be liable to UK taxation on any
dividend received providing the shares fall within an exempt class and the necessary conditions
are met. For example, dividends paid on shares that are “ordinary shares” and are not
“redeemable” (both as defined for UK tax purposes) and dividends paid to a person holding
less than 10 per cent. of the issued share capital of any class should generally fall within an
exempt class. A Shareholder (whether an individual, a company, a pension fund or a charity)
who is not liable to tax on dividends will not be entitled to claim payment in cash from HMRC
of the tax credit in respect of those dividends.

(E)      Whether Shareholders who are resident for tax purposes in countries other than the UK are
entitled to the whole or a proportion of the tax credit in respect of dividends on their Ordinary
Shares depends in general upon the existence and provisions of any double taxation convention
or agreement which exists between such countries and the United Kingdom. In addition,
individual Shareholders who are resident in countries other than the United Kingdom but who
are Commonwealth citizens, nationals of member states of the European Economic Area or fall
within certain other categories of person within section 56(3) Income Tax Act 2007 are entitled
to the tax credit which they may set against their UK income tax liability arising on the
dividend receipt. Such Shareholders should consult their own tax advisers on the possible
application of such provisions and any relief or credit which may be claimed in respect of such
tax credit in their own jurisdictions. However, in general, cash payments are not recoverable
from HMRC in respect of tax credits.

(F)      Non-UK resident Shareholders may also be subject to tax on dividends paid by the Company
under any law to which they are subject outside the United Kingdom.

8.3      Capital Gains

(A)     Shareholders who are resident or ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom
may be liable to UK taxation on chargeable gains on a disposal of Ordinary Shares, depending
upon their individual circumstances and subject to any available exemption or relief.

(B)      A Shareholder who is not resident or ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the United
Kingdom will not generally be liable to UK taxation on chargeable gains unless the
Shareholder carries on a trade, profession or vocation in the UK through a branch or agency (in
the case of an individual Shareholder) or through a permanent establishment (in the case of a
corporate Shareholder) in the United Kingdom and the Ordinary Shares disposed of are, or
have been, used, held or acquired for the purposes of such trade, profession or vocation or for
the purposes of such branch, agency or permanent establishment. Such Shareholders may also
be subject to tax under any law to which they are subject outside the United Kingdom.

(C)      A Shareholder who is an individual who has ceased to be resident or ordinarily resident for tax
purposes for a period of less than five years of assessment and who disposes of Ordinary Shares
during that period may also be liable, on his or her return to the United Kingdom, to UK
taxation on chargeable gains on that disposal.
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8.4      Inheritance Tax

Ordinary Shares are assets situated in the United Kingdom for the purposes of UK inheritance tax.
A gift of Ordinary Shares by, or the death of, an individual Shareholder may (subject to certain
exemptions and reliefs) give rise to a liability to UK inheritance tax even if the Shareholder is neither
domiciled nor deemed to be domiciled in the United Kingdom. For the purposes of Business Property
Relief, shares listed on AIM are treated as unquoted shares and 100 per cent. relief from UK
inheritance tax may be available if the conditions for the relief are met. Shares in a company will not
qualify for Business Property Relief if the business carried out by the company wholly or mainly
consists of dealing in securities, stocks or shares, land or buildings or making or holding investments.
A business consisting wholly of a market maker or a discount house carried on in the UK would
qualify.

8.5      Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax

(A)     The following comments are intended as a guide to the general UK stamp duty and stamp duty
reserve tax (SDRT) position and do not apply to persons such as market makers, brokers,
dealers or intermediaries. Special rules apply where the Ordinary Shares are issued to a
depositary or clearing system or its nominee or agent and specific advice should be sought in
these circumstances.

(B)      No stamp duty or SDRT in general will be payable on the issue of Ordinary Shares, save to a
person who issues depositary receipts or provides clearance services in respect of the Ordinary
Shares or to a nominee or agent of such person, in which case SDRT may be payable at the rate
of 1.5 per cent. of the issue price. The Company will not be responsible for the payment of
SDRT in any such case.

(C)      Where Ordinary Shares are held in certificated form, no stamp duty or SDRT will generally
arise on a transfer of such Ordinary Shares into CREST unless such transfer is made for a
consideration in money or money’s worth, in which case a liability to SDRT (usually at a rate
of 0.5 per cent.) will arise. Paperless transfers of Ordinary Shares within CREST will be liable
to SDRT rather than stamp duty.

(D)     The transfer on sale of Ordinary Shares outside CREST will be liable to ad valorem stamp duty
normally at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the amount or value of the chargeable consideration
(rounded up to the next multiple of £5). A charge to SDRT, normally at the rate of 0.5 per cent.
of the consideration, arises in the case of an unconditional agreement on the date of the
agreement (or, if the agreement is conditional, the date on which the condition is satisfied) to
transfer shares however, where an instrument of transfer is executed and duly stamped before
the expiry of a period of six years beginning with the date of that agreement (or, if the
agreement is conditional, the date on which the condition is satisfied), the SDRT charge is
cancelled to the extent that the SDRT has not been paid and, if any of the SDRT has been paid,
a claim may be made for its repayment, generally with interest. SDRT is the liability of the
purchaser and stamp duty is normally paid by the purchaser.

(E)      Liabilities to stamp duty but not SDRT are rounded up if necessary to a multiple of £5. An
exemption from stamp duty is available on an instrument transferring Ordinary Shares where
the amount or value of the consideration is £1,000 or less, and it is certificated on the
instrument that the transaction effected by the instrument does not form part of a larger
transaction or series of transactions in respect of which the aggregate amount or value of the
consideration exceeds £1,000.
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9.        Material Contracts

9.1      Material Contracts

Set out below is a summary of contracts (other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business) entered into by any member of the Group:

(A)     within the two years preceding the date of this document and which are or may be material to
the Group; or

(B)      which contain any provision under which any member of the Group has any obligation or
entitlement which is material to the Group as at the date of this document.

9.2      Relationship Agreement

The Relationship Agreement shall continue until the earlier of (i) the time that Arbuthnot or any
member of the Arbuthnot Group ceases to beneficially own or be interested in 50 per cent. or more of
the issued Ordinary Shares of the Company carrying voting rights (exclusive of any Ordinary Shares
for the time being held in treasury), and (ii) the issued Ordinary Shares cease to be admitted to trading
on AIM or any other regulated investment market.

Under the Relationship Agreement, the Company and Arbuthnot agree (among other things) that:

(A)     subject to the other provisions of the Relationship Agreement:

(1)      the Company will have its own management dedicated to working full-time for the
promotion of the success of the Company;

(2)      it is acknowledged that it is appropriate that the views of Arbuthnot as a substantial
shareholder in the Company are taken into account by the Directors in making decisions
in relation to the management and running of the Company; and

(3)      in making decisions in relation to the management and running of the Company the
Directors shall have regard to the interests of all the Shareholders.

The Relationship Agreement recognises the right of Arbuthnot to exercise its rights as a holder
of Ordinary Shares in what it considers to be in its best interest. It must not do so in breach of
the restrictions in the Relationship Agreement on voting on certain related party transactions or
to cancel the Company’s listing and admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM.
Subject to these limited exceptions Arbuthnot would therefore be free to exercise its rights as
shareholder in the Company;

(B)      they shall use their respective reasonable endeavours to work together to promote their
respective businesses, including through the referral of business opportunities, subject at all
times to their legal and regulatory obligations;

(C)      the Company shall prepare a business plan for the Group for each financial year which shall,
to be effective, require to be approved and adopted by resolution of the Board passed by a
majority vote (of which at least one Director voting in favour is a Controller Director) of those
Directors present at a Board meeting duly convened and held;

(D)     transactions between the Company and Arbuthnot shall be entered into on arm’s length and
normal commercial terms;

(E)      the Company shall manage its regulatory capital obligations in compliance with its own FSA
requirements and the FSA requirements applicable to the Arbuthnot Group. The parties shall
share information about regulatory capital obligations of the Company and the Arbuthnot
Group;

(F)      the Group shall, as subsidiary undertakings of Arbuthnot, arrange and manage their tax affairs
in accordance with the tax obligations of the Arbuthnot Group. The parties shall share
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information about tax obligations. Arbuthnot shall consider any representations made by the
Company in relation to the arrangement and management of the tax affairs of the Group;

(G)     the Company will make a distribution by way of dividend in each of its financial years in
accordance with the Company’s business plan, subject to the prevailing circumstances at the
time including: (i) the Group’s working capital requirements; (ii) the Company’s regulatory
capital requirements; and (iii) the regulatory capital requirements of the Group and the
Arbuthnot Group. Arbuthnot may (acting reasonably) require an increase in the amount of the
dividend contemplated in the Group’s business plan, where such increase is required to ensure
that Arbuthnot has sufficient capital resources to comply with its regulatory capital and other
legal requirements, provided that the Company is not required to make any distributions which
would be unlawful or that would cause the Company to be in breach of any regulatory
requirements applicable to it;

(H)     Arbuthnot will have the right to appoint one third of the Directors of the Company from time
to time (“Controller Directors”). The Controller Directors as at Admission will be Henry
Angest and Andrew Salmon. The Controller Directors shall be treated as Non-Executive
Directors of the Company. One third of the Directors of the Company will be executive
directors and one third of the Directors will be independent directors (“Independent
Directors”). Subject to obtaining and/or maintaining (as the case may be) all necessary
regulatory approvals, the chairman of the Board shall be Henry Angest or in his absence and as
his alternate any other Controller Director as he shall appoint;

(I)       a person shall not be appointed as a Controller Director if, so far Arbuthnot is aware, having
made reasonable enquiries, his appointment as a Director would contravene the Articles, the
AIM Rules for Companies or any other applicable law or regulation (including but not limited
to the FSA Rules);

(J)       a person who is appointed as a Controller Director shall not have a conflict of interest by reason
of any direct or indirect interest of, or position held by, that person (whether as a director,
officer, partner, servant, agent or employee) in Arbuthnot regardless of whether such conflict
of interest is considered by the Company to be material in relation to the business, operations
or prospects of the Group taken as a whole. Any Controller Director’s employment or office
with Arbuthnot shall not be deemed to create a conflict of interest;

(K)     Arbuthnot shall consult with the Nominated Adviser before appointing or removing a
Controller Director;

(L)      the Company will pay to Arbuthnot, in respect of the performance of the duties of each
Controller Director, an annual fee per Controller Director equal to the annual remuneration
paid to an Independent Director holding an equivalent position or positions (exclusive of value
added and other taxes);

(M)     without prejudice to any provisions contained in the Articles, Controller Directors will not,
unless otherwise agreed by the Board, be entitled to vote of any resolutions of the Board in
respect of:

(1)      any Related Party Transaction (as defined in Rule 13 of the AIM Rules for Companies
but also including any other transaction between the Company and any member of the
Arbuthnot Group which is reasonably considered to be material to the Company) where
any member of the Arbuthnot Group or a Controller Director is the related party;

(2)      any amendments or novations etc of any agreement or arrangement which is a Related
Party Transaction as described in (1) above;

(3)      any claims by the Arbuthnot Group under the Relationship Agreement (or a Related
Party Transaction as described in (1) above) or any right of action of Arbuthnot or any
member of the Arbuthnot Group against a member of the Group; or
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(4)      any claims by the Group under the Relationship Agreement (or a Related Party
Transaction as described in (1) above) or any right of action by a member of the Group
against Arbuthnot or any member of the Arbuthnot Group;

(N)     amendments to or termination of the Relationship Agreement require prior consultation with
the Nominated Adviser. Controller Directors are not permitted to vote on any such resolutions;

(O)     amendments to or termination of the Services Agreement with a value in excess of £100,000
require the approval of the Board. Controller Directors are not permitted to vote on any such
resolutions. Amendments to or variations of the Services Agreement with a value of £100,000
or less shall not require the approval of the Board unless they are Related Party Transactions;

(P)      the Company will establish the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nominations Committee, and the Risk Committee. Further details of the composition and the
duties of each of these committees are contained in paragraphs 17.3 to 17.6 of Part 2 of this
document;

(Q)     Related Party Transactions will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders, except where
the Board (with the Controller Directors abstaining) has approved the Related Party
Transaction following consultation with the Nominated Adviser. Arbuthnot will abstain from
exercising any voting rights in relation to the approval of a Related Party Transaction.
Arbuthnot is otherwise free to vote in its capacity as Shareholder (save in relation to the matters
described in paragraph (X) below);

(R)      Arbuthnot shall have certain information rights in relation to the Company’s accounting and
financial information, where such information is required to enable Arbuthnot to: (i) account
properly for its investment in the Company; (ii) comply with its financial reporting obligations,
including in connection with the preparation and audit of its financial information; (iii) comply
with its reporting obligations to any regulatory authority or with any legal or regulatory
requirement applicable to it; or (iv) continue to receive management information of the nature
and in the form which Arbuthnot was receiving prior to Admission;

(S)      subject to certain customary exceptions, any information provided to Arbuthnot by the
Company shall only be used by Arbuthnot for the purposes of monitoring Arbuthnot’s
investment in the Company, and will treat such information as confidential. Such information
may not be used by Arbuthnot to obtain any commercial advantage in the context of any
commercial relationship which it has with the Company or with any other member of the
Group;

(T)      subject to certain customary exceptions, any information provided to the Company by
Arbuthnot shall only be used by the Company for the purposes of discharging the Company’s
responsibilities to Arbuthnot or to fulfil the Company’s obligations under the Relationship
Agreement, and will treat such information as confidential. Such information may not be used
by the Company to obtain any commercial advantage in the context of any commercial
relationship which it has with Arbuthnot or with any other member of Arbuthnot’s Group;

(U)     each party will comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations in relation to information
provided by one party to the other which may constitute “inside information” and/or
“unpublished price sensitive information”;

(V)     each party, either on their own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, save with the prior written consent of the other party:

•          in the case of the Arbuthnot Group, during the term of two years from the date of the
Relationship Agreement will not establish, or promote in direct competition with the
Group, a business which competes with the motor finance or other lines of business
carried on by the Group, other than as a holder for investment purposes only; or
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•          in the case of the Group, during the term of two years from the date of the Relationship
Agreement will not establish, or promote in direct competition with the Group, a
business which competes with the private banking, corporate finance or securities
business of the Arbuthnot Group, other than as a holder for investment purposes only;
or

•          will not solicit, canvass or endeavour to entice away any person who is a senior
employee with gross annual remuneration of £100,000 or more of the other party
whether or not such person would commit a breach of contract by reason of leaving
employment and except for such persons that answer a bona fide public advertisement
without any notification of such opportunity and/or encouragement from the party
concerned;

(W)    in the event that the Company and Arbuthnot find themselves in direct competition for the same
customers or services, an independent director of the Company and the Chairman of Arbuthnot
will meet with a view to finding a mutually acceptable way of avoiding conflicts arising from
competitive business activities;

(X)     Arbuthnot undertakes that it will not exercise its voting rights to cancel the Company’s listing
and admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM until the earlier of the termination of
the Relationship Agreement, and two years from the date of Admission unless the Independent
Directors (acting unanimously), confirm in writing to Arbuthnot or at a board meeting of the
Company that such cancellation would not be prejudicial to the Shareholders (other than
Arbuthnot);

(Y)     Arbuthnot will only be permitted to purchase additional Ordinary Shares through Collins
Stewart. Any such purchase may only be effected with the prior written consent of Collins
Stewart and Hawkpoint (such consents not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed). This
restriction will not apply in relation to pre-emptive issues of Ordinary Shares; and

(Z)      neither party is permitted to directly target the known customers of the other for the purposes
of the provision of products and services which are competitive with those provided by the
other party.

The Relationship Agreement is governed by English law.

9.3      Services Agreement

Under the Services Agreement:

(A)     the Company agrees that it will provide the following services to Arbuthnot: IT services
(including helpdesk, planning and implementation of IT strategy, IT Governance, hosting of
various systems, certain disaster recovery services and IT supplier management), telephony
services, HR services and some finance-related services. In consideration for the provision of
such services, Arbuthnot shall pay to the Company charges calculated on a cost plus 10 per
cent. basis;

(B)      Arbuthnot agrees that it will provide the following services to the Company: treasury and cash
management services, company secretarial services, compliance services (including
management of the FSA relationship), anti-money laundering services, and certain disaster
recovery services. In consideration for the provision of such services, the Company shall pay
to Arbuthnot charges calculated on a cost plus 10 per cent. basis;

(C)      the Services Agreement may be terminated on not less than 3 months’ notice, or will be
terminated when the Company’s shares cease to be admitted to trading on AIM or any other
regulated investment market. Following termination of the Services Agreement, each party
shall provide the other with such assistance as may reasonably be required in order to ensure
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there is an orderly transition of the relevant services to a replacement supplier, or back in-
house;

(D)     both parties exclude all liability to the other under or in connection with the Services
Agreement (whether direct or indirect losses); and

(E)      subject to customary exceptions, each party will keep information obtained from the other in
the course of providing services under the Services Agreement strictly confidential.

9.4      Trade mark assignment

Under the trade mark assignment between the Company and Arbuthnot, Arbuthnot agrees to assign
all its right, title and interest in and to certain trade marks to the Company, including MONEYLINE,
SECUREDIRECT, SECUREPET, SECURE BREAKDOWN, SECURE THEFT, THEFTASSIST,
ONEBILL, SNOWBALL and MONEYWAY.

9.5      Placing Agreement

Under the Placing Agreement, Collins Stewart, as agent of the Company and Arbuthnot, has agreed
to use its reasonable endeavours to procure Placees to subscribe for or acquire the Placing Shares. The
Placing is not being underwritten. In addition, under the Placing Agreement the Company has
appointed Hawkpoint to act as its nominated adviser in relation to the Placing and Admission and to
make the nominated adviser declaration required by the London Stock Exchange for Admission on
the terms of the Nomad Agreement and the Placing Agreement.

The Placing Agreement is conditional upon, among other things, Admission taking place no later than
8.00 a.m. on 2 November 2011 (or such later date as may be agreed by the Company and the Advisers,
which shall be no later than 3.00 p.m. on 4 November 2011).

Pursuant to the Placing Agreement and conditional on Admission, the Company and Arbuthnot have
agreed to pay to Collins Stewart a commission equal to (a) 5 per cent. of the first £10 million of total
gross aggregate proceeds of the subscription and sale of the Placing Shares and (b) 3 per cent. of the
amount of the total gross aggregate proceeds of the subscription and sale of the Placing Shares in
excess of £10 million (such amounts to be pro rated between the Company and Arbuthnot in
proportion to the number of New Shares issued and Sale Shares sold to Placees). To the extent that
that any Placees are introduced to the Advisers by the Company or Arbuthnot and a bona fide
commission is paid in connection with such subscription or purchase, Collins Stewart’s fee shall be
reduced so that, in relation to such Placees it receives 2.5 per cent. of the first £10 million of total
gross aggregate proceeds of the subscription and sale of the Placing Shares by those Placees and an
amount equal to 1.5 per cent. of the amount of the total gross aggregate proceeds of the subscription
and sale of the Placing Shares by those Placees in excess of £10 million. The allocation of Placing
Shares to Placees is at the discretion of Collins Stewart (in consultation with the Company). The
Company will also pay all costs and expenses of the Advisers incurred in connection with the Placing
and the application for Admission.

Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the Company and Arbuthnot have severally given certain
warranties and indemnities to the Advisers that are typical for agreements of this nature. Arbuthnot’s
liability under the Placing Agreement is subject to a financial cap and time limit.

Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the Company has undertaken to each of the Advisers that, during
a period commencing on the date of the Placing Agreement, and ending on the date of publication of
the preliminary financial results of the Company for the 12 month period ending 31 December 2011,
it will not without the prior written consent of the Advisers (such consent not to be unreasonably
withheld or delayed), issue, allot, offer, pledge sell contract to sell, grant any option to purchase or
otherwise transfer or enter into any swap in relation to, Ordinary Shares. The Company may however,
grant options under and allot shares pursuant to Share Option Scheme.
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Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, Arbuthnot has undertaken to each of the Advisers that, during a
period of six months from Admission it will not without the prior written consent of the Advisers,
subject to certain exceptions set out below, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any option to
purchase or otherwise transfer or enter into any swap in relation to, Ordinary Shares. The exceptions
referred to above include (i) accepting a general offer made to all holders of issued and allotted
Ordinary Shares for the time being made in accordance with the City Code; (ii) executing or
delivering an irrevocable commitment or undertaking to accept a general offer as referred to in
paragraph (i); (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of Ordinary Shares pursuant to an offer by the
Company to purchase its own Ordinary Shares; (iv) transferring or disposing of Ordinary Shares
pursuant to a compromise or arrangement between the Company and its creditors or members;
(v) taking up rights granted in respect of a rights issue or other pre-emptive share offering by the
Company; and (vi) disposing of Ordinary Shares in accordance with any order by a court of competent
jurisdiction or if required by law.

The Advisers are entitled to terminate the Placing Agreement in specified circumstances prior to
Admission, among other things, in the event of the occurrence of certain force majeure events, or a
material breach of the Placing Agreement or in circumstances in which a claim could be made under
any of the indemnities or a breach of the warranties. If any of the conditions contained in the Placing
Agreement are not satisfied (or waived where capable of waiver), Admission will not take place.

The Placing Agreement is governed by English law.

9.6      Nomad Agreement

The Company and Hawkpoint have entered into the Nomad Agreement dated 28 October 2011,
pursuant to which the Company has appointed Hawkpoint to act as its Nominated Adviser for the
purposes of the AIM Rules for Companies commencing with effect from the date of Admission and
continuing thereafter. The Nomad Agreement contains certain undertakings and indemnities given by
the Company. The Nomad Agreement is subject to termination on the giving of three months’ notice
from one party to the other. The Nomad Agreement is governed by English law.

9.7      Broker Agreement

The Company and Collins Stewart have entered into the Broker Agreement dated 28 October 2011,
pursuant to which the Company has appointed Collins Stewart to act as its broker commencing with
effect from the date of Admission and continuing thereafter. The Broker Agreement contains certain
undertakings and indemnities given by the Company. The Broker Agreement is subject to immediate
termination on the giving of notice from one party to the other. The Broker Agreement is governed by
English law.

10.      Related Party Transactions

10.1    Save as disclosed in Note 29 of the financial statements in Part 5 of this document (Accountants’
Report on the Company), the Company confirms that there have been no other related party
transactions during the years ended 31 December 2008, 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010
and the six month period ended 30 June 2011.

10.2    Save as disclosed in this document, there have been no related party transactions in the period from
30 June 2011 to the date of this document.

11.      Working Capital

In the opinion of the Directors, having made due and careful enquiry, the working capital available to the
Group is sufficient for its present requirements, that is for at least the next 12 months from the date of
Admission.
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12.      Significant Change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 30 June 2011,
being the date to which the historical financial information relating to the Group set out in Part 5 of this
document has been prepared.

13.      Litigation And Arbitration

No member of the Group is or has been engaged in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, and
the Company is not aware of any such proceedings, pending or threatened, by or against the Group, which
may have, or has had during the 12 months preceding the date of this document, a significant effect on the
Group’s financial position or profitability.

14.      Mandatory Bids and Compulsory Acquisition Rules relating to the Ordinary Shares

14.1    Mandatory bid

The City Code will apply to the Company upon Admission. Under the City Code, if an acquisition of
interests in the Ordinary Shares were to increase the aggregate holding of an acquirer and persons
acting in concert with it to an interest in the Ordinary Shares carrying 30 per cent. or more of the
voting rights in the Company, the acquirer and, depending upon the circumstances, persons acting in
concert with it, would be required (except with the consent of the Panel) to make a cash offer for the
outstanding Ordinary Shares at a price not less than the highest price paid for any interest in the
Ordinary Shares by the acquirer or persons acting in concert with it during the 12 months prior to the
announcement of the offer. A similar obligation to make such a mandatory offer would also arise on
the acquisition of an interest in Ordinary Shares by a person holding (together with persons acting in
concert with it) an interest in Ordinary Shares carrying between 30 and 50 per cent. of the voting
rights in the Company if the effect of such acquisition were to increase that person’s percentage of the
voting rights.

However, it should be noted that on Admission, Arbuthnot will hold 75.5 per cent. of the voting rights
in the Company. As such, although the City Code would generally apply to Arbuthnot in the event that
it made an offer for the Ordinary Shares which it did not already own, the relevant rules of the City
Code relating to mandatory bids referred to above will not apply to Arbuthnot. The result of this is
that Arbuthnot shall be free to acquire further Ordinary Shares without triggering a mandatory bid
under the City Code, subject to the provisions of the Relationship Agreement.

14.2    Compulsory acquisition

Under sections 974 – 991 of the Companies Act, if an offeror acquires or contracts to acquire
(pursuant to a takeover offer) not less than 90 per cent. of the shares (in value and by voting rights) to
which such offer relates it may then compulsorily acquire the outstanding shares not assented to the
offer.

In addition, pursuant to section 983 of the Companies Act, if an offeror acquires or agrees to acquire
not less than 90 per cent. of the shares (in value and by voting rights) to which the offer relates, any
holder of shares to which the offer relates who has not accepted the offer may require the offeror to
acquire his shares on the same terms as the takeover offer.

15.      General

15.1    Expenses

The total costs and expenses of, and incidental to, the Placing and Admission save for the
commissions and stamp duty payable by Arbuthnot, are estimated to amount to £2.2 million
(including VAT) and are payable by the Company.

15.2    Nature of financial information

(A)     The financial information in this document relating to the Group does not comprise statutory
accounts within the meaning of section 434(3) of the Companies Act. Statutory accounts for
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the Company for the period from the year ended 31 December 2008 to the year ended
31 December 2010 have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales.
The statutory accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, of 7 More London Riverside, London SE1 2RT.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is registered to carry out work by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. The statutory accounts of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2010 were audited by KPMG Audit Plc who, in each case, gave reports
pursuant to section 495 of the Companies Act in respect of these accounts and each such report
was an unqualified report and did not contain a statement under section 498(2), (3) or (4) of the
Companies Act. The Directors confirm that there are no circumstances relating to the
replacement of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for KPMG Audit Plc which are material for
disclosure in this document.

(B)      The financial information which appears in this document in respect of the six months ended
30 June 2010 has not been extracted from the audited accounts of the Company, has not been
audited or reviewed and has been included for comparative purposes only.

15.3    Consents

(A)     Hawkpoint has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this document
with the inclusion in this document of its name in the form and context in which it appears.

(B)      Collins Stewart has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this
document of its name and of the references to its name in the form and context in which they
respectively appear.

(C)      KPMG Audit Plc has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this
document with the inclusion in it of its report and references thereto and to its name in the form
and context in which they appear and has authorised the contents of those parts of this
document for the purposes of the AIM Rules for Companies.

15.4    Benefits received from the Company

Save as disclosed in this document, no person (excluding professional advisers otherwise disclosed in
this document and trade suppliers) has received, directly or indirectly, from the Company within the
12 months preceding the application for Admission; or entered into any contractual arrangement to
receive, directly or indirectly, from the Company on or after Admission, any fees totalling £10,000 or
more or securities in the Company with a value of £10,000 or more (calculated by reference to the
Placing Price) or any other benefit to a value of £10,000.

15.5    Miscellaneous

(A)     The Ordinary Shares being placed pursuant to the Placing have a nominal value of 40p each
and will be issued at a premium of 680p per share. The rights attaching to the new and existing
Ordinary Shares will be uniform in all respects and they will form a single class for all
purposes.

(B)      Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance has been effected by the Company with effect from
Admission in respect of each of the Directors for an aggregate sum assured of £10 million.

(C)      Directors’ and Officers’ Prospectus liability insurance has been effected by the Company with
effect from Admission in respect of each of the Directors for an aggregate sum assured of
£10 million.

(D)     There have not been any interruptions to the business of the Group which may have, or have
had, a significant effect on the Company’s financial position in the last 12 months.

(E)      The Directors are not aware of any arrangement under which future dividends are waived or
agreed to be waived.

120



(F)      The following dividends have recently been declared or are intended to be declared by the
Company:

•          a dividend of £1.6 million was paid to Arbuthnot in September 2011;

•          a £3.4 million dividend will be paid to Arbuthnot conditional on Admission and paid at
the same time as the receipt of new capital; and

•          it is currently intended that a dividend of £600,000 will be declared by the Company at
the time of publishing the Company’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2011,
in respect of the period from Admission until such date. The Directors intend this to be
declared as a final dividend and be paid in May 2012.

(G)     The Placing comprises an offer by the Company of 1,666,667 New Shares and the sale of, in
aggregate, 1,804,166 Sale Shares by Arbuthnot. Arbuthnot’s business address is at Arbuthnot
House, 20 Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 9AR. Arbuthnot is the parent company of Secure
Trust Bank and prior to Admission, Secure Trust Bank was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Arbuthnot.

(H)     There are no investments to be made by the Company in the future in respect of which firm
commitments have been made.

(I)       The ISIN for the Ordinary Shares is GB00B6TKHP66.

16.      Availability of Documents

Copies of this document will be available, free of charge to the public, at the offices of Simmons & Simmons
LLP, CityPoint, One Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 9SS during normal business hours on any weekday
(Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) until the date falling one month after the date of
Admission, and on the Company’s website (www.securetrustbank.com).

Dated: 28 October 2011
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DEFINITIONS AND TECHNICAL TERMS

The following definitions apply throughout this document, unless the context requires otherwise:

“Admission” the admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM becoming
effective pursuant to Rule 6 of the AIM Rules for Companies

“Admission Shares” the number of issued Ordinary Shares on Admission

“Advisers” Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint

“Affinity Partners” business relationships entered into by the Company where both
parties co-operate in the promotion of their respective businesses

“AIM” AIM, a market operated by the London Stock Exchange

“AIM Rules for Companies” the rules for AIM companies published by the London Stock
Exchange

the rules for nominated advisers to AIM companies published by
the London Stock Exchange

“AER” Annual Equivalent Rate

“APR” Annual Percentage Rate

“Arbuthnot” Arbuthnot Banking Group PLC

“Arbuthnot Group” Arbuthnot and each of its subsidiary undertakings from time to
time, but excluding the Group

“Arbuthnot Latham” Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited

“Articles” the articles of association of the Company which have been adopted
conditional upon Admission, a summary of which is set out in
paragraph 3 of Part 7 of this document

“Asset and Liability Committee” the Company’s asset and liability committee

“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Board, the function and composition of
which are set out in paragraph 17.3 of Part 2 of this document

“BIPRU” the FSA’s Prudential Sourcebook for Banks, Building Societies and
Investment Firms

“Broker” Collins Stewart

“Broker Agreement” the conditional agreement dated 28 October 2011 between the
Company and Collins Stewart relating to the provision of broking
services by Collins Stewart to the Company, summary details of
which are set out in paragraph 9.7 of Part 7 of this document

“CCA” Consumer Credit Act 1974, as amended

“CCD” the Consumer Credit Directive (2008/48/EC), adopted by the
European Council in May 2008 and as implemented in the United
Kingdom

“City Code” the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

“Code” the UK Corporate Governance Code published in June 2010 by the
Financial Reporting Council, as amended

“AIM Rules for Nominated
Advisers”
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“Collins Stewart” Collins Stewart Europe Limited

“Companies Act” the Companies Act 2006, as amended

“Company” or “Secure Trust Bank” Secure Trust Bank PLC

“Credit Risk Committee” the Company’s credit risk committee

“CREST” the relevant system (as defined in the CREST Regulations) in
respect of which Euroclear UK & Ireland is the operator (as defined
in the CREST Regulations)

“CREST Regulations” the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3755), as
amended

“Debt Collection Guidelines” the Debt Collection Guidelines published by the OFT

“Directors” or “Board” the directors of the Company whose names are set out on page 4 of
this document

“EEA” the member states of the European Economic Area

“Enlarged Share Capital” the issued share capital of the Company on Admission, as enlarged
by the issue of the New Shares pursuant to the Placing

“Executive Committee” the Company’s executive committee, comprising the Company’s
executive directors and other members of the Key Management
Team

“EU” the member states of the European Union

“Euroclear UK & Ireland” Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited, the operator of CREST

“FCA” Financial Conduct Authority

“FPC” Financial Policy Committee

“FSA” the Financial Services Authority of the United Kingdom

“FSA Rules” the Handbook of Rules and Guidance of the FSA

“FSCS” the Financial Services Compensation Scheme

“FSMA” the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

“Hawkpoint” Hawkpoint Partners Limited

“HMRC” HM Revenue & Customs

“HPI” Hire Purchase Interest

“ICAAP” Individual Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

“ICB” the Independent Commission on Banking established by the UK
Government

“ICB Report” the ICB’s Final Report and Recommendations, published on
12 September 2011

“ILAA” Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
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“Key Management Team” Kevin Hayes, David Nield, Siân Rogers, Jonathan Wilson,
Jon Bowers and Anne McKenning

“London Stock Exchange” London Stock Exchange plc

“New Shares” the 1,666,667 new Ordinary Shares being issued by the Company to
placees in the Placing

“Nomad Agreement” the nominated adviser agreement dated 28 October 2011 between
the Company and Hawkpoint under which Hawkpoint agreed to act
as the Company’s nominated adviser, summary details of which are
set out in paragraph 9.6 of Part 7 of this document

“Nominated Adviser” Hawkpoint

“Nomination Committee” the nomination committee of the Board, the function and
composition of which are set out in paragraph 17.6 of Part 2 of this
document

“Official List” the Official List of the UK Listing Authority

“OFT” the Office of Fair Trading

“Ordinary Shares” ordinary shares of 40p each in the share capital of the Company

“Placees” subscribers for Placing Shares in the Placing

“Placing” the conditional placing of the Placing Shares by Collins Stewart, at
the Placing Price pursuant to the Placing Agreement

“Placing Agreement” the conditional agreement dated 28 October 2011 between the
Company, the Directors, Arbuthnot and each of the Advisers
relating to the Placing, summary details of which are set out in
paragraph 9.5 of Part 7 of this document

“Placing Price” 720p per Placing Share

“Placing Shares” the Sale Shares and the New Shares

“PRA” the Prudential Regulation Authority

“Prospectus Rules” the prospectus rules of the Financial Services Authority made under
Part VI of the FSMA, as amended

“Relationship Agreement” the conditional agreement dated 27 October 2011 between the
Company and Arbuthnot relating to the relationship between the
Company and Arbuthnot, summary details of which are set out in
paragraph 9.2 of Part 7 of this document

“Remuneration Code” the Remuneration Code published by the FSA

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee of the Board, the function and
composition of which are set out in paragraph 17.5 of Part 2 of this
document

“Risk Committee” the risk committee of the Board, the function and composition of
which are set out in paragraph 17.4 of Part 2 of this document

“Sale Shares” the Ordinary Shares being sold by Arbuthnot to placees in the
Placing
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“Services Agreement” the conditional agreement dated 27 October 2011 between the
Company and Arbuthnot relating to the provision of services by the
Company or Arbuthnot to the other, summary details of which are
set out in paragraph 9.3 of Part 7 of this document

“SFA” the Securities and Futures Authority Limited

“Shareholder” a holder of Ordinary Shares

“Share Option Scheme” the Secure Trust Bank Share Option Scheme, summary details of
which are set out in paragraph 4 of Part 7 of this document

“subsidiary” as defined in section 1159 and Schedule 6 of the Companies Act

“UK” or “United Kingdom” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“UK Listing Authority” the Financial Services Authority acting in its capacity as the
competent authority for the purposes of Part VI of the FSMA and in
the exercise of its functions in respect of admission to the Official
List

“USA” or “United States” the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any
state of the United States of America and the District of Columbia

“£”, “pence” or “p” pounds sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
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APPENDIX – TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PLACING

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR PLACEES ONLY

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE NOT ELIGIBLE TO TAKE PART IN THE PLACING. THIS
DOCUMENT AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET OUT AND REFERRED TO HEREIN ARE
DIRECTED ONLY AT PERSONS SELECTED BY COLLINS STEWART EUROPE LIMITED
(“COLLINS STEWART” AND THE “PLACING AGENT”) WHO ARE “INVESTMENT
PROFESSIONALS” FALLING WITHIN ARTICLE 19(5) OF THE FINANCIAL SERVICES AND
MARKETS ACT 2000 (FINANCIAL PROMOTION) ORDER 2005 (THE “FPO”) OR “HIGH NET
WORTH COMPANIES, UNINCORPORATED ASSOCIATIONS ETC” FALLING WITHIN ARTICLE
49(2) OF THE FPO OR TO PERSONS TO WHOM IT MAY OTHERWISE LAWFULLY BE
COMMUNICATED (ALL SUCH PERSONS TOGETHER BEING REFERRED TO AS “RELEVANT
PERSONS”). THIS DOCUMENT AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET OUT HEREIN MUST
NOT BE ACTED ON OR RELIED ON BY PERSONS WHO ARE NOT RELEVANT PERSONS.

THE PLACING SHARES ARE NOT BEING OFFERED OR SOLD TO ANY PERSON IN THE
EUROPEAN UNION, OTHER THAN TO “QUALIFIED INVESTORS” AS DEFINED IN ARTICLE
2.1(E) OF DIRECTIVE 2003/71/EC (THE “PROSPECTUS DIRECTIVE”), WHICH INCLUDES
LEGAL ENTITIES WHICH ARE REGULATED BY THE FSA OR ENTITIES WHICH ARE NOT SO
REGULATED WHOSE CORPORATE PURPOSE IS SOLELY TO INVEST IN SECURITIES.

The Placing Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “Securities Act”) or under the securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the United
States and may not be offered, sold, resold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into the United States
absent registration except pursuant to an exemption from or in a transaction not subject to the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. No public offering of the Placing Shares is being made in the United
States. The Placing (as defined below) is being made outside the United States in offshore transactions (as
defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act (“Regulation S”)) meeting the requirements of Regulation
S under the Securities Act. Persons receiving this document (including custodians, nominees and trustees)
must not forward, distribute, mail or otherwise transmit it in or into the United States or use the United States
mails, directly or indirectly, in connection with the Placing.

This document does not constitute an offer to sell or issue or a solicitation of an offer to buy or subscribe for
Placing Shares in any jurisdiction including, without limitation, the United States, Canada, Australia, Japan
or any other jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is or may be unlawful (a “Prohibited
Jurisdiction”). This document and the information contained herein are not for publication or distribution,
directly or indirectly, to persons in a Prohibited Jurisdiction unless permitted pursuant to an exemption under
the relevant local law or regulation in any such jurisdiction.

The distribution of this document, the Placing and/or issue of the Placing Shares in certain jurisdictions may
be restricted by law and/or regulation. No action has been taken by the Company, Collins Stewart or any of
their respective Affiliates (as defined below) that would permit an offer of the Placing Shares or possession
or distribution of this document or any other publicity material relating to such Placing Shares in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Persons receiving this document are required to inform
themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

Collins Stewart Europe Limited, which is authorised and regulated in United Kingdom by the Financial
Services Authority, is acting for Secure Trust Bank and Arbuthnot and for no one else in connection with the
Placing and will not be responsible to anyone other than Secure Trust Bank and Arbuthnot for providing the
protections afforded to clients of Collins Stewart Europe Limited or for affording advice in relation to the
Placing, or any other matters referred to herein.

By participating in the Placing, each person who is invited to and who chooses to participate in the Placing
(a “Placee”) by making an oral offer to take up Placing Shares is deemed to have read and understood this
document in its entirety and to be providing the representations, warranties, undertakings, agreements and
acknowledgements contained herein.
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Details of the Placing Agreement and the Placing Shares

The Company has entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Arbuthnot, Collins
Stewart and Hawkpoint, under which Collins Stewart has, subject to the terms set out therein, agreed to use
reasonable endeavours, as agents of the Company and Arbuthnot, to procure Placees for the Placing Shares. 

The Placing Shares will, when issued, be credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.

The Placing Shares will be issued free of any encumbrance, lien or other security interest.

Application for listing and admission to trading

Application has been made to the London Stock Exchange for admission to trading of the Placing Shares on
the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange (“Admission”). It is expected that Admission will become
effective and that dealings will commence on 2 November 2011, and in any event no later than 4 November
2011.

Participation in, and principal terms of, the Placing

Each of Collins Stewart and its respective Affiliates (as defined below) is entitled to participate as a Placee.

A single price (the “Placing Price”) will be payable to Collins Stewart by all Placees.

Prospective Placees will be identified and contacted by Collins Stewart.

The Placing is expected to close at 4.30 p.m. on 28 October 2011. However, the Company may, with the prior
approval of Hawkpoint and Collins Stewart, bring forward or postpone this date. In the event such date is
changed, the Company will notify investors who have applied for Placing Shares either by post, by electronic
mail or by the publication of a notice through a regulatory information service provider to the London Stock
Exchange.

Collins Stewart will re-contact and confirm orally to Placees the size of their respective allocations and a
trade confirmation will be dispatched as soon as possible thereafter. Collins Stewart’s oral confirmation of
the size of allocations and each Placee’s oral commitments to accept the same will constitute a legally
binding agreement pursuant to which each such Placee will be required to accept the number of Placing
Shares allocated to the Placee at the Placing Price and otherwise on the terms and subject to the conditions
set out herein.

Collins Stewart reserves the right to scale back the number of Placing Shares to be subscribed by any Placee.
The Placing Agent also reserves the right not to accept offers to subscribe for Placing Shares or to accept
such offers in part rather than in whole. Collins Stewart shall be entitled to effect the Placing by such method
as it shall in its sole discretion determine. To the fullest extent permissible by law, neither Collins Stewart or
any holding company thereof, nor any subsidiary, branch or affiliate of Collins Stewart (each an “Affiliate”)
nor any person acting on behalf of any of the foregoing shall have any liability to Placees (or to any other
person whether acting on behalf of a Placee or otherwise). In particular, neither of Collins Stewart nor any
Affiliate thereof nor any person acting on its behalf shall have any liability to Placees in respect of its conduct
of the Placing. No commissions will be paid to Placees or directly by Placees in respect of any Placing
Shares.

Each Placee’s obligations will be owed to the Company, Arbuthnot and to Collins Stewart. Following the
oral confirmation referred to above, each Placee will also have an immediate, separate, irrevocable and
binding obligation, owed to Collins Stewart, to pay to Collins Stewart (or as Collins Stewart may direct) in
cleared funds an amount equal to the product of the Placing Price and the number of Placing Shares such
Placee has agreed to acquire. The Company shall allot such Placing Shares to each Placee following each
Placee’s payment to Collins Stewart of such amount.

All obligations of Collins Stewart under the Placing will be subject to fulfilment of the conditions referred
to below under “Conditions of the Placing”.
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Conditions of the Placing

The Placing is conditional upon the Placing Agreement becoming unconditional and not having been
terminated in accordance with its terms.

The obligations of Collins Stewart under the Placing Agreement are conditional, inter alia, on:

(i)      Admission occurring by no later than 8.00 a.m. on 2 November 2011 (or such later date as may be
agreed between the Company and Collins Stewart, not being later than 4 November 2011;

(ii)     the Company delivering, by no later than 7.00 a.m. on the day of (and prior to) Admission, to Collins
Stewart certificates confirming, inter alia, that none of the warranties given by the Company in the
Placing Agreement has been breached or was untrue, inaccurate or misleading when made or is untrue
or inaccurate by reference to the facts subsisting on the date of the certificate;

(iii)    the Company and Arbuthnot having complied in all material respects with their respective obligations
under the Placing Agreement which fall to be performed or satisfied on or prior to Admission; and

(iv)     the Company allotting the New Shares, prior to and conditionally only on Admission.

If (a) the conditions are not fulfilled (or to the extent permitted under the Placing Agreement waived by
Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint), or (b) the Placing Agreement is terminated in the circumstances specified
below, the Placing will lapse and each Placee’s rights and obligations hereunder shall cease and determine
at such time and no claim may be made by a Placee in respect thereof. Neither Collins Stewart nor any of its
Affiliates shall have any liability to any Placee (or to any other person whether acting on behalf of a Placee
or otherwise) in respect of any decision it may make as to whether or not to waive or to extend the time
and/or date for the satisfaction of any condition in the Placing Agreement or in respect of the Placing
generally.

By participating in the Placing, each Placee agrees that its rights and obligations hereunder terminate only
in the circumstances described above and under “Right to terminate under the Placing Agreement” below,
and will not be capable of rescission or termination by the Placee.

Right to terminate under the Placing Agreement

Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint may, at any time before Admission, terminate the Placing Agreement by
giving notice to the Company if:

(a)      there has been a breach by the Company or Arbuthnot of any of the warranties given pursuant to the
Placing Agreement or any statement made in any of the marketing documents (which includes this
document) was untrue, inaccurate or misleading in any material respect when made or becomes
untrue, inaccurate or misleading in any material respect by reference to the facts and circumstances
existing from time to time or any matter arising which might reasonably be expected to give rise to a
claim under the indemnities contained in the Placing Agreement; or

(b)      this is a material breach by the Company or Arbuthnot of any of their respective obligations under the
Placing Agreement (to the extent such obligations fall to be performed prior to Admission); or

(c)      in the opinion of Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint (acting in good faith), there has been a material
adverse change, whether or not foreseeable at the date of the Placing Agreement, in, or any
development involving a prospective material adverse change in or affecting, the condition, financial,
operational, legal or otherwise, or the earnings or business affairs or business prospects of the Group
(taken as a whole), whether or not arising in the ordinary course of business; or

(d)      there has been a suspension of trading in securities generally on the London Stock Exchange or the
New York Stock Exchange or trading is limited or minimum prices established on any such exchange,
a declaration of a banking moratorium in London or by the US federal or New York State authorities
or any material disruption to commercial banking or securities settlement or clearance services in the
US or the UK or any change, or development involving a prospective change, in national or
international financial, economic, political, industrial or market conditions or currency exchange rates
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or exchange controls, or any incident of terrorism or outbreak or escalation of hostilities or any
declaration by the UK or the US of a national emergency or war, in each case the effect of which
(either singly or together with any other event referred to in this paragraph) is such as to make it, in
the judgment of Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint (in their good faith opinion and following
consultation with the Company and Arbuthnot) impracticable or inadvisable to market the Placing
Shares or to enforce contracts for the sale of the Placing Shares. 

By participating in the Placing, each Placee agrees with Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint that the exercise by
Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint of any right of termination or other discretion under the Placing Agreement
shall be within the absolute discretion of Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint and that Collins Stewart and
Hawkpoint need not make any reference to the Placee in this regard and that, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, Collins Stewart and Hawkpoint shall not have any liability whatsoever to the Placee in connection
with any such exercise.

No offering document or prospectus has been or will be prepared in relation to the Placing and Placees’
commitments will be made solely on the basis of the information contained in this document. Each Placee,
by accepting a participation in the Placing, agrees that the content of this document is exclusively the
responsibility of the Company and the persons stated herein as accepting responsibility for this document
and confirms to Collins Stewart, its Affiliates and the Company that it has neither received nor relied on any
information, representation, warranty or statement made by or on behalf of Collins Stewart (other than the
amount of the relevant Placing participation in the oral confirmation given to Placees and the trade
confirmation referred to below), any of its Affiliates, any persons acting on its behalf or the Company other
than this document and neither Collins Stewart nor any of its Affiliates, nor any persons acting on its behalf,
nor the Company will be liable for the decision of any Placee to participate in the Placing based on any other
information, representation, warranty or statement which the Placee may have obtained or received
(regardless of whether or not such information, representation, warranty or statement was given or made by
or on behalf of any such persons) other than this document. By participating in the Placing, each Placee
acknowledges to and agrees with Collins Stewart for itself and its Affiliates and as agent for the Company
that, except in relation to the information contained in this document, it has relied on its own investigation
of the business, financial or other position of the Company in deciding to participate in the Placing. Nothing
in this paragraph shall exclude the liability of any person for fraudulent misrepresentation.

Registration and settlement

Settlement of transactions in the Placing Shares (ISIN GB00B6TKHP66) following Admission will take
place within the CREST system, using the DVP mechanism, subject to certain exceptions. Collins Stewart
reserves the right to require settlement for and delivery of the Placing Shares to Placees by such other means
that it deems necessary, if delivery or settlement is not possible or practicable within the CREST system
within the timetable set out in this document or would not be consistent with the regulatory requirements in
the Placee’s jurisdiction. 

Each Placee allocated Placing Shares in the Placing will be sent a trade confirmation stating the number of
Placing Shares allocated to it, the Placing Price, the aggregate amount owed by such Placee to Collins
Stewart and settlement instructions. Placees should settle against CREST ID: 288. It is expected that such
trade confirmation will be despatched on 28 October 2011 and that this will also be the trade date. Each
Placee agrees that it will do all things necessary to ensure that delivery and payment is completed in
accordance with either the standing CREST or certificated settlement instructions which it has in place with
Collins Stewart.

It is expected that settlement will be on 2 November 2011 on a T+3 basis in accordance with the instructions
set out in the trade confirmation unless otherwise notified by Collins Stewart.

Interest is chargeable daily on payments not received from Placees on the due date in accordance with the
arrangements set out above at the rate of 2 percentage points above the base rate of Barclays Bank Plc.

Each Placee is deemed to agree that if it does not comply with these obligations, Collins Stewart may sell
any or all of the Placing Shares allocated to the Placee on such Placee’s behalf and retain from the proceeds,
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for its own account and profit, an amount equal to the aggregate amount owed by the Placee plus any interest
due. The Placee will, however, remain liable for any shortfall below the aggregate amount owed by such
Placee and it may be required to bear any stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax (together with any interest
or penalties) which may arise upon the sale of such Placing Shares on such Placee’s behalf.

If Placing Shares are to be delivered to a custodian or settlement agent, the Placee should ensure that the
trade confirmation is copied and delivered immediately to the relevant person within that organisation.

Insofar as Placing Shares are registered in the Placee’s name or that of its nominee or in the name of any
person for whom the Placee is contracting as agent or that of a nominee for such person, such Placing Shares
will, subject as provided below, be so registered free from any liability to PTM levy, stamp duty or stamp
duty reserve tax. If there are any circumstances in which any other stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax is
payable in respect of the issue or transfer of the Placing Shares, neither Collins Stewart nor the Company
shall be responsible for the payment thereof. Placees will not be entitled to receive any fee or commission
in connection with the Placing.

Representations and Warranties

By participating in the Placing, each Placee (and any person acting on such Placee’s behalf):

1.        represents and warrants that it has read and understood this document in its entirety and acknowledges
that its participation in the Placing will be governed by the terms of this document;

2.        acknowledges that no prospectus has been prepared in connection with the placing of the Placing
Shares;

3.        agrees to indemnify on an after-tax basis and hold harmless each of the Company, Arbuthnot, Collins
Stewart, their respective Affiliates and any person acting on its behalf from any and all costs, claims,
liabilities and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) arising out of or in connection with any
breach of the representations, warranties, acknowledgements, agreements and undertakings in this
document and further agrees that the provisions of this document shall survive after completion of the
Placing;

4.        acknowledges that the Placing Shares of the Company will be admitted to the AIM market of the
London Stock Exchange, and the Company is therefore required to publish certain business and
financial information in accordance with the rules and practices of the London Stock Exchange
(collectively, the “Exchange Information”) and that the Placee is able to obtain or access the
Exchange Information without undue difficulty; 

5.        acknowledges that neither Collins Stewart, nor any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their
behalf has provided, and will not provide it with any material or information regarding the Placing
Shares or the Company other than this document; nor has it requested Collins Stewart, any of its
Affiliates or any person acting on its behalf to provide it with any such material or information;

6.        acknowledges that the content of this document is exclusively the responsibility of the Company and
the persons stated herein as accepting responsibility for this document and that neither Collins
Stewart, nor any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their behalf will be responsible for or shall
have any liability for any information, representation or statement relating to the Company contained
in this document or any information previously published by or on behalf of the Company and neither
Collins Stewart, nor any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on its behalf will be liable for any
Placee’s decision to participate in the Placing based on any information, representation or statement
contained in this document or otherwise. Each Placee further represents, warrants and agrees that the
only information on which it is entitled to rely and on which such Placee has relied in committing to
subscribe for or acquire the Placing Shares is contained in this document and any Exchange
Information, such information being all that it deems necessary to make an investment decision in
respect of the Placing Shares, and that it has relied on its own investigation with respect to the Placing
Shares and the Company in connection with its decision to subscribe for the Placing Shares and
acknowledges that it is not relying on any investigation that Collins Stewart, any of its Affiliates or
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any person acting on their behalf may have conducted with respect to the Placing Shares or the
Company and none of such persons has made any representations to it, express or implied, with
respect thereto;

7.        acknowledges that it has not relied on any information relating to the Company contained in any
research reports prepared by Collins Stewart, its Affiliates or any person acting on its or any of its
Affiliates’ behalf and understands that (i) none of Collins Stewart, any of its Affiliates nor any person
acting on its behalf has or shall have any liability for public information or any representation; (ii)
none of Collins Stewart, any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their behalf has or shall have
any liability for any additional information that has otherwise been made available to such Placee,
whether at the date of publication, the date of this document or otherwise; and that (iii) none of Collins
Stewart, any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their behalf makes any representation or
warranty, express or implied, as to the truth, accuracy or completeness of such information, whether
at the date of publication, the date of this document or otherwise;

8.        represents and warrants that (i) it (or the beneficial owner, as applicable) is entitled to acquire the
Placing Shares under the laws and regulations of all relevant jurisdictions which apply to it (or the
beneficial owner, as applicable); (ii) it (or the beneficial owner, as applicable) has fully observed such
laws and regulations and obtained all such governmental and other guarantees and other consents and
authorities which may be required thereunder and complied with all necessary formalities; (iii) it (or
the beneficial owner, as applicable) has all necessary capacity to commit to participation in the
Placing and to perform its obligations in relation thereto and will honour such obligations; (iv) it (or
the beneficial owner, as applicable) has paid any issue, transfer or other taxes due in connection with
its (or the beneficial owner’s, as applicable) participation in any territory and (v) it (or the beneficial
owner, as applicable) has not taken any action which will or may result in the Company, Arbuthnot,
Collins Stewart, any of their respective Affiliates or any person acting on their behalf being in breach
of the legal and/or regulatory requirements of any territory in connection with the Placing;

9.        represents and warrants that the allocation, allotment, issue or transfer and delivery to the Placee, or
the person specified by the Placee for registration as holder, of Placing Shares will not give rise to a
liability under any of sections 67, 70, 93 or 96 of the Finance Act 1986 (depositary receipts and
clearance services) and that the Placing Shares are not being acquired in connection with
arrangements to issue depositary receipts or to issue or transfer Placing Shares into a clearance
system;

10.      represents and warrants that it understands that the Placing Shares have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the
United States (as defined below) and that the Company has not been registered as an “investment
company” under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended;

11.      represents and warrants that neither it nor its Affiliates nor any person acting on its or their behalf have
engaged or will engage in any “directed selling efforts” with respect to the Placing Shares;

12.      represents and warrants that it is, or at the time the Placing Shares are acquired, it will be, (a) the
beneficial owner of such Placing Shares and is neither a person located in the United States of
America, its territories or possessions, any state of the United States or the District of Columbia (the
“United States”) nor on behalf of a person in the United States, (b) acquiring the Placing Shares in an
offshore transaction (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) and (c) will not offer or sell,
directly or indirectly, any of the Placing Shares in the United States except in accordance with
Regulation S or pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration
requirements of the Securities Act;

13.      represents and warrants that it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Placing Shares to
persons in the United Kingdom prior to Admission except to “qualified investors” as defined in Article
2.1(e)(i), (ii) or (iii) of the Prospectus Directive;
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14.      represents and warrants that it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only
communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment
activity (within the meaning of section 21 of FSMA) relating to the Placing Shares in circumstances
in which it is permitted to do so pursuant to section 21 of FSMA;

15.      represents and warrants that it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of FSMA
with respect to anything done by it in relation to the Placing Shares in, from or otherwise involving
the United Kingdom;

16.      if it is a financial intermediary as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, it
represents, warrants, acknowledges and agrees that the Placing Shares acquired by it have not been
acquired on a non-discretionary basis on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their
offer or resale to, persons in circumstances which may give rise to an offer of any Placing Shares to
the public other than their offer or resale in a Member State of the European Economic Area which
has implemented the Prospectus Directive to qualified investors as so defined who are not financial
intermediaries or in circumstances in which the prior consent of Collins Stewart has been obtained to
each such proposed offer or resale, provided that such consent shall not be given in circumstances
where such offer of Placing Shares would result in a requirement for the publication by the Company
of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive;

17.      represents and warrants that it has complied with its obligations in connection with money laundering
and terrorist financing under the Criminal Justice Act 1993, the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, the
Terrorism Act 2000, the Anti-terrorism Crime and Security Act 2001 and the Money Laundering
Regulations (2007) (the “Regulations”) and, if it is making payment on behalf of a third party, that
satisfactory evidence has been obtained and recorded by it to verify the identity of the third party as
required by the Regulations;

18.      represents and warrants that it is (a) a person falling within Article 19(5) of the FPO or (b) a person
falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the FPO and undertakes that it will acquire, hold, manage or
dispose of any Placing Shares that are allocated to it for the purposes of its business;

19.      represents and warrants that it is a qualified investor as defined in section 86(7) of FSMA, being a
person falling within Article 2.1(e)(i), (ii) or (iii) of the Prospectus Directive;

20.      undertakes that it (and any person acting on its behalf) will pay for the Placing Shares acquired by it
in accordance with this document on the due time and date set out herein against delivery of such
Placing Shares to it, failing which the relevant Placing Shares may be placed with other Placees or
sold as Collins Stewart may, in its absolute discretion, determine and it will remain liable for any
shortfall below the net proceeds of such sale and the placing proceeds of such Placing Shares and may
be required to bear any stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax (together with any interest or penalties
due pursuant to the terms set out or referred to in this document) which may arise upon the sale of
such Placee’s Placing Shares on its behalf;

21.      acknowledges that none of Collins Stewart, any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their behalf
is making any recommendations to it or advising it regarding the suitability or merits of any
transaction it may enter into in connection with the Placing, and acknowledges that neither Collins
Stewart, any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on their behalf has any duties or responsibilities to
it for providing advice in relation to the Placing or in respect of any representations, warranties,
undertakings or indemnities contained in the Placing Agreement or for the exercise or performance of
any of Collins Stewart’s or Hawkpoint’s rights and obligations thereunder, including any right to
waive or vary any condition or exercise any termination right contained therein;

22.      undertakes that (i) the person whom it specifies for registration as holder of the Placing Shares will
be (a) the Placee or (b) the Placee’s nominee, as the case may be, (ii) neither Collins Stewart nor the
Company will be responsible for any liability to stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax resulting from
a failure to observe this requirement and (iii) the Placee and any person acting on its behalf agrees to
acquire or subscribe for the Placing Shares on the basis that the Placing Shares will be allotted to the
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CREST stock account of Collins Stewart which will hold them as settlement agent as nominee for the
Placees until settlement in accordance with its standing settlement instructions with payment for the
Placing Shares being made simultaneously upon receipt of the Placing Shares in the Placee’s stock
account on a delivery versus payment basis;

23.      acknowledges that any agreements entered into by it pursuant to these terms and conditions (and any
non-contractual obligations connected with such agreements) shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of England and it submits (on behalf of itself and on behalf of any person
on whose behalf it is acting) to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts as regards any claim,
dispute or matter arising out of any such contract;

24.      acknowledges that it irrevocably appoints any director of Collins Stewart as its agent for the purposes
of executing and delivering to the Company and/or its registrars any documents on its behalf
necessary to enable it to be registered as the holder of any of the Placing Shares agreed to be taken up
by it under the Placing;

25.      represents and warrants that it is not a resident of any Prohibited Jurisdiction and acknowledges that
the Placing Shares have not been and will not be registered nor will a prospectus be cleared in respect
of the Placing Shares under the securities legislation of any Prohibited Jurisdictions and, subject to
certain exceptions, may not be offered, sold, taken up, renounced, delivered or transferred, directly or
indirectly, within any Prohibited Jurisdiction;

26.      represents and warrants that any person who confirms to Collins Stewart on behalf of a Placee an
agreement to subscribe for or acquire Placing Shares and/or who authorises Collins Stewart to notify
the Placee’s name to the Company’s registrar, has authority to do so on behalf of the Placee;

27.      acknowledges that the agreement to settle each Placee’s acquisition of Placing Shares (and/or the
acquisition of a person for whom it is contracting as agent) free of stamp duty and stamp duty reserve
tax depends on the settlement relating only to an acquisition by it and/or such person direct from the
Company of the Placing Shares in question. Such agreement assumes that the Placing Shares are not
being acquired in connection with arrangements to issue depositary receipts or to issue or transfer the
Placing Shares into a clearance service. If there were any such arrangements, or the settlement related
to other dealing in the Placing Shares, stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax may be payable, for which
neither the Company nor Collins Stewart will be responsible. If this is the case, the Placee should take
its own advice and notify Collins Stewart accordingly;

28.      acknowledges that the Placing Shares will be issued and/or transferred subject to the terms and
conditions set out in this document;

29.      acknowledges that when a Placee or any person acting on behalf of the Placee is dealing with Collins
Stewart any money held in an account with Collins Stewart on behalf of the Placee and/or any person
acting on behalf of the Placee will not be treated as client money within the meaning of the relevant
rules and regulations of the FSA. The Placee acknowledges that the money will not be subject to the
protections conferred by the client money rules; as a consequence, this money will not be segregated
from Collins Stewart money in accordance with the client money rules and will be used by Collins
Stewart in the course of its business; and the Placee will rank only as a general creditor of Collins
Stewart (as the case may be);

30.      acknowledges and understands that the Company, Arbuthnot, Collins Stewart, and others will rely
upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations, warranties, agreements, undertakings
and acknowledgements;

31.      acknowledges that until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the Placing and the closing
date, an offer or sale of Placing Shares within the United States by any dealer (whether or not
participating in the Placing) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such
offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act or
pursuant to another exemption from registration under the Securities Act to a person that is a
“qualified purchaser” (as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the United States Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended); and
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32.      acknowledges that the basis of allocation will be determined by Collins Stewart (after consulting with
the Company and Arbuthnot ) at its absolute discretion. The right is reserved to reject in whole or in
part and/or scale back any participation in the Placing.

The acknowledgements, agreements, undertakings, representations and warranties referred to above are
given to each of the Company, Arbuthnot and Collins Stewart (for its own benefit and, where relevant, the
benefit of its Affiliates and any person acting on its behalf) and are irrevocable.

No UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax should be payable to the extent that the Placing Shares are
issued or transferred (as the case may be) into CREST to, or to the nominee of, a Placee who holds those
shares beneficially (and not as agent or nominee for any other person) within the CREST system and
registered in the name of such Placee or such Placee’s nominee.

Any arrangements to issue or transfer the Placing Shares into a depositary receipts system or a clearance
service or to hold the Placing Shares as agent or nominee of a person to whom a depositary receipt may be
issued or who will hold the Placing Shares in a clearance service, or any arrangements subsequently to
transfer the Placing Shares, may give rise to stamp duty and/or stamp duty reserve tax, for which neither the
Company nor Collins Stewart will be responsible and the Placee to whom (or on behalf of whom, or in
respect of the person for whom it is participating in the Placing as an agent or nominee) the allocation,
allotment, issue or delivery of Placing Shares has given rise to such stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax
undertakes to pay such stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax forthwith and to indemnify on an after-tax basis
and to hold harmless the Company and Collins Stewart in the event that any of the Company and/or Collins
Stewart has incurred any such liability to stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax.

In addition, Placees should note that they will be liable for any capital duty, stamp duty and all other stamp,
issue, securities, transfer, registration, documentary or other duties or taxes (including any interest, fines or
penalties relating thereto) payable outside the UK by them or any other person on the acquisition by them of
any Placing Shares or the agreement by them to subscribe for or acquire any Placing Shares.

All times and dates in this document may be subject to amendment. Collins Stewart shall notify the Placees
and any person acting on behalf of the Placees of any such changes.

This document has been issued by the Company and is the sole responsibility of the Company.

The rights and remedies of Collins Stewart, Arbuthnot and the Company under these terms and conditions
are in addition to any rights and remedies which would otherwise be available to each of them and the
exercise or partial exercise or partial exercise of one will not prevent the exercise of others.

Each Placee may be asked to disclose in writing or orally to Collins Stewart:

(a)      if he is an individual, his nationality; or 

(b)      if he is a discretionary fund manager, the jurisdiction in which the funds are managed or owned.
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